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Year in Review

When Medifast began its transformation from a regional, doctor distributed, meal
replacement plan to a clinically proven, multi-channel weight control program,
Medifast has continued to achieve unprecedented annual growth—from both a
financial perspective and in terms of the sheer number of people we have been

able to help, nationwide, every year.

In 2011, Medifast celebrated 31 years of developing, manufacturing, and
marketing healthy, portion-controlled, nutritionally balanced meal replacements
for weight loss. Our product selection has expanded to offer more than 70
delicious Medifast Meals and snacks. And as our clients get slimmer, Medifast

continues to report healthy sales growth, achieving a five-year Compound Annual
Growth Rate (CAGR) of 37%.

Of course, we have a time-tested, clinically proven program, and healthy,
medically formulated meals recommended by over 20,000 doctors since 1980.
What truly differentiates Medifast from its competitors is how we connect our
clients to success through multiple, distinct distribution channels under the
Medifast brand. Take Shape For Life (TSFL), Medifast Direct, Medifast Weight
Control Centers (MWCC), and Medifast Medical Providers offer our clients a
choice that improves their chances for long-term success by offering support that

works with their own specific needs, goals, lifestyle, and personalities.

2011 was a year of continued growth, new initiatives, and organizational
development. Medifast remains solid financially, and poised for even greater
success in the future—through growth and transformation. We are determined to
carry forward the vision of our leader Bradley T. MacDonald, despite the profound

personal and professional loss his recent passing brings.

In 2011, the Company reported a year-over-year gain of 16% in net revenues,
to $298.2 million from $257.6 million in 2010. Each of our primary distribution

channels contributed to this year-over-year revenue increase.



Gross profit for the year ending December 31, 2011, increased 17% to $224.5 million, compared to
$192.5 million in the same period last year. The Company'’s gross profit margin increased 60 basis points
to 75.3% in 2011 versus 74.7% in 2010.

The Company's balance sheet remains strong, with stockholders’ equity of $73.4 million and working
capital of $43.7 million as of December 31, 2011.

As we move forward in 2012 and beyond, Medifast is focused on responsible long-term growth
throughout all channels. Medifast ended the year with a renewed strategic focus on driving excellence
throughout these sales channels, and our internal support divisions, to better position our business for

maximum profitability as we continue to grow in the future.

Our executive team is continuing to review and enhance our overall cost structure to further leverage
our sales momentum and deliver improved earnings results, while continuing to focus on enhancing the

client experience in each of our distribution channels.

As always, Medifast remains dedicated to reducing the strain that America’s obesity epidemic places on
our citizens, our healthcare system, and our economy. We look forward to sharing a healthy future with
our partners and offer sincere thanks to our valued clients, Medifast employees, Take Shape For Life
Health Coaches, Medifast Weight Control Centers operations, Medifast Medical Providers, Board of

Directors, and Shareholders for their continued support of Medifast, Inc.

Sincerely,

UL 2.45(/ Mg Shatke
Michael C. MacDonald Margaret E. Sheetz
Executive Chairman of the Board, President,

Chief Executive Officer Chief Operating Officer

ABOUT MR. MACDONALD
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CONNECTING OUR SUCCESS TO
OUR CLIENTS' SUCCESS

Multiple Distribution Channels, One Mission

Medifast is fueled by our medically formulated products and clinically proven program. It is
our unique business model that propels us to greater success for both the Company and its

customers.

Our multiple distribution channels allow for greater access to the Medifast products and program
in varying markets and by different individuals, and helps empower our clients to choose the
support that works best for their personal needs, goals, and lifestyle. It also provides opportunities
for our physicians and for those who want to become Take Shape For Life Health Coaches to

benefit financially from a great product, program, and our shared passion to “pay it forward.”



ke Shape
For Life.

FUELED BY?fMedif ast.

DTa

TAKE SHAPE FOR LIFE

David Johnson

Take Shape For Life (TSFL) is the direct selling division of Medifast. At the heart of this business
model is the Take Shape For Life Health Coach, who is trained and educated to support and
mentor Clients on the Medifast 5 & 1 Plan®. The combination of the Medifast Program, the
support of the Health Coach, and co-founder Dr. Wayne S. Andersen'’s Habits of Health system
make up the “triad of health” that is the basis for the TSFL program. Clients also have access to
support from registered, licensed dietitians, certified personal trainers, and behavior specialists

through phone access, email, and online discussion boards.

This business model provides an exciting business opportunity for Clients who wish to share their

success with others and pay it forward by becoming Health Coaches themselves.

Revenue in this direct sales channel increased 12% to $186.2 million in the fiscal year 2011. The
channel added 600 new Health Coaches, an increase of 7% compared to 2010. Growth in revenue
was driven by increased Client product sales as a result of an increase in the number of active
Health Coaches. In 2011, TSFL introduced a cutting-edge training and e-Learning initiative. The
initiative ensures that both new and experienced Coaches receive unparalleled training in product,

program, and how to grow their business.

¢ ¢ With the support of my Health Coach, | started the

program and | am no longer a bystander to life—now I'm a

23

—David Johnson, lost 205 Ibs* with the support of a Take Shape For Life Health Coach

fully engaged and active participant in my own life.
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€6 The Medifast 5 & 1 Plan® offered me healthy, long-term

results with tasty food and an easy-to-follow plan. 23

—Jessica Westmoreland, lost 85 Ibs* with Medifast Direct

?Medifastcg

MEDIFAST DIRECT

In this direct-to-consumer channel, customers order Medifast products directly through the

Company'’s website or through its in-house contact center, for shipment right to their door.

Medifast Direct is a popular choice for those who are self-motivated or want to pursue their
weight-loss goals independently. Support is provided through an online community called
MyMedifast, and access to registered, licensed dietitians, certified personal trainers, and behavior

specialists through a call center, email, and online discussion boards.

The Company’s online, direct-response marketing channel experienced a 14% increase in 2011
revenue to $73 million, compared to $64.2 million for the same time period in 2010. Medifast
Direct updated its website and created an improved checkout process that enhanced the

customer experience.

BEFORE

Jessica
Westmoreland

*Results will vary. Typical weight loss on the Medifast 5 & 1 Plan® is up to 2-5 pounds per week.



¢ ¢ My weekly meetings with the staff were critical to my

success, and the support | received was irreplaceable! 23

—-Cynthia Lujan, lost 73 Ibs* with Medifast Weight Control Centers

%Medifast

MEDIFAST WEIGHT CONTROL CENTERS

Medifast Weight Control Centers (MWCC) are a great choice for those who prefer a more
structured approach and personal accountability. Members benefit from comprehensive Medifast
plans for weight loss and maintenance, a medical review, customized member counseling, and
body composition analysis. A personal weight-loss Counselor works with each member to ensure
they receive the nutritional and full-scale behavioral support tools needed for enduring health and

wellbeing—all based on the member’s individual goals.

MWCC opened the 100th Medifast Weight Control Center in 2011, an effort that included
expanding the number of corporate centers to 70—an 80% increase compared to fiscal 2010.
Combined with the wholesale segment, MWCC reported a 41% increase in revenue in 2011 to
$39 million, compared to $27.7 million at the same time in 2010. In 2012, the Company is focused

on improving operational effectiveness and efficiency—

balancing sales growth and profitability.

BEFORE

Cynthia Lujan

*Results will vary. Typical weight loss on the Medifast 5 & 1 Plan® is up to 2-5 pounds per week.
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MEDICAL PROVIDERS

MEDIFAST MEDICAL PROVIDERS

Medifast Medical Providers are licensed health care providers who recommend the Medifast
Program within their practices. Providers carry an inventory of Medifast products that they

resell to their patients, or they simply recommend the program to their patients through in-
office program materials. They also provide the appropriate monitoring for their patients on the
Program. This is especially crucial for patients with comorbidities such as diabetes, heart disease,

and hypertension.
The Company offers an additional in-house support program to assist Medical Providers and their

staff, including access to registered, licensed dietitians, certified personal trainers, and a behavior

specialist.

66 | chose Medifast because, for the first time, | have a

solution that gives people a likelihood of success, and

23

—-Gary Manko, M.D., Medifast Medical Provider

a program that's easy to do.



2 O CqNN%TING INITIATIVE
ND INNOVATION

To Create a Platform for Growth

Medifast has set a solid platform of initiatives and innovations
across infrastructure, science, product development, education,
and marketing with the goal of driving growth and increasing
profitability in 2012 and beyond. We look to that future with

confidence.

10| 2011 ANNUAL REPORT



SCALING FOR FUTURE GROWTH

TALENT DEVELOPMENT

e Attracting seasoned executive leadership to help the Company scale operations for

growth and increase profitability

* Implementing competency-based employee development and just-in-time learning

technologies

* Building a Leadership Development Institute designed to grow future

leaders from within the Company

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY —

® Expanding robust IT systems infrastructure across operations and
e-commerce platforms while focusing on implementation of industry

best enterprise solutions

¢ Expanding data warehouse capabilities to provide robust, real time

measurement tools

¢ Driving cost savings and revenue expansion
opportunities via predictive and business

process modeling

OPERATIONS

* Executing capacity expansion initiatives across

manufacturing and distribution networks



SCIENCE INNOVATION

SCIENTIFIC ADVISORY BOARD

Founded in 2008, the Scientific Advisory Board's role is to continually review the effectiveness,
safety, and nutritional benefits of Medifast’s products and programs. The team of specialists

also assists in the development of new Medifast Meals and supplements, as well as weight-loss
approaches for specific medical needs (e.g., patients with heart disease), people in certain groups

(e.g., teens and nursing mothers), or those who make certain lifestyle choices (e.g., vegetarians).

The work of this cross-disciplinary group builds on Medifast’s heritage of medically sound
approaches to weight loss and the incorporation of leading-edge clinical research into the

company'’s products and programs.

From left to right: John E. Hayes, Ph.D., Assistant Professor of Food Science, Director, Sensory Evaluation Center, The
Pennsylvania State University; George A. Bray, M.D., Boyd Professor, Pennington Biomedical Research Center at Louisiana State
University; Mark Messina, Ph.D., Adjunct Associate Professor, Department of Nutrition, School of Public Health, Loma Linda
University, President, Nutrition Matters, Inc.; Sylvia B. Rowe, MA, Adjunct Professor, Tufts Friedman School of Nutrition Science
and Policy, Adjucnt Professor, University of Massachusetts, Amherst, President, SR Strategy; Lawrence J. Cheskin, M.D., FA.C.P,
Associate Professor of Health, Behavior and Society at the Johns Hopkins Bloomberg School of Public Health, Director, Johns
Hopkins Weight Management Center; John P. Foreyt, Ph.D., Professor, Department of Psychiatry and Behavioral Sciences,
Department of Medicine, Baylor College of Medicine; Param Dedhia, M.D., Physician of Integrative Medicine, Canyon Ranch

12| 2011 ANNUAL REPORT



PRODUCT INNOVATION

In 2011, the Company expanded the Medifast product line in response to our customers’ requests

for more savory meals, breakfast foods, and additional convenience items.

New products introduced include Spiced Pancake, Sugar-Free Syrup, Original-Style Eggs with
egg whites, and Southwest-Style Eggs with egg whites. Orange Blend, a zingy citrus drink, and
ready-to-eat, gluten-free Medifast BBQ Bites and Medifast Cheese Pizza Bites were also added
to our ever-expanding menu. Based on the popularity of the
“freshly baked” Brownie, the Chocolate Chip Soft Bake was
developed. We also added our newest savory selection, the
Hearty Vegetarian Sloppy Joe. The Company also upgraded its
Accessories line, adding a 17-piece Medifast Blender with BPA-

" free plastic traveling cups.

ORIGINAL-STYLE EGGS

SOUTHWEST-STYLE EGGS

BBQ BITES
CHEESE PIZZA BITES

17-PIECE BLENDER AND ACCESSORIES

CHOCOLATE CHIP SOFT BAKE



EDUCATIONAL INNOVATION

THE MACDONALD CENTER FOR OBESITY PREVENTION AND
EDUCATION (C.O.P.E.)

The MacDonald Center for Obesity Prevention and Education (C.O.P.E.) in the College of Nursing
at Villanova University was established in 2011 through the support of the MacDonald Family
Foundation and the Take Shape For Life Foundation. C.O.P.E. is a nonprofit center that focuses on

interdisciplinary collaboration in the prevention of obesity through education and research.

C.O.PE. fosters the growing need for education by supporting the development of healthy

lifestyles and behaviors among Americans through:
* Practical experiences for nursing students and the student population

e Educational opportunities for health professionals and educators, through conferences,

webinars, and additional resources
e Training programs for community groups
* Obesity and weight-management resources for professionals and consumers
e Creative nutrition educational programs for school children

» Continuing education opportunities for organizations, health professionals, corporations,

and institutions

THE OCTOBER 6 INAUGURATION OF THE
MACDONALD CENTER FOR OBESITY PREVENTION
AND EDUCATION AT VILLANOVA UNIVERSITY
COLLEGE OF NURSING

MacDonald
Canter

Obesity
Prevention From left to right: Marcia Costello, Ph.D., RD, LDN,

Education Assistant Professor and Chair of the Cope Advisory
e Committee; M. Louise Fitzpatrick, ED, RN, FAAN,
Connelly Endowed Dean and Professor; Col.
Bradley T. MacDonald, USMC (ret.); guest speaker
Sylvia Escott-Stump, MA, RD, LDN, President of the
American Dietetic Association; and Denice Ferko-

Adams, MPH, RD, LDN, Director of COPE
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MARKETING INNOVATION

While maintaining each channel’s unique attributes and identity, in 2011, Medifast strengthened
customer perception and awareness by uniting all four channels under the umbrella of one, strong
Medifast brand. Key initiatives will forge a clearer and more approachable presence in the national

marketplace. Highlights include:

Although each channel maintained a unique web presence, they were
brought together within one, unique web test portal that explains the fast, simple, safe,
portable, and long term Medifast Program, and allows the customer to choose which channel

site to investigate.

Medifast also launched its first primetime television
commercial, entitled, Become Yourself, which differentiated Medifast from the clamor of
other weight-loss programs by featuring real-life Medifast success Jessica Westmoreland in

lieu of industry-standard celebrity endorsements.

?Medifast

Become Yourself’

"CUSTOMS"” COMMERCIAL FEATURING MEDIFAST DIRECT
SUCCESS STORY JESSICA WESTMORELAND

15



2 E@EqINqO A HEALTHY
FUTURE

Our mission at Medifast is to combat the obesity epidemic and
improve the health of our nation in two ways: first, through
clinically proven, weight-management products and protocols;
and second, through multiple, innovative support channels. We've
come a long way since we launched this multi-channel business
model, and an even longer way since Medifast was introduced to

physicians in the 1980s.

Our history of growth and the investments made to facilitate initiatives and expansion in 2011
provide a solid base for achieving future goals. In 2012 the Company will continue to:
¢ Review and enhance our overall cost structure to further leverage our sales
and profitability
* Focus on enhancing the customer experience in our distribution channels
* Expand our product selection

e Empower our employees at every level to serve our clients’ needs and offer them

more options to create long-term health

* Support programs such as Target 100, with the goal of recycling 100% of waste and

becoming a green company

e Sponsor charities such as the American Heart Association, American Diabetes

Foundation, and the Marine Toys for Tots Foundation

FORTUNE 2011 Forbes 2011

100 FASTEST
GROWING #5

BEST SMALL
COMPANIES #12
COMPANIES

IN AMERICA
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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

E ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal vear ended December 31, 2011
or
O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the transition period from to
Commuission file number 001-31573

Medifast, Inc.

{Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware 13-37 14405
(Staie or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization) (LELS. Employer Identilication MNo.)

11445 Cronhill Dr., Owings Mills, MD 21117
{Address of principal executive offices) (Zip code)

Registrant's telephone number, including area code:
{410) 581-8042

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(h) of the Act:

Title of each class Name of cach exchange on which registered
Common Stock, par value 5.001 MNew York Stock Exchange

Securities registered porsuant to Section 12(g) of the Act: None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned 1ssuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Sccurities Act,

Yes O HNo E
Indicate by check mark if the registrant 15 not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Seetion 15(d) of the Act.
Yes 0 No [E

Indicate by check murk whether the remstrant (1) has [iled all reports required to be [led by Section 13 or 15(d) of the
Securitics Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file
suich reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days,

Yes E No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every
Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 4035 of Regulation S-T (§232.405 of this chapter) during
the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files).

Yes O No E



Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursnant to Item 4035 of Regulation S-K (§229.405) is not contained
herein, and will not be contmned, to the best of registrant’s knowledge, in defimtive proxy or information statements incorporated by
reference in Part 111 of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K. O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-aceelerated fler, or a
smaller reporting Company. See the defintions of “large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reporting Company™ in
Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated filer 00  Accelerated filer E

Mon-accelerated filer O (Do not check if a smaller reporting Company ) Smaller reporting Company [0
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell Company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act).
Yes 00 No

The aggregate market value of the registrant’s common stock held by non-affiliates as of June 30, 2011 based upon the closing
price of $23.73 per share of commen stock as of June 30, 2011, the last business day of the registrant’s second fiscal quarter of 2011,
8s quoted on the New York Stock Exchange was approximately $325 million.

The number of shares of common steck outstanding as of March 14, 2012 was 15,510,185.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This 2011 Annual Report on Form 10-K (* Report ”) contains forward-looking statements intended to quality for the safe harbor
contained in Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended (the * Exchange Act ). Forward-looking statemenis often include words such as “may,” “will,” “should,” “anticipate,”
“estimale,” “expect,” “project,” “intend,” “plan,” “believe,” “seek,” “would,” “could,” and similar words or are made in connection
with discussions of future operating or financial performance.

Forward-looking statements reflect our managemeni’s expeciations at the date of this Report regarding future conditions, events or
resulls. They are nol puaranices of [olure performance. By therr nature, forward-lookimg statements are subjeet 1o nsks and
uncerlainlies.  Our actual resulls and Nnancial condition may differ matenally from what 15 anticipated in the forward-looking
statements.  There are many factors thal could cause actual conditions, events or results to differ from those anticipated by the
Torward-looking statements contained in this Report. They include the factors discussed in Item 1A, Risk Factors.

Readers are cautioned not 1o place undue reliance on forward-looking statements in this Report or that we make from time to time,
and to consider carefully the factors discussed in Item 1A, Risk Factors in evaluating these forward-looking statements. We have
not undertaken to update any forward-looking statements,

b
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PART 1

ITEM I. BUSINESS
SUMMARY

Medifast, Ine, (the "Company™ or “Medifast™) is a Delaware corporation, incorporated in 1993, The Company™s operations are primarnly conducted
through five of its wholly owned subsidianes, Jason Pharmaceuticals, Ine. ("Jason™), Take Shape For Lile, Ine, (“TSFL™), Jason Enterprises, Inc.,
Jason Propertics, LLC and Seven Crondall, LLC. The Company is ¢ngaged in the production, distribution, and sale of weight management and
disease management products and other consumable health and diet preducts. Medifast product lines include weight and disease management, nweal
replacement, and vitamins primarily manufactured in its modern, FDA -approved facility in Owings Mills, Maryland.

MARKETS

Ower the past 30 years, obesity in the United States has dramatically increased. The obesity epidemic shows no signs of slowing down, with the
condition worsening as American waistlines continue expanding.  Throughout the world, approximately 1.7 billion people are overweight.  The
United States, as a whole, ranks ninth in the world standings of the fattest countries, with slightly more than 74% of all Amernicans falling within the
overweight or obese ealegornies.

Obesity is defined as 0 Body Mass Index (BMI) of 30 kg/m® or greater, whereas overweight is defined as o BMI ranging between 25 and
299 kg;'ml. According to the Centers {or Disease Control and Prevention (“CIXC™), zero states in the ULS. had a prevalence of obesity less than
20%% in 2010 compared to one state in 2009, Furthermore, the CDC reported that thirty-s1x (36) states had a prevalence of obesity equal to or greater
than 25%, and twelve (12} states had a prevalence of obesity equal to or greater than 3084,

Supporied by a recent study published in August 2010 in the Journal of American Medieal Association entitled, “Prevalence and trends in ohesity
among LIS adults, 1999-2008", almost 7 out of 10 adults in the U5, are overweight or abese, with approximately 80 million (or about thirty-four
pereent) of Amencan adults suffering from obesity. This mises concern among Amencans because of the health implications associated with
ohesity, including conditions such as type 2 diabetes, coronary heart disease, hypertension and stroke, sleep apnea and respiratory problems,
gallbladder disease, depression and certain forms of eancer.

Obesily 15 nol an age-specific condition; the CDC showed children and adolescents are also aflected. According to the CDC, the prevalence ol
obesity in children and adolescents has tripled since 1976, Overweight and obese children are st an increased risk of developing health problems
such as high blood pressure. high cholesterol and type 2 diabetes.

According to the study, “Projection of diabetes burden through 2050: impact of change demography and disease prevalence in the US.7, published
in 2001 in Diabetes Care, type 2 diabetes is expected to increase by 165% between 2000 and 2050. A 2007 study published by the CDC showed
children are now also being affected by type 2 diabetes with an increased risk of suffering significant morbidities as adults in the form of
amputations, kidney problems, and blindness.

The primary factors contributing lo obesity arc well-known: unhealthy food choices and lack of physical activity. It is estimated that poor nutrition
and physieal inaetivity account for more than 200,000 premature deaths per year in the IS5, Aceording 1o the United States Department of Health
and Human Services (DHHS), only 25% of adults and even fewer teenagers consume the recommended 5 or more servings of vegetables and fruils
aday. Further, the XIS reports that more than half of American adults fail to engage in the suggested amount of physical activity, and more than
one Lhird nl':.'nunt; Americans il to I':EII!II'II\" engage in any vigur{ma p!'r:,m'cal nclivil}' atall.

The United States DHHS reported Americans spent $117 billion in costs associated with being overweight and obese in 2003, OF this, direet
medical and healthcare costs totaled $93 billion. More recent estimates, from 2009, put direct medical and health care costs at $159 billion, a
significant increase from just 6 vears prior. Sources estimale that Americans will spend 5319 billion in costs associated with being overweight and
obese by 2020, The ULS. weight loss market itsell is estimated to be a 561 billion per year industry, This ineludes consumer spending on diet
foods, drinks and low-calorie sweeteners; health clubs and workout videos: medically supervised and commercial weight loss programs; children’s
weight loss camps; diet books; appetite suppressants and more.

Distribution Channels

Medifast Direct = In the direct-to-consumer channel (“Medifast Direct™), customers order Medifast product dircetly through the Company's
wehsites, www choosemedifastcom and www medifastnow.com or our in-house call center. The praduct is shipped directly to the customer’s
home, This business is drven by an aggressive mulii-media customer acquisition strategy that includes both national and regional print, mdio, web
advertising, direct mail, and television as well as public relations, word of mouth referrals, and social media initintives. The Medifast Direct
division focuses on targeted marketing imtiatives and provides customer support through ite in-house call center and nutrition support team of
registered dietitians to better serve its customers. In addition, Medifast continues to use leading web technology featuring customized meal
planning and web community components. MyMedifast is a robust online community which provides a library of support articles, scheduled
weekly medical support calls, support forums, meal-planning tools, and social media functions. See Note 13, “Business Segments™ of the financial
statements for a detailed breakout of revenues, profit or loss, and total assels of each of the Company's business segments.

Take Shape For Life™-Take Shape For Life is the personal coaching division of Medifast. Take Shape for Life is led by its co-founder, a
physician with a background in enfical care. The coaching network consisis of independent contractor Health Coaches (“Health Coaches™), who are
trained to provide coaching and support to clients on Medifast weight-loss programs. [Health Coaches are conduits to give elients the encouragement



and mentoring to assist them to successfully reach a healthy weight. Take Shape For Life programs provide a road map o empower the individual
to take control of their health through better habits. Take Shape for Life offers the exclusive proprietary BeShim® philosophy, which encourages
long-term weight maintenance. Take Shape For Life also moves bevond the scope of weight loss (o teach customers how 1o achieve optimal health
through the balance of body, mind. and linances. Take Shape For Life uses the high-quality, medically validated products of Medifast that have
been proven safe and effective in clinical studies deseribed on page 9@ under “Clinical Research Overview.” Health Coaches and their clients follow
the Habits of Health book and companion workbook written by the Take Shape For Life co-founder to create a lifelong health optimuzation
program. In addition to the encouragement and support of a Health Coach, elients of Take Shape For Life are oflered a bio-network of support
including website information, scheduled program medical and general support calls, and access o registered dietitians via toll-free wlephone,
email. and web chats.

Program entrants are encouraged to consult with their primary care physician and a Take Shape For Life Health Coach 1o determine the Medifast
program that is right for them. Health Coaches are required to beeome qualified based upon testing of their knowledge on Medifast products and
programs. Health Coaches may also become certified by The Health Institute, a proprietary training program developed by Medifast professionals.
Our Health Coaches provide coaching and support 1o their Clients throughout the weight-loss and weight-maintenance process. Most new Health
Coaches are recruited by an existing Health Coach. The vast majority of our new Health Coaches started as weight-loss elients of a Health Coach,
had success on the Medifast produet and program, and become a Health Coach to help others through the weight-loss process and receive a
commission on any produet sales they refer 1o the Company. In additon, in the Take Shape For Life network, approximately 20% of active Health
Coaches are health care providers,

Take Shape For Life Health Coaches are independent contractors who are paid compensation on product sales referred 1o the Company. Health
Coaches can eam compensation in fwo ways:

*  Commissions: The primary way a Health Coach is compensated is through earning commissions on produet sold. Health Coaches eam
commissions by referring product sales through their own replicated website or through the Company's in-house call center. The clients
of Health Coaches are responsible for ordering and paving for produet, and their order is shipped direetly from the Company to the
client’s home or designated address, Our Health Coaches do not handle payments and are not reguired to purchase or store produet in
order to receive o commission. [n addition, Health Coaches do not receive a commission on their product orders for their personal use,
Health Coaches pay the same price for produets as their clients. The Company pavs rétm] commissions on a weekly basis.

*  Bonuses. Health Coaches are offered several bonus opportunities, including growth bonuses, generation bonuses, elite leadership
bonuses, rolling consistency bonuses, client acquisiion bonuses, and customer assist bonuses. The purposes of these bonuses are (o
reward Health Coaches for suecessfully refernng product sales fo the Take Shape For Life network, and to incentivize Health Coaches to
further develop Health Coaches within their network. The Company pays honuses on a monthly basis.

o Growth bonuses are pmd to Health Coaches that have at least five ordening clients per month and that have generated over $1,000 in
product sales per month. Monthly growth bonuses are incremental bonuses that enable Health Coaches fo earn income on product
orders placed by clients or Health Coaches within their network.

o Generation bonuses are paid 1o Health Coaches that have one or more Health Coaches in their business that have achieved the rank of
Executive Director. An Executive Director is a Health Coach that either generates 56,000 a month in frontline product sales to either
Clients or personally sponsored Health Coaches or personally sponsors five senior Health Coaches. A senior Health Coach is a
Health Coach that generates at least 31,000 a month in group product sales from a combination of ol least five personally enrolled,
ordering Clients, and/or Health Coaches, Health Coach teams. or a combination of both.

o Elite leadership bonuses are paid to Health Coaches that have three or more Health Coaches in their business that have achieved the
rank of Executive Director.

o Rolling consistency bonuses are paid to Health Coaches that display frontline product sales order consistency month after month.
Health Coaches that generate at least 52,000 or more in frontline product sales for three consecutive months are paid a rolling
consistency bonus.

o Client acquisiion bonuses are paid oul to new Health Ceaches that within their first 30 calendar davs in Take Shape For Life develop
five Clients and 51,000 in frontline product sales.

o The assist bonuses are paid 1o Health Coaches thatl assist a new Health Coach in their business attain the Client acquisition bonus.

Health Coaches do not carn a commission or bonus when they recruit a new Health Coach into the Take Shape For Life network. Fees paid by new
Health Coaches for start-up materials are at the Company’s approximale cost and no commissions are paid thereon,

Take Shape For Life 13 a8 member of the Direet Selling Association (DSA), a national trade association representing over 200 direct selling
companies doing business in the United States. To become a member of the DSA, Take Shape For Life, like other active 125A member companies,
underwent a comprehensive and rigorous ane-vear Company review by 1384 legal staff that included a detailed analysis of its Company business-
plan malenals. This review is dcn'iEncd o ensure thal a Company s business practices do nol contravene DSAs Code of Ethies. C:mpliu.rhm: wilh
the requirements of the Code of Ethics is paramount 1o become and remam a member i good standing of DSA. Accordingly, we believe
membership in DSA by Take Shape For Lile demonstrates its commitment to the highest standards of ethies and a pledge not to engage in any
deceptive, unlawlul, or uncthical business practices. Among those Code of Ethics proscriptions are pyramid schemes or endless chain schemes as
defined by federal, state, or local laws. Morcover, Take Shape For Life, like other DSA member companies in good standing, has pledged 1o
provide consumers with sceurate and truthful information regarding the price, grade, gquality, and performanee of the products Take Shape For Life



markets. See Note 13, “Business Segments” of the financial statements for a detailed breakout of revenues, profit or loss, and total assets of each of
the Company’s business segments.

Medifast Weight Control Centers — The Medifast Weight Contral Center is the brick and morar clinic channel of Medifast with locations in
Pennsylvania, New Jersey, Delaware, Texas, Florida, Marvland and Virginia. In 2011, the Company opened 31 new Medifast Weight Control
Centers and had a total of 70 locations in operation al vear-end. The centers offer a high-touch model including comprehens: ve Medifast programs
for weight loss and maintenance, customized patient counseling, and Inhmlym composition analysis. Medifast Weight Control Centers conduct
local advertising including radio, pnnt, television and web imtiatives. The centers also benefit from the nationally adverfised brand which
encourages walk-ins and referrals from its customers and other Medifast business channels.

In 2008, the Company began offering the clinic model as a franchise opportunity. ‘The Company currenily has franchisee centers located in
Alabama, Arizona, California, Louisiana, Minnesota, and Pennsylvania. At December 31, 2011, 30 franchise locations were in operation.

Moedifast currently offers the Medifast Weight Control Center franchise opportunity in all States except Hawaii, North Dakota, South Dakota, and
Wizseonsin under an approved [ranchise disclosure document (FIY). The FDD requires a suceessful applicant to develop a minimum of three
Medi st Weight Control Centers within a defined geographic area in the time frame set forth in the ares development agreement between Medifast
and the franchises.

Our franchise strategy depends upon on our franchisees’ active involvement in and management of Medifast Weight Control Center operations.
Candidates are revigwed for appropriate operational expenence and financial stability, including specific net worth and liquidity requirements.
Upon franchisee approval, they shall promptly select sites for the Centers and shall request Franchisor’s approval of such selection based on
guidelines, terms, and conditions.

A franchizee’s initial fee covers the cost of Company resources provided to train applicant and stafl, and determine territory for development. [T a
snccessiul applicant desires to open more than three centers in the designated temitory, there is an additional fee for each location over the three o
be developed. The Company provides imtial investment estimates in the FDI and cautions applicants considenng the franchise opportunity that
their actual expenses may vary from the estimates given. Legal disclosures are given and the applicant cannot sign the Agreement until he/she has
had 14 days to consider the FDID.

Prior (o the opening of each Medifast Center [ranchise established under the arca development agreement, the Company will do the [ollowing:
i, designate the Center’s Protected Territory.

i. il the Cnrn}'mn:,' huss meat a!muc]_'\-' a|1|1rm.'=:| a sile that the franchisee has selected before Hi.El!I'iI'IE the Franchise Agrn:ml:n!.. LI:H;EI‘III.E
the area within which the franchisee will locate the Center and approve the site the franchisee has selected for the location of the
Center,

iii. if the Company has not already approved # site before signing the Franchise Agreement. review and approve the franchisee lease or
purchase agreement for the site for the approved location.

iv. provide the franchisee with standard plans and specifications for the build-out of the Center along with a list of equipment and
improvements which the franchisee is required to purchase and install,

¥.  provide an initial training program.

vi. provide the franchisee on-site assistance and guidance for approximately three to five days during or ¢lose to the opening of the
Center.

vii. provide the franchise with online access to & password-protected, electronic version of the Medifast Weight Control Conters®
Franchise Operations Manual.

Mo products or equipment are provided al a discounted purchase price. In addition, the Company does nol ofler direel or indirect inancing. We do
not gunraniee lranchisee’s notes, leases or obligations,

The Company does not currently have a purchase option included in the franchise agreement. The Company does have the right of first refusal 1o
scquire 8 Cenfer if the franchises wishes to sell or defaults on their obligations. See Note 13, “Business Segments” of the inancial statements for a
detniled breakout of revenues, profit or loss, and total assetz of each of the Company’s business segments.



MEDMFAST WHOLESALE PHYSICIANS

Medifast physicians have been implementing the Medifast Program within their practice or elinic since 1980, These physicians earry an inventory
ol wholesale Medilast products and resell them to patients. They also provide appropriale medical monilonng, lesting, and supporl (or palicnls on
the Medifast Program. Management estimates that more than 20 000 physicians nationwide have recommended Medifast as a treatment for their
overweight patients since 1980, and over an estimated 1 million patients have used products at the recommendation of Medifast physicians to lose
and maintain their weight, Many Medifast physicians take advaniage of the Medifast Direct or the Take Shape For Life program lo suppori their
patient base.

The Company offers an additional in-house support program to assist customers that are consulting their pnmary care physician. Customers have
aceess to registered dietitians that provide program support and advice via a toll-free telephone help line, by email, and online chats, See Note 13,
“Pusiness Segments” of the financial statements for a detailed breakout of revenues, profit or loss, and t1o1al assets of cach of the Company’s
blisiness segments.



THE MEMMFAST® BRAND

Medifast enriches lives by providing innovative choices for lasting health through products and programs, Management estimates that Medifast has
been recommended by 20,000 physicians since 1980, Medifast ofters clinically proven product-offering programs for weight management, weight
mantenance, and long-term health through multiple channels of distribution. Medifast products are high-quality, portion-controlled meal-
replacement foods.

The Medifast Program is suitable for individuals with type 2 diabetes and offers products with a nuiritionally complete and low-glveemic
formulation. Partion-controlled, meal-replacement weighl-management programs are confiniing to gain popularity, a8 consumers search for a safe
and effective solution that provides balanced nutritton, quick weight loss, and valuable behavior-modification education

Clinical Research Overview

Medifast relies upon both clinical research studies that have been completed over the span of the last two decades, and retrospective analysis data
from itz Medifast clinics to support its “clinically proven™ elaim. In each study conducted by Medifasl, the examiner {ollows the scientifically
recognized and approved protocels set by the Institutional Review Board (“TRB™), a committee formally designated 1o approve, monitor, and review
biomedical and behavioral research involving humans with the aim to protect the nights and welfare of research subjects,  prior o initiating the
study. Those protocols deal with the study parameters and determination of a statistically valid sample of study participants. Upon conclusion of
the study, the examiner presents the proposed study conelusions with study results to IRB for independent third-party review and approval for future
publication or peer review. The following abstracts include both peer-reviewed research (consisting of prospective controlled clinieal trials and
retrospective sludies) and in<house clinical data (studies 7 and 8).

For ¢ach of the below peer-reviewed publications, the reviewers were chosen by the publishing journal, and except in the case of publication no. 1.
were not disclosed to Medifast. Each reviewer is independent and has no asscciation with Medifast or its affiliates.

Sample sizes for the studies deseribed below varied from 14 to 1,445 participants. The smallest study was a statistical review of patient charts,
while the largest study was a retrospective review of patient charts from a weight-loss elinie, which we believe allows for greater generalization of
the protocol used in the clinic as an effective weight-management program for those seeking weight loss. The remaining studies had sample sizes
ranging from 30 1o 217 participants.

Each study included a wide range of individuals as part of the study populations. All of the studies included both male and female participants,
excepl for study no. 8 below, which ineluded a sample of females only. Additionally, race or ethnieity was nol exelusory [or any ol the studies, and
the age range for inclusion across the studics included children, adolescents, and adults, allowing for adequate generalization and support for the
study conclusions. Each peer-reviewed publication included as part of its study design, a sample size and power caleulation to detect statistically
significant and clinically meaningful differences. Moreover, well-established statistical analvses, such as Paired and Student’s T-tests; Wileoxon
signed-rank tests; Random Effects Logistic Regression; and deseniplive siatistics (means and standard deviations) at the time of publieation were
used as part of the methodology and were vetted as pant of the pecr-review process. Conclusions drawn from the study results were further
evaluated and approved as part of the peer-review process.

As a whole, commonality of results from the studies do allow general conclusions for each study’s findings principally regarding Medifast products
and programs as safe and effective weight loss, with improvements in blood pressure and blood lipids for otherwise healthy, obese individuals,

Study |

Reference:;

Davis LM, Coleman CD, Kiel J, Rampolla J, Hutchisen T, Ford L, Anderson WS, Hanlon-Mitola A. “Efficacy of a meal replacement diet plan
compared 1o 3 food-based diet plan aflter 8 period of weight loss and weighl muntenanee: A mndomized controlled tnal.”* Nuiriiional Jowrnal 2010,
%11,

Purpose:

To examine the effect of Medifast™s meal-replacement program (MIY) on boady weight, body composition, and biomarkers of inflammation and
oxidative stress among obese individuals following a period of weight loss and weight maintenance compared 1o an isocalone, food-based diet (FB).

Research Methods:

The baseline sample consisted of 90 participants (64 women, 26 men). Participants were obese (BMI =300 kg/m2 =50.0 kg/m2) men and women
aged 18-65 who were inlerested in weight loss, but not actively involved in a weight-loss program or losing weight. Participants with known
allergies o soy, wheat, gluten, and nuts were excluded from the study because some Medifast meal replacements contain these ingredients. To limit
the elfeet of alcohol on calone intake and 115 polenbal eflect on comphanee, parbeipants were enrolled in the study if they consumed <14 alcoholic
beverages per week and agreed to avoid aleohol intake during the study. Participants were not currently using appetite-affecting medications (e.g.,
selective serotonin reuptake inhibitors (SSEIs), steroids, Ritalin), and were not pregnant or lactating. Participants were required to have a normal
electrocardiogram (EKG) and lab work within the past vear as well as the permission of their primary care provider to enroll in the study. Subjects
were reeruiled using (yers, newspaper adverlisements, and Crang™s List.



Exelusion entenia ineluded individuals that were sctively dieting, had chronie uncontrolled health problems (not ineluding obesity or dinbetes), had
a pacemaker or other internal electronic medical deviee; reported schizophrenia, history of bipolar disorder, or a current major depressive disorder,
had dependence on aleohel or sedative-hvpnotic drugs (e.g., benzodinzepines), had o cognitive impairment severe enough o preclude informed
consent, or who were currently taking weight-loss or appetite-affecting medications. Major eating disorders were screened using the Eating
Adtitudes Test (EAT). A score of =30 was exclusionary.

Results:

Weight loss at 16 weeks was significantly better in the Medifast group (MD) versus the food-based group (FB) (12.3% vz 6.9%), and while
significantly more weight was regained during weight maintenance on MDD versus FB, overall greater weight loss was achieved on MDD versus FB.
Significantly more of the MDD participants lost =53% of their initial weight at week 16 (93% vs. 55%) and week 40 (62% va. 30%4). There was no
difference in sabiely observed between the two groups dunng the weight-loss phase. Sigmbicant improvements i body composibon were also
observed in MD participants compared to FB st week 16 and week 40. Al week 40, both groups experienced improvements in biochemical
outcomes and other clinical indicators.

The biochemical ouleome used to measure inflammation in this study was C-renclive Prull:in (CRP). Both the MDD and FB l:xp:r'trru:ud u :llgniﬁuanl
improvement in C-reaclive protein (CRF) al week 40. However, when a dicholomous variable was used to charsclenze baseline CEP levels as low
or high, the only sub-group lo experience a significant decrease over the 40 weeks was the Medifast group, with high bascline CRI? levels. The
conclusion regarding reduction (i.c., improvement) in inflammation was based on these resulls,

The hochemieal ouleame used to measure oxidative stress in this study was urne hpd perosades (ULP). The MD expenenced a sigmficant
decrease in ULP at week 40, whereas the food-based group did not.  Additionally, when regression analysis was used 1o further examine the
relationship between LT at weck 40, there was a significant mean decrease over time in the MID that was not found for the food-based group. The
eonclusion regarding reduction (i.e., improvement) in oxidative stress was based on these results,

Conclusion:

Our data suggest that the meal-replacement diet plan evaluated was an effective strategy for producing robust initial weight loss and for achieving
improvements in a number of health-related parameters during weight maintenance, including inflammation and oxidative stress, two key factors
maore recently shown 1o underhie our most commen shronic diseases

This research was funded by the Company

The 16-week resulls of this study were presented al Experimental Biology, 2000, The d40-week resulls were presented al the Food and Nulnlion
Conlerence and Expo, 2009,

Joumal Deseniption:

Nutritiom Jowrnal 15 an Open access, Fncr-m'icw:rd, anline j::rurmll that considers mm1um:ri11l5 within the field of human nuinton. The assumed
viewer base is nulrition professionals and researchers. The audience size is not available.

Study 2

Relerenee;

Cheskin L, et al. “Efficacy of meal replacements versus a standard food-based diet for weight loss in iype 2 diabetes: A controlled climeal trial.”
The Diabetes Educaror. 34(1):118-127, Jan/l'eb 2008,

Purpose:

To compare the efTicacy of a portion-controlled meal-replacement diet (PCLY) to o standard diet (S1) (based on recommendations by the American
Dhabetes Association) in achieving and mauntaining weight loss among 119 obese men and women with tvpe 2 diabetes mellitus,

Reszearch Methods:

Participunts were men and women aged 18 to 70, dingnosed by standard eritenia with type 2 dinbetes ai least three months prior to enrollment, and
were overweight or obese, with a BMI of 25 1o 40 kg/'m2. 1 they were currenily taking medications 1o control diabetes, a stable dose Tor at least
three months prior to randomization was required. Panicipants needed the permission of their primary care provider and a normal FKG, or
abnormalities that were deemed n'uml[c::u]!}r nmphll:r]c.

Individuals with unconirolled health problems (aside from obesity and dinbetes), type 1 diabetes, bulimin nervoss, laxative/substance abuse, alcohol
infake =10 drinks per week, or an uncontrolled psychiatric disorder (e.g.. major depression, bipolar disorder) were excluded. Depression was
asscssed using the Beck Depression Inventory: a score of =15 was exclusionary. Major eating disorders were sereened using the Eating Anitudes
Test (EAT). A score of =30 was exclusionary. Use of appetile-alfecting medications (¢.g., cerain anlidepressants, steroids) unless on a stable dose
for greater than three months or weight-loss drugs were excluded, a3 were women who were lactaling, pregnant, or seeking pregnancy,

Ome hundred twenty-six overweight or obese adults with wpe 2 diabetes desiring weight loss were recruited by poster and newspaper
announcements, and sereened during 2002 and 2003, One hundred nineteen individuals (53 men, 66 women) were enrolled, stratified by gender and
BMI (=25 and <30, =30 and <35, and =35 and <40), then randomized using block sequences chosen by o random-number generator {with allocation



revealed when the participants were assigned 1o a group by the study coordinator). Seven participants withdrew immediately following sereening,
for a final sample of 112 (49 men, 63 women).

Results:

Using intention-to-treal analyses, weight loss at 34 wecks and weight maintenance al 86 weeks was significantly better on PCD versus SD.
Approximately 40% of the PCD participants lost =5% of their initial weight compared with 12% of those on the SIX. Significant improvements in
biochemical and metabolic measures were observed at 34 weeks in both groups, The retention rate and sell=reported ease of adherence in the PCD
group were significantly higher throughout the study.

OF the 112 participants who began the diet, 48 completed the 3d-week active weight-loss phase (31 of 54 from the PCD group and 17 of 58 from the
81D group: 57.4% vs. 29.3%), After the 34-week active phase, weight loss amongst completers was 6.84% (7.3 = 6.2 kg) on the PCD vs. 3.70% (3.7
+ 3.2 kg) on the SI). Nineteen of 31 (61.320) PCT parbicipants lost =5% of therr imiinl body weight ve. 4 of 17 (23.5%) 813 parhicipants. Mine of 31
(29.03%) PCD participants lost =10% vs. | of 17 (5.88%) 5D participants. BMI was significantly reduced in both groups at 34 weeks, but the
change in BMI was significantly greater in the PCD vs. SD group.

ﬂisniﬁ:unll}' more PFCD lmrh'cip.unls were able to reduce their use of medications o control type 2 dinbetes after 34 weeks. OF those p.urﬁl:ipunlm
beginning the study using medications for blood-glucose control, 7 of 29 (24.1%) PCD participants reduced their use of medieations compared to 0
of 13 (07%) SD participants.

Conclusion:

Participants using meal replacements lost twice the amount of weight and were more likely to complete the program than SD participants.
Approximately 25% of the PCD participants reduced their blood glucosc-lowening medications after the initial weighi-loss phase, while no
participants in the ST group achieved this.

This study was published in the January/February 2008 1ssue of The Diabetes Educator. The peer-reviewed joumal 15 the official journal of the
Amernican Association of Diabetes Edueators. The study was also presented ai the Amenican Dhabeles Association’s 65th Annual Scientific Session,
2005,

Journal Description:

The Diabetes Edvcaior {TDE) is the official journal of the American Association of Diabetes Educators (AADE). It is a peer-reviewed joumnal
intended to serve as n reference source for the science and art of dinbetes management, TDE publishes original articles that relate to aspeets of
patient care and education, clinical practice and/or research, and the multidisciplinary profession of diabetes education as represented by nurses,
dietitians, physicians, pharmacists, mental health professionals, podiatrists, and exercise physiologists.

Thomson Hewters 2008 Journal Citation Reports®
2008 Ranking: 77/93 in Endocrinology & Metabalism
2008 Impact Factor: 1.761

Study 3
Reference:

Haddock CE, Poston WSC, Forevt JP, DiBartolomes 1) “Effectivencess of Medifast supplements combined with obesity pharmacotherapy: A
climical program evaluation.™ Eafing awd Wieight Disorders. 13:95-101; 2008.

Purpose:

To evaluate the long-term impact of Medifast meal-replacement supplements (MMRS) combined with appetite-suppressant medication (ASM)
among participants who received 52 weeks of treatment as part of a medically supervised weight-control program,

Fesearch Methods:

This study provides a systematic clinical program evaluation of weight-loss data from a medicallv-supervised weight control clinic. Data was
abtained fram clinic medical charts. The objective was to determine the clinical outcomes of a combined diet and medication protocol using MMRS
in conjunction with ASMS under medical supervision. De-identified data were analyzed by rescarchers from the University of Missouni — Kansas
City (UMEC). The protecol for this study was approved by the Social Sciences Institutional Review Board at UMEKC.

Participants were part of a fee-based medical elinie for the purpose of losing weight using a diet-medication protocol. Exelusion critenia from this
study included enrollment 1n treatment for less than 12 weeks, less than 18 vears of age, current use of MAO inhibifors, cardiac discase, sovere
hypertension, kidney disease, renal failure. asthma, liver disease. cancer therapy, and eating disorders. All exelusion eniteria were assessed during
the initial patient’s higtory and physical exam and recorded in their chart. All clinical exams were conducted by a physician or nurse practitioner.
Clinical and weight-loss data were derived from a total of 1,445 patient medical charts that were not excluded based on the criteria previously
presented from a total sampling pool of approximately 9 948 records, Data were extracted by trained rescarch assistants and only relevant clinical
data and limited demographic information were collected in a manner so as to protect the identity of patients. Characteristics of the resulting sample
of patients are presented below.

Results:



Participants who completed 52 weeks of treatment experienced substantial weight losses at 12 (-9.4 = 5.7kg), 24 (-12.0 = B.1kg), and 52 wecks
(12.4 + 92kg), and all measures were significantly different from baseline weight (p<0.001 for all contrasts) for both true completers (n=324) and
for ITT analysis (n=1.351). Fifly percent of patients remained in the program at 24 weeks and nearly 25% were still participating at one vear.

Conclusions:

The combimnation of MMRES and ASMS produced weight-loss results that were better that those typically repoerted for obesity pharmacotherpy in
both short- and long-term studies, and also better than those reported for partial meal-replacement programs,

This study was published in the June 2008 izssue of Fatmg and Weight Disorders. Results of thiz study were presented at the American Society off
Bariatric Physicians’ annial meeting in May 2007,

Journal Description:

Earing and Weight Disorders - Siudies on Anorexia, Bulimia, and Obesity 15 a scientific journal whose main purpose 1s to creale an international
forum devoted to the several sectors of eating disorders and obesity and the significant relations between them.

Study 4
Reference:;

Davis LM, Coleman CD, Andersen WS, Cheskin L) *The effect of metabolism-boosting beverages on 24-hr energy expenditure."The Clpen
Nutrition Jowrnal, 2:37-41;, 2008,

Purpose:

To test the effects of thermogenme meal-replacement beverages (TMEB) containing 90 mg of EGCG and 100 mg of caffcine on resting-encrgy
expenditure (REE}.

Research Methods:

Thirty adulizs (19 women, 11 men between the ages of 18 and 65 vears) were stratified into three groups: lean (n=10, BMI 21.5 = 2.1);
overweight/'ebese (OW) (n=10, BMI 29.8 & 2.7). or weight maintainers {(WM) (n=10, BMI 28.8 £ 4.0). WM had maintained a weight loss of =5%
for at least a three-month Fl:rim:l. Fu"uwing an n“:rnisl'll fast, baseline measurements, im:lul;lins REE via indirect cajnrimul:r:,'. were p:rl'nrrn:d_
Exclusion crilena meluded current eigarette smoking, consuming =14 aleoholic beverages per week (or any the day prior to study days), chronic
uncontrolled health problems (not including obesity or diabetes), drug or alechol dependence, mental illness (schizophrenia, bipolar disorder,
current major depressive disorder), taking medications that would affect appetite or metabolism (e.g., steroids, Ritalin), active dicting: pregnancy or
lactation: and allergy to wheat, gluten, soy, or nuts.

REE was repeated at 30, 60, 90, and 120 minutes after consuming a TMRB. Appetite was assessed via visual analogue seale at baseline, 30 minutes,
and 120 minutes after consuming the TMREB.

Resulis:

Mean 24-hour REE was increased 5.9 = 2.5% overall (p=0.000), 5.7 = 3.1% among lean subjects (p=0.0002), 5.3 = 1.4% among OW subjects
(00007, and 6.8 = 2.7% among WM subjects (p=0.0007). Appelite was significantly redoced 30 minutes affer consuming the TMREB (p=0.0002).

Conclusion:

The study resulis show that ingestion of thermogenie meal-replacement beverages increase resting energy metabolism and decreases appetite. The
I’:m:lllngs Elrlme;l:,.' suggesl TMEBs are a I:mmiains w:iEhl—cu'ntn}l tool. These decreases in energy intake and mereases in energy r.xpcml:ilm may
tranzlate into more sustainable weight loss and weight maintenance in both the short and long-term.

This study was presented as a poster session at Experimental Diolagy, 2008,

Journal Deseription:

The Open Nutrition Jowrnal is an Open Access online journal, which publishes research articles, reviews, and letters in all areas of experimental and
clinical nutrition research, The articles printed in this journal are accessible to anyvone and evervone.

;l! !! d!. E
Reference:

Cheskin LI, et al. “A RCT comparing balanced energy deficit diets with or without meal replacements for weight loss and maintenanee among
children dieting alone or with a parent.™ Jolns Hopking Bloomberg School of Public Health, Center for Human Nutrition, Department of
International Health.

Purpose:

To compare the safely and efficacy of supplemental Medifast porion-controlled meal replacements (MRx) 1o a USDA Food Guide Pyramid-based
diet among children dicting alone or with o parent.



Research Methods:

80 overweight (BMI > 95ith percentile on BMI-for-age growih charts) bovs and girls between the ages of 8 and 15 vears and 40 parents were
recruited from the Greater Baltimore area by newspaper ad to participate in an 18-month randomized contralled trial with a six-month weight-lass
phase and 2 one-year maintenance phase to compare the safety and efficacy of MEs to a standard diet without MREs. Both weight-loss diets (MR and
USDA) were 20% energy-restricted (500 keal deficit). Those randomized to the MR diet incorporated three MEs a day dunng the active weight-
loss phase and two MRs a day during the mainienance phase, Subjects were furiher randomized to dieting alone or with a pareni.

Results:

By I'TT analysis, dieting alone vs, with a parent or food vs. MR made no difference in weight outeome, However, following initial weight loss (six
months) and one-vear maintenance (18 months), significant benefits were seen in the MR group in BMI percentile (0 months=98.8 + 1.0, 6
months=96.6 + 3.2, 18 months=96.4 + 3.4) body fat { 5.9% @ 6 months, 5.3% @ 18 months), total ¢halesteral ( 6.7% @ & months, 5.6% @ 18
months): LDL { 19.28% @ & months, 7.9% @& 18 months). and triglycendes ( 23.6% @ 6 months, 23.3% (@) 18 months). No sigmficant between-
group differences, differences in growth rates, or adverse events were observed.

Conclusions:

Among overweight 813 year-old children, dicting with or without a parent, meal replacements were as saft and effective as a USDA food-based
diet for weight loss and maintenance. BMI percentile in children on the meal replacement (MR) diet decreased 2.2% at six months and 2.4% at 18
months. Bady fat in ehaldren on the MR diet decreased 5.9% at v months and 5.3% at 18 months. The stiudy results for ehildren on the USDA diet
saw comparable decreayes in BMI percentile and body fat percentage. Similar resulls were seen wilth other anthropometrics studied. Dieting with a
parcnt also made no difference in weight outcomes, The safety of an MR dict in children was determined by the absence of adverse events in the
children during the entire 18-moenth period of the study. It was determined from these data that an MR diet in children was both safe and efficacious.

This study was presented as o poster session al Expenimental Biology, 2007,

Joumal Description:

Founded in 1912, the Federation of Amencan Socictics for Experimental Biology (FASEDR) was originally crealed by three independent scientilic
organizations to provide a forum in which to hold educational meetings, develop publications, and disseminate biological research results. FASEBR
publizhes its own journal as well as helps other non-profit organizations publish their own journals. FASEB aims to provide a wealth of information
nol just o scientific organizations, but also o the gencral public, so that more people remain informed about the issues and policies affecting the
advancement of biological and bicimedical sciences.

Study 6

Reference:

Matalon V. “An evaluation of weight loss following a carbohydrate and fal restricted dict with appetfite suppressant and dietary supplementation.”
The Bariatrician, |(-13; 2000,

Purpose:

To assess the safety and effectiveness of a weight-loss regimen consisting of a carbohydrate- and fat-restncted diet supplemented with an appetite
suppressant, a dietary supplement, and a liqud protein drink (Medifast) in an open-label tnial.

Research Methods:

A total of 47 subjects were enrolled in the study. Patients were considered eligible for the trial if they were over the age of 18, and were considered
overweight or obese based on body mass index (BML) = 25.0 kg/m2.

Results:

OFf 47 patients enrolled. 24 {51%) completed six months using the dictary regimen preseribed. Data was analyzed for all patients whe were treated
with the diet, as well as for the subset of patients who completed the entire study peried. Baseline and six-month evaluations of body weight (1bs),
houdy fat (%), BMI (Kg/m2), lean body mass, water weight, and blood pressure were performed. Al six months, statistically significant differences
were found for body weight (p=0.001), percent body fat (p<0.001), BMI (p<0.001), lean body mass (p<0.001), water weight (p=0.01), and body
systolic (p=0.003) and diastolic (p=0.001) blood pressure,

Conclusions:

The study demonstrated that a carbohydrate- and fat-restricted program supplemented by a natural appetite suppressant can lead 1o progressive
weight loss of comparable value to preseribed pharmacologic agents at the time of study. Patients experienced statistically significant decreases in
overall body weight, percent body fat, BMI, lean body mass, total body water, and both systolic and diastolic blood pressure,

Journal Deseription:

American Society of Baniatric Phyvsicians (ASBP) is a leading national professional organization providing physicians and other health professionals
with education in the medical management of weight loss and related medical conditions.



Study 7
Reference:

Crowell MD, Cheskin LJ. “Multicenter evaluation of health benefits and weight loss on the Medifast weight management program.”The Johns
Hopkins University School of Medicine.

Purpose:

To retrospectively evaluate the efficacy of a medically supervised, protein-supplemented modified program (Medifast) for weight reduction and to
evaluate the impact of weight reduction on coexisting health problems,

Results Conelusions:

The results of the study concluded that medically supervised, protein-sparing meal-replacement programs offer a safe and effective means of weight
reduction and are accompanied by significant improvements in coexisting health problems. Of samples taken, males lost an average of 67 Ibs and
females lost an average of 47 Ibs during fasting. The study found significant reductions in total cholesteral and triglveerides, sysiolic and diastolic
blood pressure. and normalized blood pressure in hyperiensive patients.

A siatistical review of patient chars, unpublished data on file. 1993,

Study 8

Reference:

Davis LM, Cheskin L1“Dietary intervention using Medifast meal replacements in pre-banainc surgery patients."Johns Hopkins Weighi
Management Center: 2006.

Purpose:

N=14 severcly obese patients— 13 females (11 African Americans, two Caucasians) and one male (Caucasian}—with a mean BMI of 64.14 kg/m2
(range 40.2kg/m2 to 91.7kg/m2) entered a six-month weight-control program at the Johns Hopkins Weight Management Center. All patients were
Medicaid (Priority Partners) recipients. The program provided a comprehensive approach to weight control focused on diet. behavior, and physical
activity. Portion-controlled meal replacements { MRg) supplied by Medifast were utilized as part of the dietary-behavior intervention. All subjects
met with a licensed dietihan and wore presenibed a 1,000-1 2000 keal/day dict plan incorporating up to six MEs‘day, Only one subject chose not (o
incorporate meal replacements as part of a low-calorie diet plan. The average intake of meal replacements was 2.5-3 per day through the duration of
the study.

Results/Conelusions:

After six months on the program, patients lost an average of 2673 |hs (-2 80kg'm2) and 696% body weight, and reported a high level of
satisfaction with their diet plan, Program completers at one month were N=13, at three months N=12, and six months N=10.

A statistical review of patient charts, unpublished data on file. 2006,
Studv 9
Reference:

Tehemofl A, Starling B, Tumer A, et al. “Impaired capacity to lose visceral adipose tissue during weight reduction in obese postmenopausal women
with the TrphdArg Bi-adrenoeeptor gene variant ™ Diabetes. 49:1709-1713; 2000,

Purpose:

To examine the effect of the TrpédArg gene variant on wotal and visceral adipose tissue loss, and cardiovascular risk factors in response to weight
reduction ameng 24 obese women (age 57 £ 4 years) in a 13 £ 3 month weight-reduction program of 1,200 keal with or without the inclusion of
Medi fust.

Rescarch Methods:

Obese, pcmlmm:puuau] Caueasian women in Lhe grealer Hmlinglﬂn, WVermonl aren were recruited h}r local sdvertisement. A lotal of 491 obese
women were sereened, of which 38 were heterozygotes for the Trp6dArg variant (allele frequency 0,109, OF this imiial cohort, 24 obese women (1
Argtdarg homozyeote, 10 TrpédArg heterozygotes, and 13 normal homozyvgotes) completed the weight-loss program. Inclusion criteria were the
cessation of menstruation for at least one vear, a BMI =27 kg/m2, and physical inactivity. Women also had to be nonsmokers and non-diabetic.
Other exclusion criteria included atherosclerosis, hypertension (diastolic blood pressure =90 mmHg), orthopedic limitations or history of fractures,
weight loss/gain over the previous six months, or thyroid or pituitary disease. Screening for the presence of the TrpbdArg vanant was performed
after subjects gave their informed consent,

Resulls:

Mo baseline differences were noted in adiposity measurements, glucose disposal, and lipid profiles among carners and noncarriers of the vanant
allele. Whether women were carriers or nonearriers of the Trp6dArg allele, significant weight loss (-16.4 £ 5.0kg vs. -14.1 + 62kg, NS) and
reductions in body fat (<100 + 5.2 vs, <115 + 3.9%kg, NS) were observed in response to a caloric-restricted program with or without Medifast,



However, loss of visceral adipose tissue was 43% lower in carriers of the TrpbdArg allele compared with nonecarriers (46 + 27 vs. 81 = 51 em2_P
= 0.05). Furithermore, there was less improvement in the total cholesterol-to-HDL cholesterol ratio (-0.18 + 0.54 vs, -0.72 = 0.56, P = 0.04) in
carriers compared with noncarners of the allele. Although glucose disposal improved in both groups, there was no difference in the magnitude of
improvement between carmiers and noncarriers of the variant allele.

Conclusion:

Older women earrying the TrptdArg B3-adrenoceplor gene vanant have an impaired capaecity to lose visceral adipose hissue in response to a
calorie-restricted diet.

Journal Description:

Diabetes pubhishes onginal rescarch about the physiology and pathophysiology of diabetes mellitus. Submitted manusenpts can report any aspect of
laboratory, animal, or human rescarch. Emphasis 1s on investigative reporis focusing on areas such as the pathogenesis of diabetes and its
complications, normal and patholagie pancreatie islet function and imermediary metabolism, pharmacological mechanismas of drug and hormone
aclion, and biochemical and molecular aspects of normal and abnormal biological processes.

Scientific Advisory Board
In September 2008, Medifast anmounced the formation of its Scientific Advisory Board.

The Board consists of a multi-disciplinary panel that serves as the foundation for scientifically-valid, consumer-centnie, high quality innovations for
]aal"mg health, The mission of the !:htr:urd 15 o hclp Bu::l-: Medifast in mu.Hng informed decisions n:garding rnrm:“rl.'.uj,| ||ulriti1.mu|, and scieniific matters
by providing experlise and information on research and emerging trends.

The work of this cross-disciplinary group builds on Medilas1's heritage of medically sound approaches o weight loxs, and the incorporation of
leading-edge clinical rescarch inlo the Company™s produets and programs.

Medifast Scientific Advisory Board

Lawrence Cheskin, M.ID., F.A.CP.
Direetor, the Johns Hopking Weight Management Center, Baltimore, MDD

Debra L. Miller, Ph.D.
Drirector of Nutrition, the Hershey Company

John P. Foreyt, PhID.
Direetor, Behavioral Medicine Research Center, Baylor College of Medicine

Guy H. Johnson, PhDD.
President, Johnson Nutrtion Solutions, LLC
Executive Directar, the MeCormick Science Institute

Sylvia B. Rowe, M.A.

President, S.R. Strategy, LI.C

Adjunet Professor, University of Massachusells Ambherst

Adjuncl Prolessor, Tulls Friedman School of Nutrilion Science and Policy

JelT S, Volek, PhD., R.ID
Assoeiate Professor, Department of Kinesiology, Umversity of Connecticut

Walter Eugene Egerton 111, M.ID.
Chief Medical Officer. Maryland General Hospital

COMPETITION

There are many different kinds of diet products and programs within the highly competitive weighi-loss industry. These include & wide variety of
commercial weight-loss programs, pharmaceutical produets, weight-loss books, sell=help diets, diclary supplements, appetite suppressants, and meal
replacement shakes and bars, Medifast"s identified peers and competitors in the general health and wellness diet industry include NutriSystem Inc.,
eDiets.com, Herbalife Lid., TSANA Health Sciences, and Wcighl Watchers International, Inc.

The Company believes il can compeie in this competitive markel becavse iis products have been clinically tested and proven in climical studies
conducted by rescarchers from Johns Hopkins Umiversity and other major inshitutions, and because its products have been safely and effectively
used by customers and recommended by physicians for over 31 years. Medifast has been on the cutting edge of product development with soy-
based nutritional and weight-management products sinee 1980, These produets are formulated with high-quality, low-calorie, low-fat ingredients
that provide alternatives to fad diets or medicinal weight-loss remedies.



The Company’s diverse multi-channel distribution strategy makes the Medifast brand available through multiple support channels, which target
different customer needs. Medifast practitioners offer Medifast to patients through wholesale sales or an innovati ve home delivery model_ and some
practitioners choose o preseribe appetite-suppression diet drugs to patients in conjunction with a Medifast-based diet. Medifast Direct via the
website and call center serves customers with free online support and community tools and access to nutritionists and customer service
representatives, The Take Shape For Life division offers the personal support of a Health Coach that is often a person who has achieved success on
the Medifast Program and has tumed their success into o business opportumity, generating inecremental revenue for the Company through
relabonship marketing. Medifast Weight Control Centers ofler a supervised and struetured model for customers who prefer more accountability and
personalized counseling on the program. The Medifast Program alone is a mild Ketogenic diet that naturally suppresses appetite and eliminates
hunger without other therapics for many people.

PRODUCTS

The Company offers a vanety of weight amd discase managenvent products under the Medifast® and Essential 1% brands and for select private label
customer. The Medifast hine ingludes Medifast® 35 Shakes, Medifast® 70 Shakes, Medifast® Plus for Appetite Suppression Shakes, Medifast®
Plus for Diabetics Shakes, Medifast® Plus for Joint Health Shakes, , Essential 18 Calorie Burn Drinks, Essential 1% Calorie burn Flavor Infusers,
Medifast® Antioxidant Shakes, Essential 1 ® Antioxidant Flavor Infusers, Medifast® Maintenance Bars, Medifast Crunch Bars, Medifast Blends,
Medifast® Soups, Medifast® Home-style Chili, Medifast® Oatmeal, Medilast® Pudding, Medifast® Eggs, Medilfast® Sloppy Joe, Medifasi® Sofl
Bakes, Medifast® Hot Cocoa, Medifast® Cappuccino, Medifast® Chai Latte, Modifast® Ieed Teas, Medifast® Fruit Dninks, Medifast® Pretecls,
Medi fast® Hites, Medifazt®, Browme, Medifast® Pancakes, Medifasi® Soft Serve, Medifast® Soy Cnsps, Medifasi® Crackers, Essential |® Super
Omega 3, Essential 18 Digestive Health, and Essential |8 Sleep Health,

Medifast nutritional products are formulated with ligh-quality, low-calone, and low-lat ingredients. Many Medifast products are soy based and are
fully fortified to contain 24 vitaming and minerals, as well as other nutnents essential for good health.

Medifast brand swareness continues io ﬂ.paru:l thmugh the Cump.uny'!i mu:rIu:Iing mlmpa.ign!, pn:lduut l.lcw:lnpml:nl. line extensions, and the
Company™s emphasis on quality customer service, technical support and publications developed by the Company’s marketing stall.  Medilast
products have been proven to be effective for weight and disease management in clinical studies conducted by rescarchers from the 1.5,
government and Johns Hopkins University. The Company has continued to develop its sales and marketing operations with gualified management
and innovative programs. The Company’s facility in Owings Mills, Maryland manufactures all powders and subeontracts the production of ils
Ready-To-Drink products, bars, pretzels, pulls, erackers, soy ensps, and supplement produels.

NEW PRODUCTS

The Company expanded the Medifast product line in 2011 by introducing several new products, The produets introduced ineluded the Medifast
Spiced Pancake, an addition to the Pancake line already including Original and Chocolate Chip varieties, The perfect accompaniment 1o these
products, Medifast released its five calorie, Sugar-Free Syrup, packed in individual packets of seven, The introduction of gluten-free Medifast BREQ
Bites and Medifast Cheese Pizza Bites make greal additions to the Medifast To Go! line. For those eraving breakfast-style foods, Medifast produced
Original-Style Egps with egg whites and Southwest-Style with egg whites, easily made in the microwave or stovetop. Also added wazs Medifast
Orange Blend, a zingy citrus drink that bolsters the current cold drinks category in Medifast’s product linc. The new Medifast Chocolate Chip Soft
Hake is a “[reshly baked™ cookic based on the populanty of the Medifast Brownie; the package comes complete with travs designed to suppord
preparing the produet in the mierowave or conventional oven. An American favorite, Medifast's Hearty Vegetanan Sloppy Joe adds a robust flavor
i the current Soaups, Chili, and Stew line of producis. All products are full meal replacements within the Medifast Program, and support Medifast's
goal of continuing to offer a diverse selection of nutritionally balanced, delicious products.

The Company also upgraded its Aceessories line adding the Medifast Blender, complete with the capabilities to crush ice or chop fowd, as well as an
enhanced portability with included dishwasher-safe, BPA-free, plastic traveling cups.



MARKETING

In 20011, the Medifast Direct channel continued to build and leverage its core Medifast brand through multiple marketing strategies (o ifs farget
audiences. Customer acquisition strategies include national and regional advertising in print magazines, television commercials, web advertising,
direct mailings, radio commercials, and DJ wstimonials. In addition, the Company executed strategic public relations effons 1o secure local and
national editorial placements to raise brand awareness. Medifast has also developed a comprehensive social media strategy utilizing Facebook,
Twitter, YouTube, blogger endorsements, and more, These mediums were used 10 wrget new customers by stressing Medifast's quick, easy, and
safe approach to weight management. Direct mail campaigns, email newsleters and outbound calling programs were utilized to reactivate,
encourage and support existing customers. Medifast continued to ¢nhance the Medifast website, including adding lfeatures in the My Medifast
community which offers meal planning, community message boards, blogs, and a robust library of information. In 2007, the Company launched an
autoshap lovalty program where customers receive discounts and rewards with automaftic shipments of Medifast Meals on a monthly basis. Late in
2011, Medifast updated this program to enrich and streamline the consumer experience—with free customizable meals, discounts, a free gilt, and
free standard shipping with minimum purchase. Both the MyMedifast community enhancements and auwtoship programs contribute 1o the retention
of Medifast customers through improved compliance with the program.

The Company also distributes its products through the Take Shape For Lile network of independent Health Coaches, which is a form of person-lo-
person direct selling. Take Shape For Life Health Coaches refer clients to their replicated website or to the Company’s in-house call center to
purchase product. The Client purchases the Medifast product and it is shipped directly to their home or designated address, Our Health Coaches do
not handle payment and are not required to hold inventory for resale. In addition, our Health Coaches pay the same price for product as their elients,
There are no special product discounts for Health Coaches. The concept of network marketing iz based on the strength of personal recommendations
from friends, co-workers, neighbors, or clese acquaintances who frequently have suceessfully utilized the Medifast weight-loss program. Our
Health Coaches provide coaching and support to their clients throughout the weight-loss amd weighl-maintenance process while the client remains
on the Program.,

SALES
The Company s Sales division handles lwo pnimary areas:

Fhysician Sales: The sales team is responsible (or prospecting medical accounts, clinies, hospitals, and HMOs, Duning 2011, the sales team
atlended a number of medical professional trude shows, which expanded Medifiust's penctration of the medical weight-loss business segment.

Medifast Weight Control CentersFranchises: Counselors at our brick-and-mortar centers sell Medifast products and full-service programs which
include weekly one-on-one counscling sessions, medical monitering, and physician oversight. Franchise sales seek qualified pariners to develop
defined market lernitories.

MANUFACTURING

Jason Pharmaceuticals, Inc., the Company’s wholly owned manufactunng subsidiary, produces over 55% of the Medifast products in their
manufacturing facility in Owangs Mills, Maryland. The Company purchased the plant in July 2002 for $3.4 million and has added production
capacity with additional investment in blending and packaging equipment. The new equipment has significanily improved the Company's
production capability, while also improving overall efficiencies. The remaining 43% of our products are manufactured by third pariy vendors in
accordance with Medifast proprietary formulas,

The facility is regulated and inspeeted by Food & Drug Administration (FDA) and Maryland State Department of Health and Mental Hygiene.

GOVERNMENTAL REGULATION HISTORY

The formulation, processing, packaging, and labeling of the Company's products are subject to regulation by several federal agencies, but
principally by the Food and Drug Administration (the "FDA"). The Company must comply with the standards, Inbeling and packaging
requirements imposed by the FA for the marketing and sale of foods and nutritional supplements. Applicable regulations prevent the Company
from representing in its literature and labeling that its products produce or ereate medicinal effects or possess drug-related charactenistics. The FDA
could, in certain cireumslances, require the reformulation of certain products to meel new standards, require the recall or discontinuation of certain
products not capable of reformulation, or require additional record keeping, expanded documentation of the properties of certain products, expanded
or difterent labeling, and scientific substantiation. 1T the FIDXA believes the products are unapproved drugs or food additives, the FDA may initiale
similar enforcement proceedings. Any or all such requirements could adversely afTect the Company's operations and its financial condition,

The Federal Trade Commission (*FTC™) has principal regulatory control over the Company’s advertising. To the extent that sales of foods and
nutritional supplements may constitute improper trade practices or endanger the safety of consumers, the operations of the Company may be subject
to the regulations and enforcement powers of the FTC. and the Consumer Product Safety Commission. In early 2012, the newly formed federal
agency Consumer Finanee Protection Bureau (CFPE) was sctivated which may prove o have some regulatory authority over aspects of cerlain
business functions for many businesses in the United Stotes including the Company, The Company's activities are also regulaied by vanious
agencies of the states and localities in which the Company's products are sold.

PRODUCT LIABILITY AND INSURANCE

The Company, like other producers and distributors of ingested products, faces an inherent nsk of exposure to product Liability claims in the event
that, among other things, the use of its products results in injury, The Company maintains insurance against product liability elaims with respect to



the pmdunts it manufactures. With respect to the retail and direct marketing distribution of products produced by others, the Company's prineipal
form of insurance consists of armangements with each of its suppliers of those produets to name the Company as beneficiary on each of such
vendor's product liability insuranee policies. The Company does not buy produets from suppliers who doe not maintain such coverage,

EMPLOYEES

As of December 31, 2011, the Company s subsidianes employed 860 full-time employees, of whom 287 were engaged in manufacturing,
warehouse management, and shipping, and 573 in marketing, administrative, Medifast Weight Contrel Centers, call center and corporate support
functions. None of the employees are subject to a collective bargaining agreement with the Company. All emplovees are emploved by either Jason
Pharmaceuticals, Inc. or Jason Properties, LLC.

INFORMATION SYSTEMS INFRASTRUCTURE

Ohir websites are based on internally developed software and other third party software, are hosted in Baltimore, Maryland at Dataloint

(www datapointine com’ a SSAELS and PCI-DSS compliant co-location facility. This facility provides redundant network connections,
uninterruptible power supplies, physical and fire secunity and diesel generated power back up for the equipment on which our websites rely upon.
Chr servers and our nefwork are monitored 24 hours a dav, seven days a week,

We use a vanety of security lechniques (o profect our confidential customer data, including regularly scheduled penetration secunty lests on our
website, When our customers place an order or aceess their account information, we use an Extended Validation sccure sockets layer (EV 85L) 10
encrvpt and transmit infermation, Our SSL eertificates encrypt all information entered before 1t 1s sent to our server. We have a secondary firewall
layer of security between our customer facing wehsites and the databaszes which house their information. All eustomer data is protected against
unauthonzed access. We use VenSign, Chase Payvmentech and HackerSale soflware (o secure our credil card ranssctions.,

As our operations grow in both size and scope, we will confinuously need to improve and upgrade our information systems and infrastrscture while
maintaining the reliability and integrity of them. In 2010 we implemented a redundant MPLS (Multiprotecol Label Switching) network across our
organization. This allowed for improved inter-connectivity and redundancy for each of our corporate locations.

AYAILABLE INFORMATION

Cwur principal office is located at 11445 Cronhill Dnive, Owings Mills, MD 21117, Ouwr telephone number at this office is (410) 581-8042, Our
corporate website is located at htpe Vv choosemedifast.com. Our Annual Report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current repons
on Form 8-K and amendments to reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13{a) and 15{d) of The Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, are also available free of charge on our website, as soon as reasonably practicable after such material is filed with, or furnished to, the
SEC. The information contained on our corporate website is not a part of this Report.

CERTIFICATIONS

The Company s Chiel’ Executive Officer and Chiel Financial Officer have filed their certilications as required by the Secunities and Exchange
Commission (the “SEC™) regarding the quality of the Company s public disclosure for each of the penods ended during the Company's fiscal year
ended December 31, 2011 and the effectivencss of internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,2011, Further, the Company s Chiel”
Executive Otficer has certified to the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE™) that he is not aware of any violation by the Company of the NYSE
corporate governance listing standards, as required by Section 303A.12(a) of the NYSE listing standards.



ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

In evaluating the Company, the following risk factors in addition to all other information in this report should be considered when carefully reading
this Annual Report on Form 10-K. If any of the events described below occurs, the Company’s business financial condition and operating resulis
could be materially and adversely affected. The following discussion 15 not all inclusive and additional nsks and uncertainties presently known to
us of that we currently deem immaterial may also impact our business, financial conditions and operating results,

We may be subject to health related claims from our customers.

A customer that suflers health problems may allege that the Medifast program contributed to the ailment. The Company is nol currently the subjeet
of any such claims;, however, we would defend ourselves vigorously against such accusations, Regardless of the ultimate outcome, such claims
could reduee our brand image and customer loyalty and defending against such elaims would be costly and could adversely affest our results of
operations.

MNew diets or pharmaceutical solutions could put us at a competitive disadvantage.

The weight loss industry is highly subjective and influenced by many factors. The low carbohydmate diet trend hit the 1.5, several vears ago and
had an ympact on many weight loss companies, including ours. Another new diet could sweep the nalion or consumer preferences could change,
which is common in our industry, Our failure to adapt or respond quickly enough to these changes could have an adverse affect on our results of
operations. In addition, pharmaceutical companies are constantly trying to develop safe. effective drugs that lead to weight loss. If successful,
many dieters eould perceive this to be easier than the Medifast program and this would put us a1 a competitive disadvantage.

Much of our growth and future profitability depends on the effectiveness of our advertising spent in the Direct Response marketing
channel.

Out business suceess depends on our ability to afiract and retain customers which significantly depends on our marketing practices. Our marketing
expenditures may not result in increased revenue or generate sufficient awareness of the program or the brand to the consumer. We may nat be able
to manage our advertising expenditures in a cost effective manner which may increase the cost 1o acquire a new customer to an elevated level that
will decrease profits.

We may be au]:iH:I to claims that our cmp'lnyrls are uuqullirlﬂl to pru\'kle wn{ght loss cnum-!“ng.

Our Medifast Weight Control Center division provides medical assessments and counseling to our customers. 'We also may be subject to claims
that our emplovees lack the proper training and qualifications to provide proper advice regarding weight loss. We could be subject 1o claims if an
emplovee in one of our clinics gives inappropriate weight loss advice that results in health problems. Any such litigation would be costly and
claims could result in damage to our reputation and could have an adverse effect on our operating results.

The loss of key personnel could adversely alfect our ability to operate and result in a negative financial condition.

Certwin members of our Company oversee integral components of our Company.  Although we do not anticipate the departure of any key
employees including bul not limited (o the exceulive management leam, we cannol guarantee their tenure indefinitely in the future. Our Tulure
sugcess depends to a significant degree on the skills, experience and efforts of our key executive officers. The loss of the services of any of these
individuals could harm our business. If any key exeeutive officers left us or were seriously injured and became unable to work, the business could
be harmed.

Since we cannot exert the same level of influence or contral over our independent Health Coaches as we could were they our own
emplovees, our Health Coaches could fail to comply with onr policies and procedures, which could result in claims against us that could
harm our financial conditon and operating resulis.

Our Health Coaches are independent contractors and, accordingly, we are not in a position to directly provide the same direction, motivation and
oversight as we would if Health Coaches wene our own eémplovees. As a result, there can be no assurance that our Health Coaches will participate
in our marketing strategies or plans, accept our introduction of new products, or comply with our health coach policies and procedures despite our
infernal complianee efforts.

We can provide no assurances that the number of independent Health Coaches will increase or remain constant or that their productivity wall
increase. We expenenced a 7% increase in active independent Health Coaches during 2011, The number of active independent Health Coaches
may not increase and could decline in the future. Independent Health Coaches may terminate their services at any time, and, like most direct selling
COMpanies, we expenence tumover ameong new independent Health Coaches from year to vear. We cannot accurately predict any fluctuation in the
number and productivity of independent Health Coaches because we primanly rely upon existing independent Health Coaches to sponsor and train
new independent Health Coaches and to moftivate new and exasting independent Health Coaches. Our operating resulis could be adversely affecied
if we and our existing independent Iealth Coaches do not generate sufficient interest in our business to suceessfully refnin existing independent
Health Coaches and attract new independent Health Coaches.

Extensive federal, state and local laws regulate our business, products and dircet sclling program.  While we have implemented health coach
policies and procedures designed to govern their eonduet and to protect the trademarks and brand of the Company it ean be difficult to enforee these
'Flulir.ics and pmcl:dur::.ﬂ. beeause of the |:urg|: number of Healith Coaches and their im:lcpcndl:nl status. Vielahons by our :in:ll:pc:m.fcnt Health Coaches
ol applicable law or of our policies and procedures in dealing with ewstomers eould refleel negatively on our produets and operations and harm our
business reputation. In addilion, 11 15 possible thal a court could hold ws eivilly or cnminally accountable based on vicanous habilily because of the
actions of our independent Health Coaches.



If we do not continue to develop innovative new services and products or if our services and products do not continue to appeal to the
market, our business may suffer,

The weight management industry is subjeet lo changing customer demands based, in large part, on the efficacy and popular appeal of weight
management programs. Our future success depends on our ability to continue to develop and market new services and products and to enhance our
existing services and products, each on 8 imely basis to respond to new and evolving eustomer demands, schieve market acceptanee and keep pace
with new nutntional and weight management developments. We may nol be successful in developing. introducing an a timely basis or marketing
amy new or enhanced services and products, and we cannot assure you that any new or enhanced serviees or products will appeal 1o the market. Our
failure 1o develop new services amd products and 1o enhance our existing services and prodicts or the faillure of our serviees and products 1o
continue 1o appeal to the market could have an adverse impact on our ability 1o attract and retain members and subscribers and thus adversely affect
our business,

A competitor or new entrant into the market may develop a product and program similar to or more effective or more favorably perceived
than ours,

The weight loss industry 13 highly competitive. We compete with a wide vanety of commercial weight loss programs, pharmaceutical products,
weight loss books, self-help diets, supplemeniz and meal replacements. Many of our competitors are significantly larger than us and have more
financial resources to develop new products and programs. Our business could be affected if ane of our competitors or 8 new entrant to the market
develops similar products and programs through similar marketing channels or more effective or more favorably perceived products. This could
resull in lower sales as well as pricing competition which could adversely affect the Company "s resulis from operations,

Third parties may infringe on our brand and other intellectual property rights, which may have an adverse impact on our business,

We currently rely on a combination of trademark, copyright, trade secret, patent and other intellectual property laws and confidentiality procedures
to establish and protect our proprietary rghts, including our brand, If we fail to successfully enfarce our intellectual property rights, the value of our
brand, services and products could be diminished and our business may suffer. Our precautions may not prevent misappropriation of our intellectual
property, particularly in foreign countries where laws or law enforcement practices may not protect our proprictary rights as fully as in the United
States. Any legal action that we may bring to protect our brand and other intelleciual property could be unsuceessiul and expensive and could divert
management’s attention from other business concems. In addition. legal standards relating to the validity, enforceability and scope of protection of
intellecual property, especially in Internet-related businesses, are uncertain and evolving. We cannot assure vou that these evolving legal standards
will sufficiently protect our intellectual property rights in the future.

Adverse pu'h“cii}' wssociated with our prmlu:h, ]ngrmﬂlmta‘ or sales channels, or those of similar mmpankn, could harm sur financial
condition, operating results, and stock price.

Adverse publicity, whether or not aceurate, relating to the Company, our products or our operations, our sales channels and independemt Health
Coaches and franchisees could adversely impact the Company”s financial condition, operating results. and stock price. If the press were (o come oul
with negative media about low-calone diets, meal replacements, or sov protein this could hamm our business. Even if not directed at Medifast, this
pereeption could be instilled in our target markel and cause harm to our operating results In addition, it could lead to lawsuils or other legal
challenges and could negatively impact our reputation, the market demand for our produets, or our general business.

Our ability to compete coukl be negatively affected in the event we fall to protect our brand names, trademarks or ather intellectual
property.

Because our business relies heavily on direet to consumer models, brand awareness is an important factor in our sales strategy. Failure to protect
our brand or maintain an image of good standing with the public could resull in a negative effect on our operations. Additionally, failure to protect
our intellectual property could result in the arnval of & similar compelitor which could reduce our competitive edge or decrease our markel share.

Dur results of operations may decline as a result of a downturn in general economic conditions or consumer confidence,

Our results of operations are highly dependent on product sales and program fees. A downturn in general economic conditions or consumer
confidence and spending in any of our major markets could result in people curtailing their discretionary spending, which, in turn, could lead to a
decrease in produet sales in our Medifast Direct and Take Shape for Life divisions and a deerease in product and program fees at our Medifast
Weight Control Centers and Internet product subscriptions. Any such reduction would adversely affect our results of operations.

Az a manufacturer, we may be subject to product liability claims,

As a manufacturer and a distributor of products for human consumption and topical application, we could become exposed to product liability
claims and litigation. Additionally, the manufacture and sale of these products involves the risk of injury to consumers due to tampering by
unauthorized third parties or product contamination. To date, we have not been a party to any product liability litigation. We are aware of no
instance in which any of our products are or have been defective in any way that could give rise to material losses or expenditures related 1o product
liability claims, Although we maintain product liability insurance, which we believe to be adequate for our needs, there can be no assurance that we
will not be subject to such claims in the future or that our insurance coverage will be adequate.

The sale of ingested products involves product liability and other risks,

Like other distributors of products that are ingested, we face an inherent risk of exposure to product liability elaims if the use of our products resulis
i illngss or myury. The foods that we resell in the LS, are subject 1o laws and regulations, ingluding those admimstered by the ULS. Department ol
Agriculture and Food and Drug Administration (“FDA™) that establish manufaciuring practices and quality standards for food products. Product
liahility elaims could have a material adverse effeet on our business as existing insurance coverage may nol be adequate. Distributors of weight loss



forod products, vitamins, nutritional supplements and minerals, including our predecessor businesses, have been named as defendants in product
liability lawsuits from time to time. The suecessful assertion or settlement of an uninsured elaim, a significant number of insured claims or a elaim
exeeeding the limits of our insurance coverage would harm us by adding costs 1o the business and by diverting the attention of senior management
frem the operation of the business. We may also be subject to claims that cur preducts contain contaminants, are improperly labeled, include
inadequate instructions as to use or inadequate wamings covering interactions with other substances. Produet liability ligation, even if not
meritorious, is very expensive and could also entail adverse publicity for us and reduce our revenue. In addition, the products we distribute, or
certmn components of those products, may be subject to product recalls or other deficiencies. Any negative publicity associated with these actions
would adversely aflect our brand and may result in decreased product sales and, as a result, lower revenues and profits.

A disruption in the supply of raw materials or the inability of third party manufacturing for certain products could affect operating results.

We rely heavily on our vendors to provide quality raw materials for us to utilize in our on-site manufacturing processes. Any disruption in the
availlabihity of these matenals could potenbially interrupt our abibiy o provide certmn products o customers 1in o bmely manner.  Also ecertain
products are currently manufactured through a third party. The availability of these products is prone lo fuetuations dependent on the
manuffciurer’s ability to secure and produce a quality product that satisfics our satisfaction standards. Our inability 1o secure products in a timely
manner will cause loss of revenue, loss of customers, and damage 1o our brand,

Disruption to the Company*s supply chain could adversely affect its business,

Damage ar disruption to the Company’s suppliers or to the Company s manufacturing or digtribution capabilities due to weather, natural disaster,
fire, terrorism, pandemic, strikes, or other reasons could impair the Company s ability 1o manufacture and‘or sell its products. Failure 1o 1ake
adequale steps o mitigale the likelihood or potential impact of such events, or (o effectively manage such events if they ocour, particularly when a
product is sourced from a single location, could adversely affect the Company's business or financial results,

Our manufacturing activity is subject to certain risks.

We manufacture approximately 55% of the products sold to our customers. As a result, we are dependent upon the unimerrupted and efficient
operation of our manufacturing facility in Owings Mills, Maryland. Those operations are subject to power failures, the breakdown, failure, or
substandard performance of equipment, the improper installation or operation of equipment, natural or other disasters, and the need to comply with
the requiremenis or directives of government agencies, including the FDA. There can be no assurance that the oceurrence of these or any other
operational problems at our facility would not have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, or results of operations. We are
subject to a variety of environmental laws relating to the storage, discharge, handling, emission, generation, manufacture, use and disposal of
chemicals, solid and hazardous waste, and other toxic and hazardous materials. Our manufactuning operations presenily do not result in the
generation of material amounts of hazardous or toxie substances. Nevertheless, complying with new or mere siringent laws or regulations, or more
vigorous enforcement of current or future policies of regulatory agencies, could require substantial expenditures by us that could have a matenal
adverse effect on our business, financial condition, or results of operations. Environmental laws and regulations requing us to maimtan and comply
with a number of permits, authonzations, and approvals and to maintain and update training programs and safety data regarding matenals used in
our processes. Vielations of those requirements could result in financial penaltics and other enforcement nctions and could require us to halt one or
maore portions of aur aperations until a vislation is cured. The combined costs of euring incidents of non-compliance, resolving enforcement actions
that might be initiated by government authorities, or of satisfving new legal requirements could have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition, or results of operations.

Qur business is subject to regulatory and legislative restrictions.

A number of laws and regulations govern our production, operation, and advertising. The Federal Trade Commission (“FTC”), newly formed
Consumer Financial Protection Bureau ("CFPB™), and certain states regulate advertising, disclosures to consumers, prnvacy, consumer pricing or
billing arrangements, and other consumer matters. Our direct selling distribution channel 15 subject (o risk of interpretation of cerlaim lows pertnimng
1o the prevention of “pyramid”™ or “chain sale™ schemes, Although we believe we are in full compliance, should the governing body alter or enforee
the law in an unanticipated way, there may be a negative result on the Company’s operations. The Company’s financial reporting 15 subject to
various laws and regulations as well, specifically, the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC"). These
requirements demand the Company disclose certain information and maintain specific controls to ensure fair and legal accounting practices as
outlined therein. The Company has taken substantiol measures 1o ensure compliance through routine internal and external audits. Failure 10 correct
any laws in intemal controls may constitute o public notification of weakness and could have an adverse eifect on our stock price, Additionally, the
Company is required 1o maintain a position of good standing in regards 1o taxation on both a Federal and State level. Failure to comply with federal
and state regulations could result in additional taxes, fines, or interest due that could financially strain the Company. Future laws and regulations
could be unforeseen and polentially have a matenal negative impact on the Company. Failure to comply with any regulations of eurrent or fulure
authentative entities could have a detnimental effeet on the Company s linancial standing or operating results,

New or more siringent governmental regulations could adversely affect our business,

Food production and the marketing of food products are highly regulated by a vanety of lederal, state, local and loreign ageneies. Changes in laws
or regulations, or interpretations of those laws, could result i sdditions] regulatory requiremenis on vs, such as the recently proposed food safety
legislation that would require registration fees and mandatory product testing. These could increase our costs or restrict our markeling efforis,
causing our results of operations to be adversely affected. Increased governmental interest in advertising practices may result in regulations that
could require us to change or restict our adverlising praclices

Inereased government regulations to limit carbon dioxide and other greenhouse gas emissions as & result of concern over ¢limate change may result
in inerensed compliance costs, capital expenditures and other financial obligations for us. We use natural gas, diesel fuel, and eleetnicity in the
manufactunng and distnbution of our products, Legislation or regulation afTecting these inputs could matenally affect our profitability, In addition,
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climate change could affect our ability to procure commaodities at reasonable costs and in quantities required. This may also necessitate unplanned
capital expenditures.

Additionally, our selling practices are regulated by competition authorities in the United States and abroad. A finding that we are in vialation of, or
out of compliance with, applicable laws or regulations could subject us to civil remedies, including fines, damages, injunctions or product recalls, or
criminal sanctions, any of which could adversely affect our business,

The business may grow too guickly for the current infrastructure to handle.

If our advertising is extremely successtful and our Take Shape for Life relationship marketing division sees a large uptick in recruitment, we may be
unable 1o handle the growth from an operational perspective.  Inereasing demands on our infrastructure could cause long hold times in the call
center as well as delayvs on our website, In addition, there could be delays in order processing, packaging and shipping. We could run out of a
majenity of our inventory if growth exceeded our production capacity. If these difficulties are encountered in a period of hyper-growth then our
operating results could suffer.

We are subject to risks associated with our reliance upon information technology systems.

Our suecess 15 dependent on the securaey, reliability, and proper use of information processing systems and management information lechnology.
O information lechnelogy systems are designed and selected in order to facilitate order entry and customer billing, maintain health coach and
Preferred Customer records, aceurately track purchases and incentive payments, manage secounting, finance, and manufacturing operations,
generate reports, and provide customer service and techmeal supporl. Although off-site data back-up % mamtined, it 1% possible that an iterriphon
in these systems could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, or results of operations.

Any deficiencies or shortcomings in our information technology could prevent an efMicient execution of routine business procedures,

We rely heavily on our IT infrastructure 1o supporl major business components, Any disruption fo the integnty of this support structure including
but not limited to; software, telecommunications, Electronic Resource Platform, or the Information Technology architeeture as a whole could
severely limil our ability o provide customers and vendors with adequate serviee and operating responses. In addition. our linaneial reporting 15
directly correlated with our Company-wide software Microsofl Mavision 4.0, Any compromise in the veracity of this system could severely alter
the aceuracy of our tracking, velumes, and general reporting including financial stalements

Our business is subject to online security risks, including security breaches and identity theft

To succeed, online commerce and communications must provide a seeure transmission of confidential information over public networks, Currently,
a significant number of our customers authorize us 1o bill their credit cards directly for all fees charged by us. We rely on third party software
products fo secure our credit card fransactions, Although we have developed systems and processes that are designed to protect consumer
information and prevent fraudulent payment transactions and other security breaches, failure to prevent or mitigate such fraud or breaches may
adversely affect our operating results.

Our stock price may experience volatility due to fluctuations in our operating results.

Ohir stock price 15 subject to Nucluations somelimes in response 1o our operating resulls, a competilors operating results, other fctors bevond the
Company™s control, or our ability o meet stock analysts forecasts and our yearly revenve and EPS guidance. In addition, general trends in the
weight-loss industry as a whole can have an affect on our stock price. These factors may have an adverse affect on the market price of our stock
and cause it 1o luctuate significantly.

Taxation rizks could subject us to liability for past <ales, increage our costs and could impact our profitability.

The issuance by the Internal Revenue Service andfor siate tax authontics of new tax regulations or changes o existing standards and actions by
federal, state, or local tax agencies and judicial authorities with respect to applying applicable tax laws and regulations and the resolution of disputes
with any taxing jurisdictions could subject us to liability for past sales, increase our costs and could impaet our profitability.

We may not successfully make acquigitions or enter into joint ventures and we may not successfully integrate, operate or realize the
anticipated benefits of such businesses,

As part of our growth strategy, we may pursue selected acquisitions or joint ventures. We cannot assure you that we will be able 1o effect these
transactions on commercially reasonable lerms or at all. Any luture acquisitions or joint venlures may require access to additional capital, and we
eannol assure vou thal we will have sceess to such eapital on commereially reasonable terms or st all. Even il we enler into these transactions, we
may not realize the benefits we anlicipate or we may experience difficultics in integrating any acquired companies and products into our existing
busingss; attrition of key personnel from acquired businesses; significant charges or expenses; higher costs of integration than we anticipated; or
unforescen aperaling difficulties that require significant linancial and managenal resources thal would olherwise be available (or the ongoing
develapment or expansion of our existing operations.

Our ability to imfluence the control of our joint ventures may be limited by contmel or otherwise. In addition, we may nol be able to influence the
occurrence or liming of distributions from our joint ventures, [T any of the other investors in one of our joinl ventures fails 1o observe ils
commiiments, the joint veniure may nol be able o operate according 1o ils business plan or we may be required o increase our level of
commilment. The interests of our joinl venture partners may differ from ours, and they may cause such enlities to take actions which are not in our
best interest. I7 we are unable to maintain our relationships with our joint venlure pariners, we could lose our ability to operate in the geographies
and/or markets in which they operate, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of operations.

Consummating these transactiions could also result in the incurrence of addinonal debt and related inerest expense, as well as unforeseen contingent
liabilities, all of which could have a matenal adverse effect on our business, financial condifion or resulis of operations. We may also issue
ndditional equity in connection with these transactions, which would dilute our existing sharcholders.
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ITEM 1B, UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

MNane

ITEM 2. DESCRIPTION OF FROPERTY

The Company owns a 49,000 square-foot facility in Owings Mills, Marvland, which contains its Corporate Headguarters and manufacturing plant.
In 2003, the Company purchased a state-of-the-art 119,000 square-foot distnbution facility in Ridgley, Marvland. In July 2010, the Company
leased a second distnibution center in Dallas, Texas. Both distrbution facilities allow the Company to distribute over S200 million of Medifast
product sales per vear. In 2004, the Company purchased a 3,000 square foot conference and training facility in Ocean City, Maryland. The facility
is used to conduct corporate training meetings, Board of Director Meetings and employee morale and wellness programs. The Company has
seventy leases for its corporately owned Medifast Weight Control clinics throughout Texas, Flonda, Maryland, Pennsylvania, and Virginia. In
addition, the Company leases two buildings in Owings Mills, Maryland for corporate offices, The leases range in terms from one 1o ten years,

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Company filed a civil complaint on February 17, 2010 in the 1.5, District Court (S, Cal) against Barry Minkow, his Fraud Discovery
Institute, Ine., its subsidiary iBusiness Reporting, its editor William Lobdell, as well as Tracy Coenen, her Sequence, Inc., “Zee Yoursel{”, and
Robert L, Fipatrick for defamation and viclations of California Corporation Code Sections 25400 ¢t seq and 17200 ¢t scq, alleging a scheme of
market manipulation of Medifast stock for Defendants” monetary gain, by damaging the business reputation of Medifast and its meal replacement
weight loss products. Bradley T. MacDonald, Executive Chairman of Medifast, whao is also a large sharcholder of the Company, joined the lawsuit
individually. The suit secks at least 3270 million in compensatory damages, pumtive damages, and ancillary relicf. The Company confinues
prosecution of this vl suit. The Company also continues to pursue ils pending complaints Gled in March, 2009 with the SEC, Maryland Securities
Commissioner, and the LS. Attorney against most of these same named defendants with respeet to the related matter.

In early 2010, the Chapter 7 Bankrupley Trustee for Go Fig, Inc. el al., Deblors, filed an adversary civil proceeding in the US Bankruptey Court
(ED. Missouri) against Jason Pharmaccuticals, Inc., a subsidiary of the Company and other unrelated entitics secking 1o recover, as to cach, alleged
preferential payments. Jason Pharmaceuticals, Inc. sold product received by the Debtors and has previously filed a pending claim in the same
Bnnkmpl:::.'. Medifast diupul:a the Trustee's a":EalinnH and intends to \lisnmunt:.' d::l'l:ml itsell’ Thia aclion wus h}' Court order planud on hold while
the Trustee litigates similar issues against another Party,

Since 2010, Jason Pharmaceuticals, Inc. has received five Notices of Charge of Discrimination filed with the 1.5, Equal Employment Opportunity
Commission (“EEOC™) alleging discrimination suffered by two current emplovees and three former emplovees, The EEOC dismissed three of those
charges in 2011, In 2011 the two claimants whose claims were dismissed during the second quarter, filed suit to pursue those claims in U8, District
Count. The Company intends 1o vigorously defend against the remaining claims.

On March 17, 2011, a ¢lass action complaint titled Oren Proter et al. v. Medifast, Inc. et al. (Civil Action 2011-CV-T20[BEL]), alleging violations
of Sections 10(h) and 20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act™), and Rule 10b-5 promulgated under the
Exchange Act, was filed for an unspecified amount of damages in the 1.5, District Court, District of Maryland, The complaint alleges that the
defendants made false and/or misleading statements and failed to disclose material adverse facts regarding the Company’s business, operations and
prospeets. On March 24, 2011, a class action complant titled Fred Greenberg v Medifast, [ne., et al (Civil Action 2011-CV776 [BEL), alleging
violations of Sectiong 10{b) and 20(a) of the Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5 promulgated under the Fxchange Act, was filed for an unspecified
amount of damages in the LS. District Court, District of Maryland. The complaint alleges that the defendants made false and/or misleading
statements and failed 1o disclose malerial adverse facts regarding the Company s business, operations and prospects. On July 19, 2011, the 115
[hstrict Judge ordered the consolidation of the cases and appointment of co-lead sounsel among other matters. The Greenberg case was dismissed
without prejudice. The Plaintiffs subsequently filed an Amended Complaint. The Company has reviewed these allegations, and subsequently filed a
Maotion to Dismiss which is currently pending. The Company intends to vigorously defend against this amended complaint

On April 1, 2011, a sharcholder derivative complaint titled Shane Rothenberger, derivatively on behalf of Medilast, Ine., v Bradley T, MacDonald
el al. {Civil Action 2011-CV 863 [BEL]): and on April 11, 2011, a sharcholder derivative complaint titled James A. Thompson, denvatively on
behalf of Medifast, Ine., v Bradley T. MacDonald et al. (Civil Action 2011-CV934 [BEL]) were filed in the U.5, Distriet Court, Distriet of
Maryland. The identically worded complaints allege breach of fiduciary dulies, unjust entichment, abuse of control, gross mismanagement, and
waste of corporate assels, Each complant requests an unspecified amount of damages, 8 Court Order directing reformation of comporate
governance, restitution to the Company and payment of costs and disbursements. The Company is named as a nominal defendant. On July 19,
2011, the U5, Distriet Judge ordered consolidation of the two cases, appointment of co-lead counsel, and the filing of a consolidated complaint,
among other matiers. Mo response is due from the Company at this time. Afler the consolidated complaint 18 filed, the Company intends to iake
whatever action it deems necessary (o protect its interests.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Mot applicable



PART 11

ITEM 5, MARKET FOR COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS.

The Company's Common Stock 15 quoted under the symbol MED. The common stock 13 traded on the New York Stock Exchange. The following
is a list of the low and high closing prices by fiscul quarters for 2011 and 2010

2011
Low High
Quartsr Endeel March 31, 2011 16.63 2983
Quarter Ended June 30, 2011 1595 26.72
Quarter Ended Septeniber 30, 2011 14.46 2481
Quarter Ended Deceniber 31, 2011 13.01 17.30
2010
Low High
Quarter Ended March 31, 2010 16.65 3387
Quarter Endeel June 30, 2010 25.43 36.78
Quarter Endsd Septembaer 30, 2010 2410 3250
Croartar Endasd Decambar 31, 2010 2325 3129

There were approximalely 160 record holders of the Company's Common Stock as of March 14, 2002, This number does nol include beneficial
owners of our securitics held in the name of nominees.

Mo dividends on common stock were declared by the Company duning 2011 or 2010, The Company has not and does not plan to declare dividends
in the foresecable fufure.

The Bank of Ameriea line of eredit and term loan are secured by substantially all the azsets of the Company and eontain customary covenants
including covenants that, in certain circumstances, restrict the Company’s ability to incur additional indebtedness, pay dividends on and redeem
capital stock, make other payments, including investments, sell its assets and enter into consolidations, mergers and transfers of all or substantially
all of ils assels

O Seplember 3, 2004, our Board of Directors authornzed the repurchose of up to 500,000 shares of our common stock.  Pursuant to thot authority
the Company purchased the remaining 365,000 shares of common stock authorized under the repurchase program on Apnl 7. 2011, Apnl 8, 2011
and May 10, 201 1.

Omn May 18, 2011 our Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to 500000 shares of the Company”s common stock as approved by the
Board consent,

On July 21, 2011 our Beard of Directors autherized the repurchase of up to 500,000 shares of the Company’s common stock.  The authorization
remains open for a period of 24 months ending on July 21, 2013.

As of December 31, 2011, we had purchased 1,458,908 shares as treasury stock through the repurchase programs noted above, There are 273,000
remaining authorized shares that may be repurchased.

Stock repurchases under these programs may be made by the Broker through open market and privately negotiated transactions at times and in such
amounts as management shall deem appropriate pursuant 1o Rule 10b-18 of the Exchange Act. The timing and actual number of shares which may
be repurchased will depend on a vanety of factors including price, corporate authonization provisions, above noted regulatory requirements, and
other market conditions.

We are not obligated to purchase any shares. Subject to apphicable securnties laws repurchases may be made at such times and in such amounts, as

our managemen! deems appropriate. The share repurchase progrm may be discontinued or terminated at any time and we have not established a
date for completion of the share repurchase program. The repurchases will be funded from our available cash.

23



The following is a summary of our stock purchases during the quarter ended December 31, 2011, as required by Regulation 5-K, Item 703

Total Number of Shares Maximum Numbezx of
Purchased as Part of Shares that May Yet Be
Total Numberof  Average Price  Publicly Announced Plans  Purchased Under the Plans

Period Shares Purchased Paid per Share or Programs or Programs
October 1 - October 31, 2011 - $ - - 275,000
November 1 - November 30, 2011 - $ - . 275,000
December 1 - December 31, 2011 - $ - - 275,000

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The selected condensed consolidated financial data set forth below should be read in conjunction with “Management’'s Discussion and Analysis of
Finaneial Condition and Results of Opermtions” included as Part 11, ltem 7 of this Annual Report on Form 10K, and the consolidaied financial
statements and notes thereto of the Company included in Part [T Item & of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. The historical results provided below
are not necessanly indicative of fuiure resulis,

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

(In thousands, except per sham data)
Revenue §$ 98139 § 2571552 % 169,743 % 110076 $ 85,003
Income from Operstions 2,382 31,640 18,497 1,367 4170
Income before Income Taxes 21,680 31,692 18,424 T.018 3,998
EPS - Basic $§ 133 3 139 § 084 § D33 § 0.20
EPS - Diluted 131 135 oTr 030 0.1%
Total Assets $ 105665 § 94059 § 62950 § 48915 § 43,087
Curent Portion of long-term debt and capital lease
facilities 1,426 944 196 342 1,363
Total long-term debt and capital leases 4251 4855 5,444 4313 4570
Weighted averge shares outstanding

Basic 13,965 14082 13,515 13,126 12,961

Diluted 14,193 14,573 14737 14329 13,644

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OFERATIONS,
FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

This document contains forward-looking statements which may involve known and unknown nisks, unceriaintics and other factors that may cause
the Company s actual resultz and performance in future periods to be materially different from any future results or performance suggested by these
statements, These factors include, but are not necessanly limited to those risks sel forth in [lem 1A of this form 10-K. Wornds such as “projects™,
“helieve”, “plan”, “anticipate™ and “expect” and similar expressions are intended to qualify as forward-looking statements. Medifast, [ne. cautions
investors not to place undue reliance on forward-looking statements, which speak only to management’s expectations on this date. 'We undertake no
obligation to update any forward-looking statements even if actual results may differ from projections.

The following discussion should be read i conjunction with the fnancial information mcluded elsewhere in this Annusl Report on Form
10-k.



Critical Aceounting Policles and Estimuates

Our consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with ULS, generally accepted accounting pninciples. Our significant accounting
policics are desenbed in Note 2 of the consolidated financial statements,

The preparation of these financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumplions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assels and liabilities at the date of the Onancial statements, and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses
during the reporting period. Management develops, and changes periodically, these estimates and assumplions based on historical experience and on
various other factors that are believed o be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different
assumptions or conditions. Management considers the following sceounting estimates to be the most eritical in preparing our consolidated financial
slalements. These entical accounling estimates have been discussed with our Audit Commiltee,

Revenue Recognition: Revenue is recognized net of discounts, rebates, promotional adjustments, price adjustments, and estimated returns and
upon transfer of title and risk to the customer which ocours at shipping (F.C.B. terms). Upon shipment, the Company has no further performance
abligations and collection 15 reasonably assured as the majonity of sales are paid for prier 1o shipping. Medifast Weight Control Centers program
fees are recognized over the estimated service period.

Impairment of Fixed Assets and Intangible Assets: We continually assess the impairment of long-lived assets whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value of the asscts may not be recoverable. Judgments reganding the existence of impainment indicators arc
based on legal factors, market conditions and our operating performance. Future events could cause us to conclude that impairment indicators exist
und the L'Il.lr}"inE values of [ixed and inlnnEiH: assels may be i'mlmin:d. Any ln;ull:inB imp.uirml:nl loss would be limited 1o the value of net lixed and
intangible assets.

Income Taxes: The benefit of a tax position is recognized in the Ninancial statements in the period during which. based on all avaeilable evidence,
management believes it is more-likely-than-not that the position will be sustained upon examination, including the resolution of appeals or litigation
processes, if any. Tax positions taken are not offset or aggregated with other pesitions. Tax positions that meet the more-likely-than-not recognition
threshold are measured as the largest amount of tax benefit that is more than 50 percent likely of being realized upon settlement with the applicable
taxing authority. The portion of the benefits associated with WX positions taken that exceeds the amount measured as described above is reflected as
a liability for unrecognized tax benefits in the accompanying balance sheet along with any associated interest and penalties that would be payvable o
the taxing authorities upon examination.

We evaluated our tax positions and determined that we did not have any material uncerisin tax positions requinng recognition of a liability. Our
poliey is to recopnize interest and penalties acerued on uncertain tax positions as part of income tax expense. For the twelve months ended
December 31, 2011 and 2010, no material estimated interest or penalties were recognized for the uncertainty of certain tax positions. We file
ingome tax returns in the United States and vanous stales junisdictions. With few exceptions, we are no longer subject to ULS. federal, state and local
neome tax examinations by tax authorties for the vears before 2008,

Reserves for Returns: We review the reserves for customer retums at esch reporting period and adjust them 1o reflect data available at that ime. To
eslimate reserves [or relums, we consider aclual return rates in preceding penods. To the extent the estimate of retums changes, we wall adjust the
reserve, which will impaet the amount of product sales revenue recognized in the period of the adjustment. Our estimates for relums have nol
differed materially from our actual returns. The provision for estimated returns as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 were 8234 000 and 5207000,

rcsp:ul:iv:ty.

Orperating leases: Medifast leases retail stores, distnbution facilities, and office space under operating leases.  Many lease agreements contain
tenant improvement allowances, rent holidays, rent escalation clavses and contingent rent provisions. The Company recognizes incentives and
minimum rental expenses on a straight-line basis over the terms of the leases, We commence recording rent expense on the date of initial
possession, which is generally when we enter the space and begin to make improvements to propertics for our intended use.  For tenant
improvement allowances and rent holidavs, we record a deferred rent liabality on the consolidated balance sheets and amortize the deferred rent over
the terms of the leases as reductions to rent expense on the consolidated statements of income.

For scheduled rent escalation clauses during the lease terms or for rental pavments commencing at a date other than the date of initial occupancy,
we record mimmum rental expenses on a straight-line basis over the terms of the leases on the consolidated statements of income. Several leases
provide for eontingent rents, which are determined as a percentage of gross sales in exeess of specified levels, We record a contingent rent hability
on the consolidated balance sheets and the corresponding rent expense when we determine achicving specificd levels is probable,

Backgeround:

The Company is éengaged in the production, distribution, and sale of weight management and disease management products and other consumable
health and diet products.  The Company”s product lines include meal replacements and vitamins. Our products and services are sold to weight loss
program panticipants primarily via the Internet, telephone, and brick and mortar olinigs. Customers of our Health Coaches in the Take Shape for
Life person-to-person direct sales channel are directed to order our producis through either the internet or through the Company’s in-house call
center, Our meal food items accounted for 94% of our revenues in 2011 and 95% of our revenues in 2010, Program sales in our Medifnst Weight
Control Center channel accounted for 3% of revenues in 20011 and 2% in 2010, Shipping revenue and other accounted for 3% in 2001 and 2010,
Revenue consists primarily of meal replacement food sales. In 2011, revenue increased to S298.2 million as compared 1o 5257.6 million in 2010, an
inerease of 340.6 million or 16%. The Take Shape for Life sales channel accounted for 62.4% of total revenue, direct response marketing 24,5%,
and Medifast Weight Control Centers and Medifast Wholesale Phvsicians 13.1%.
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We review and analyze a number of key operating and financial metrics to manage our business, including revenue to advertising spend in the
Medifast Direct channel, number of active Health Coaches, and average monthly revenue generated per health coach in the Take Shape for Life
channel, and average same store sales improvement for the Medifast Weigh Control Center channel.

In 2001, we continued to see sales growth and improvement in Take Shape for Life, Medifast Direct and Medifast Weight Control Centers, and
Medifast Wholesale Physicians, Take Shape for Life revenue increased 12% to $186.2 mullion compared with $165.6 million in 2010, Growth n
revenues for the segment was driven by increased customer product sales as a result of an increase in active Health Coaches. The number of active
Health Coaches at the end of 2011 inereased 1o 9,600 compared with 2,000 during the period a vear ago, an increase of 7%, Active Health Coaches
are delined as Health Coaches receiving income from a product sale in the last month of the quarter, The average revenue per health coach per
month decreased from $1,675 in 20010 to 51,555 in 2011. The decrease of 7% is pnmanly due to the challenges in delivering consistent and
effective training to a much larger group of active Health Coaches. The Company continues to experience the need for confinued enhancements to
it health coach training platform. To address this challenge, the Company released the “afficial™ Trilogy Training website at the Take Shape for
Life annual conference in late July. Previously, training to Health Coaches was done primarily utilizing print materials. The Company is currently
working on additional content for the training website and simplifving existing printed materials to maximize the effectiveness of the Health
Coaches by emphasizing the competencies required to be a successful health coach, business coach and business leader.  The Company 15 also
focusing on regional events throughout the country to ensure participating | lealth Coaches receive actionable and relevant content to enhance and
gronw their business. In Octoaber 2011, Medifast strengthened the Take Shape for Life executive team with the addition of a talented industry veteran
o overses the day-to-day operations of the business including aligning the internal support team to focus on health coach acquisition and refention.
As the number of active Health Coaches inerease, the Company receives additional sales proceeds from product referrals.

The Medifast Direct Sales division increased 14% to §73 million as compared with 5642 million in 2010, an increaze of S8.8 million. The
Company expenienced a 2.8 to | return on advertising spend in 2001 and 2010

The Medifast Weight Control Centers and Medifast Whelesale Physicians expenienced revenue growth of 41% in 2011 as compared 1o 2010,
Revemse increased due to the opening of twelve new centers throughout 2010, thirty-one new centers in 2011, a 13% increase in the same store
sales Tor Centers open for greater than one vear, and the increased suceess of franchise centers, The Company is continuing 1o focus on improved
advertising effectiveness, improved closing rates on leads generated through advertising, hiring of more experienced clinic personnel, and reducing
the start-up costs of our Centers.

As our sales divisions grow, there are increasing demands placed upon our infrastructure. Increased demand could cause long hold times in the call
center, as well as delavs on our website. There could also be delavs in order processing, packaging and shipping. We could run out of a majority of
our inventory if product sales growth exceeds our production capacity. In order to mitigate these risks, a key focus for the Company in 2011 was
investing in logistics and infrastructure to support the growih of our sales divisions. The Company opened a new Distribution Center in July 2010 to
better service our Midwest to West Coast customers, and inerease the number of orders the Company can ship daily, The Company also launched a
new web platform for its sales divisions in March 2011, and added a call center location to handle additional velume.

There iz also risk our independent contractor ficld leaders and Health Coaches could leave the Company for betler opportunities, resulting in
decreased revenue in the Take Shape for Life channel. This risk is mitigated by a compensation program that fairly rewards Health Coaches
supporting their clients’ weight loss and health goals, and increases revenue per month as Health Coaches build their orgamzations,



CONSOLIDATED RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

2011 COMPARISON WITH 2010

Overview of the Twelve Monthe Ended December 31, 2011 Compared to Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2010

Twelre Months Ended December 31,
2011 2010 § Change % Change

Revenue $ 208,189,000 $ 257,552,000 $ 40,637,000 16%
Cost of salss 73,603,000 65,083,000 8,610,000 13%
Gross Profit 224,496,000 192,469,000 32,027,000 17%
Selling, general and administrative costs 197,114,000 160,220,000 36,285,000 23%
Income from operations 27,382,000 31,640,000 (4,258,000) -13%
Other incomefexpense)

Interest income (expense), net 319,000 274,000 45,000

Other incomaXexpense) (21,000) (222,000) 201,000

208,000 52,000 245,000 473%

Income before provision for income taxes 27,680,000 31,692,000 (4,012,000) -13%
Provision for income tax (expense) (9,130.000) (12,081 000) 2.042 000 -24%
Net income $ 18,541,000 $ 104511000 $ (1,070,000) 5%,
¥ of revenue
Groas Profit 153% T4.T%
Selling, geneml, and administrative costs 66.1% 62.4%
Income from Opemtione 9.2% 12.3%

Revenue: Revenue inereased to $298.2 million i 2011 compared to $257.6 million in 2010, an inerease of $40.6 million or 16%. The Take Shape
for Life sales channel accounted for 62.4% of total revenue, Medifast Direct channel accounted for 24.5%. and Weight Control Centers and
Medifast Wholesale Physicians accounted for 13.1% of total revenue. Take Shape for Life sales, which are fueled by increased customer product
sales as a result of an increase in active Health Coaches, inereased by 12% compared to 2010. As compared to 2010, the Medifast Dircet Response
sales channel, which is fueled primarly by consumer adverlising, increased revenues by approximately 14% vear-over vear. The Medifast Weight
Control Centers and Medifast Wholesale Physicians increased sales by 41% due to the opening of new corporate and franchize locations and vear-
OVEr- year improvement in same store sales.

Tuke Shape for Life revenue increased 12% to 51806.2 million compared with $165.6 million in 2000, Growth in revenues for the distribution
chanivel was driven by inereased customer produet sales as a result of an inerease in active Health Coaches.  The number of active Health Coaches
at the end of 2011 increased to approximately 9,600 compared with 9,000 during the pericd a vear ago, an increase of 7%. Historically, the fourth
quarter active health coach number declines from the third quarter as a result of the holiday season.  In today™s environment where trust and
personal recommendations are becoming a more imporiant compenent in consumer purchasing decisions, the Take Shape for Life model of one-on-
one communication continues to excel, Take Shape for Life customers who have utilized the Medifast produets and programs and successfully have
addressed their body weight and health issues are increasingly choosing to become active Health Coaches.  Becoming & health coach is a business
opportunity with a low cost of start-up and requires no holding of inventory as orders are shipped to the end consumer. In the current economic
enviromment, many people are looking [or supplemental income to assst in payving bills such as the car peyment, renl. or morigage, and becoming a
health coach allows (or supplemental income by supporting customers ordering through Take Shape for Life,

The Medifast Direct Response Sales division sales increased 14% to 573 million as compared with $64.2 million in 2010, an increase of S8.4
million. Due to a more effective advertising message, more targeted advertising through extensive analvtical analysis, and improved call center
closing rates. the Company experienced a 2.8 to | return on advertising spend during 2011 and 2010, The Company spent approximately 526
million on direet response advertising in 201 1, an increase of 13% from 2010,

The Medifast Weight Control Centers and Medifast Wholesale Physicians channel represented approximately 13.1% of the Company’s overall
revenues in 2001, Al December 31, 20011, Medifast Weight Control Centers were operaling in sevenly corporaie locations in Austin, Dallas,
Houston, San Antonio, Orlando, Baltimore, Philadelphia, Northern Virginia, and South Flonda, and thirty franchise centers were in operation. In
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2011, the Company experienced revenue growth of 41% to 539 million as compared to $27.7 million in 2010, an increase of 511.3 millien. In
2011, same store sales inereased by 13% for corporate Centers open greater than one year.  Throughout 2012, the Company anticipates opening
between 25 and 30 corpoerate owned Medifist Weight Control Centers.

Costs of Sales: Cost of sales increased $8.6 million in 2011 to $73.7 million as compared to $65.1 million in 2010, As a percentage of sales, gross
margin inereased to 75.3% from 74.7% in 2000, The improvement in gross margin percentage resulted ina $1.7 mallion improvement in gross
margin leverage based on 2011 sales volume of $298.2 million. The gross margin improvement was primarily the result of leveraging fixed
overhead costs in our manufacturing facility. A modest mid-vear price increase in 2011 offset increased raw material, fuel and other transportation
charges.

Selling, General and Administrative Costs:  Selling, general and administrative expenses increased by 8363 million compared to 2010, As a
percentage of sales, selling, general and administrative expenses increased to 66.1% versus 62.4% in 2010. Take Shape for Life commission
expense, which 1s vanable based upon product sales, meressed by approximately 89 mallion as TSFL sales grew 12% a8 compared to 2010, Take
Shape for Life Health Coaches are independent contractors that are paid commissions on product sales referred to the Company.  Health Coaches
cam commissions by referring product sales through their own replicated website or through the Company's in-house call center. The clients of
Health Coaches are responsible for order and payment of product and their order 15 shipped directly 1o their home or designaled address.  Health
Conches nre nol rmluin:,:l o pun:hmﬂ: pn.u:luct in order to receive a commission. In addition, Health Coaches do nod recetve a commission on their

personal product orders.

Salarics and benclits incrcased by approximately $11.5 million in 2011 as compared 1o last year. The incrcase primarily reflects the hiring of
regional trainers, district managers, area managers, mobile managers, dietitians, human resource recruiters, operations, and marketing staff to
supporl the opening of 31 new Medifast Weaght Control Centers i 200 1. There were sevenly corporile-owned centérs and thirty franehise centers
in operation as of December 31, 2011, In late 20010 and throughout 2011, the Company has invested in Key executive hires in the arcas of
Information Technology, Human Resources, Finance and Marketing in order to support growth. The opening of the Company®s new Dallas, Texas
distribution center in July of 2010 also led to the hiring of additional personnel in both distribution and the call center. Sales and markeling expense
increased h:\-' £5.7 mullion mm 2011 as uumpurrd fer p:riur year, primﬁl}' due to the $3 million inerease in Medifast Direct ar]\l:rlising as well as
increased advertising spend for the Medilast Weight Control Centers. Communication expenses increased 3.5 million.  Office expenses increased
56.4 million due to higher rent for administrative offices and Medifast Weight Control Centers, information lechnology consulting fees, insurance,
office expenses primarily at the new centers, and higher accounting fees. Other expenses consisting primarily of depreciation and eredit card
processing fees, increased by 52,6 million.

Income taxes: In 2011, the Company recorded $9.1 million in income tax expense, an effective mte of 33%. In 2010, the Company recorded S12.1
million in income ax expense, an effective rate of 38.1%. The decline in the effective tax rate was a result of extensive tax planning performed by
the Company, As part of its tax planming process, the Company amended several returns filed in prior years. As a manufactunng entity based in
Marvland, the Company adopted the single sales factor apportionment method in addition to claiming new state job credits, reducing the Company's
overall effective tax rate compared 1o the pnor vear. The Company anticipatés a tax rate of approsamately 35-36% 0 2012,

Net income: Net income was approximately $18.5 million in 2011 as compared to approximately $19.6 million in 2000, a decrease of 51.1 million.
Pre-tax profit as a percent of sales decreased to 9.3% in 2011 as compared 1o 12.3% in 2010. The decrease in profitability in 2011 is primarily a
resull of the cxp.unsim'l of the compornale Medifast W:‘iEhi Contreld Centers.  The MWCC and Wholesale segment income before income laxes
decreased from a gain of $6.8 million in 2010 to a loss of $2.7 million in 2011, a decrease of $9.5 million. The decrease in net profitability is
primarily due to the hinng of expertise in key sreas to build the internal infrastructure to open new Medifast Weight Control Centers in 2011 and
bevond. Hires included regional trainers, district managers, area managers, mobile managers, dietitians, IR recruiters, operations support, and
marketing. In addition, thirty-one new corporale centers were apened mn 20011 which also resulted in decreased profitabulity attributable 1o the startup
costs as the stores were in the starl-up phase dunng 2011, The decrease in camings as a resull of the MWCC corporate clinic expansion was
partially offset by improved profit in the “Medifast” sepment az a result of itz $29.2 million increase in sales,
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SEGMENT RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

___2n = e 2009 = .
Segments Sales Ve of Total Sals __ Veof Total Sales Ve of Total :
Medifast $ 259,191,000 87%  $229,879,000 89% § 152,077,000
MWGCC and Wholesale 13% 21 11% 17 105'. ‘
Total Sales 5 % g 600 100% !B’JEEE% 0% § 169 % % 1007

2011 v= 2010

Medifast Scgment: The Medifast segnwent consists of the sales from Medifast Direct Marketing and Take Shape for Life. As this represents the
majority of our business, this is discussed in the “Consolidated Results of Operations” management discussion for 2011 vs. 2010,

The MWCC and Wholesale segment consisis of the sales of Medifast Corporate and Franchise Weight Control Centers as well as Medifasi
Wholesale Physicians, Sales increased by $11.3 million, ar 41% vear-over-vear due to the opening of thirty-one new corporate-owned centers
during 2011, A 13% increase in the same store sales for Centers open for greater than one vear | including same store sales increasing by 19% in
the fourth quarter of 2011, and increased sales to the Company’s franchise centers, also contributed to the sales increase. Improved advertising
effectiveness, the launching a new operating system to enhance the customer experience and store operations, and the hiring of more expenenced
clinie personnel contribiited to sales growth in the peried. At the end of 2011, there were seventy corporate-owned centers as compared 1o thirty-
mne cenfers at the end of 2010, The Company had thirty franchise cenfers in operation as of December 31, 2011 as compared fo twenty-one
franehise centers in the prior vear.

2010 vs. 2009

Medifast Segment: The Medifast segment congists of the sales from Medifast Direct Marketing and Take Shape for Life. As this represents the
majonty of our business this is discussed in the “Consolidated Results of Operations™ management discussion for 2000 vs, 20009 above,

MWCC and Whelesale Segment: The MWCC and Wholesale segment consists of the sales of Medifast Corporate and Franchise Weight Control
Centers as well as Medifast Wholesale Physicians. Sales increased by 810 million, or 57% vear-over year due to the opening of twelve new
corporale-owned centers throughout 2010 and a 24% increase in the same slore sales for Cenlers open for grester than one vear. At the end of 20010,
there were thirty-nine corporately owned cenlers opened as compared o twenly-seven cenlers al the end of 2009, The Company had twenty-one
franchise centers in operation as of December 31, 2010,

Net Profit by Segment as of December 31,

2011 2010 2009
Segments Profit ¥ of Total Profit ¥ of Total Profit ¥ of Total
Medifast $ 36,210,000 131% $30,773,000 97% § 18282000 99%
MWCC and Wholesale (2,738,000 -10% 6,762,000 n% 3,040,000 21%
All Other (5,792,000) 21% (5,843,000) -18% (3,813,000) 21%
Met Profit $ 27,680,000 100% § 31,692,000 100% § 18,424,000 100%.

2001 vs. 2010

Medifast Segment: The Medifast reporting segment consists of the profits of Medifast Direct Marketing and Take Shape for Life. As this represents
the majority of our business this is referenced 1o the “Consolidated Results of Operations” management discussion for 2011 vs. 2010 above.

See Mote 13, “Business Segments™ of the financial statements for a detailed breakout of expenzes,

MWCC and Wholesale Segment: This segment decreased net profitability in 2011 as compared to 2010 by $9.5 million, The decrease in net
profitability is primarily due to the hiring of expertise in key arcas to build the internal infrastructure 10 open new Medifast Weight Control Centers
in 2011 and beyvond. Hires included regional trainers, district managers, arca managers, mobile managers, Dictitians, HR recruilers, operations
support, and marketing. In addition, thirty-one new corporate cenlers were opened in 2011, Start up costs such as rent, other office expenses and
new emplovee hires contributed to the decrensed profitability of the Cenlers,

The Company is continuing to focus on improved advertising effectiveness in both mature and new MWCC markets and enhancing the customer
expenience through additional offerings such as metabolic testing the support of a dietitian, and medical review of labs o show members the impaci
of weight loss on their overall health, Enhancing the profitability in both mature MWCC markets as well as new MWCC centers is a key focus of



the Company in 2012 and beyond. Proper staffing and hours of operation at the Centers are being reviewed thoroughly. In addition, overhead
needed to support each region is being evalunted in order to ensure that each employee’s span of control is maximized across the corporate centers
in operation. See footnote 13, “Business Segments” for a detailed breakout of expenses.

All Other Segment: The All other segment consists of corporate expenses related 1o the parent Company operations.  Year-over-vear parent
company expenses decreased by 851,000, Corpomite expenses include items such as auditors” fees, altormey "s fees, stock compensalion expense and
corporate governance related to NYSE, Sarbunes Oxley, and SEC regulations. See footnole 13, “Business Segments”, for a detailed breakout of
expenses.

2010 vs. 2000

Medifast Segment: The Medifast reporting segment consisis of the profits of Medifast Direct Marketing and Take Shape for Life. This is
referenced to the “Consolidated Results of Operations™ management discussion for 2010 vs. 2009 above.

See Mote 13, “Business Segments”™ of the financial statements for a detailed breakout of expenses,

MWCC and Wholesale Segment: This segment improved net profitability year-over-vear by $2.8 million. The increase in profitability was due to
the apening of twelve new corporately-owned ceners throughout 20010 and a3 24% inerease in the same store sales for Centers open [or greater than
one year. See footnote 13, “Tusiness Segments™ for a detailed breakout of expenses.

All Other Segment: The All other segment consists of corporate expenses related to the parend Company operations. Year-over-year parent
Company expenses increased by $2 million. Corporate expenses include items such as auditors’ fees, attorney’s fees, stock compensation expense
and corporate governance related to NYSE, Sarbanes Oxlev, and SEC regulations. See footnote 13, “Business Segments™ for a detailed breakout of
expenses

Contractual Obligations and Commercinl Commitments

As of December 31, 201 1, our principal commilments consisted of obligations for variable and fixed mle loans detailed in Nole 11 of the finaneial
statements, and operating leases for corporate-owned Medifast Weight Control Centers, leased executive offices, our Texas distribution center, and
our leased copier equipment conlracts for printing operations supporting our marketing efforts all detailed in Mote 8 1o the financial statements.



The Company has the following contractual obligations as of December 31, 2011:

iz ol 014 18 3016 Therealiter Tetal
Mm
Taotal Detit £ LupPoo0 § 225000 % 225000 $ 225000 % 25000 § 22437000 § @ 4455000
Opemting Loases 3,742,000 3.768.000 3,623,000 3,415,000 2,592,000 1,719,000 18,939,000
Capital Lesses 345,000 315,000 225,000 215,000 225,000 = 1,335,000
Totel contractual obligations $ 5206000 § 4303000 § 4073000 § 23565000 § 0 3040000 § 0 4156000 § 24750000

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Company had stockholders™ equity of $73.4 million and working capital of $43.7 million on December 31, 2011 compared with 572 million
and $44.7 million at December 31, 2010, respectively, The 1.4 million net increase in stockholder's equity reflects $18.5 million in 2011 profits as
well as equity transactions as outlined in the “Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockhalders’ Equity and accumulated other comprehensive
income (loss),” offset by the purchase of 5204 million treasury stock. The Company’s cash and cash equivalents position decreased from $17.2
million at December 31, 2010 to $14.3 million at December 31, 2011, The 52.9 million decrease was mainly due 1o the purchase of treasury stock
and $£14.3 millien purchases of property and equipment, and $2.2 million of net investment purchases. These were offset by an 5185 million in net
income and a $3.8 mullion increase in accounts payable and accrved expenses,

The Company currently has no off-balance sheet arrangemenis.

In the vear ended December 31, 2011 the Company generated cash flow of $34.9 million from operations, primarily attributable (o $18.5 million in
net operating income. MNet changes in operating assets and liabilities decreased cash flow by 3761,000. Sources of cash include an increase in
payables and acerued expenses of 33.8 million. This was offset by a total use of £4.6 million which includes an increase in prepaid income taxes of
522 million, an increase in accounts receivable of $854 000, an increase in inventory of 3435 000, an inerease in prepaid expenses of $143,000. and
an increase in other assets of $971,000,

In the year ended December 31, 2001, nel cash used i investing activilies was $16.9 million, which was primarily due (o a net $2.2 million increase
in invesiment purchases and $14.3 millien for the purchase of property and equipment. The increase in property and equipment relates to the
building of a large amount of infeastructure in 2011 to support growih. This included the opening of thirtv-one new Medifast Weight Control
Center locations, development of an operating svstem for the Medifast Weight Control Centers, a new web shopping platform launched in March
2011, development and launch of the Take Shape for Life Trilogy Training website, infrastructure 1o support our computer systems and additions 1o
corporate offices, manufacturing, and distribution facilities to support future growth

In the year ended December 31, 2011, financing activities used $21 million in cash. Cash was used to purchase 8204 million of treasury stock in
the open market and 1o repay 51,1 million outstanding debt.

In pursuing its business strategy, the Company may require additional cash for operating and investing activities. The Company expects future cash
requirements, ifany, to be funded from operating cash flow and financing activities.

There are no current plans or discussions in process relating fo any acquisitions in the foresecable future
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CONSOLIDATED RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
20 COMFPARISON WITH 2009

Overview of the Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2000 Compared to Twelve Months Emnded December 31, 2009

Twelve Months Ended December 31,

2010 2009 § Change % Change

Revenus $257,552,000 $£169,743,000 $37.800,000 5%
Cost of sales 65,083,000 45,355,000 19,728,000 43%
Gross Profit 192,469,000 124,388,000 68,021,000 55%
Selling, general, and admanistration 160,829,000 105,891,000 54,938,000 5%
Income from operations 31,640,000 18,497,000 13,143,000 1%
Other income/expense)

Interest income (expense), net 274,000 10,000 264,000

Other income/{expense) (222,000) (83,0000 (139,000)

52,000 (73,000) 125,000 A171%

Income before provirion for income taxes 31,592,000 18,424,000 13,268,000 T2%
Provision for income tax (expense) (12,021,000) (7,067,000) (5,014,000) %

Net income ‘ll?iﬁl 1,000 $11,357 %m 3%

¥ of Tevenue

Gross Profit T4.T% 133%
Selling, general, and administration 62.4% 62.4%
Income from Operations 123% 10.9%

Revenue: Revenue increased to 8257.6 million in 2010 compared to $169.7 million in 2009, an increase of $87.8 million or 52%. The Take Shape
for Life sales channel accounted for 64.3% of total revenue, Medifast Direct channel accounted for 24.9%%, and Weight Control Centers and
Moedifast Wholesale Physicians accounted for 10.7% of total revenue. Take Shape for Life sales, increased by 61% compared to 2009, As compared
to 2009, the Medifast Direct Response sales channel, which is fucled primarily by consumer advertising, increased revenues by approximately 30%
vear-over-year. The Medifast Weight Control Centers and Medifast Wholesale Physicians increased sales by 37% due to the opening of new
corporate and franchise locations and year-over-year improvement in same store sales.

Take Shape for Life revenue increased 61% to $165.6 million compared with $102.7 million in 2009 Growth in revenues for the distribution
channel was dnven by inereased customer product sales as a result of an increase in the mumber of active Health Coaches acquinng an increased
number of active elients. The number of active Health Coaches during the year increased to approximately 9.000 compared with 6000 at the end of
2009, an increaze of 500 In todav’s environment where trust and personal recommendations are becoming a more important component in
consumer purchasing decisions, the Take Shape for Life model of onc-on-one communication conlinues to excel. Take Shape for Life customers
who have wilized the Medifast products and programs and successfully have addressed their body weight and health issucs are increasingly
choosing to become active Health Coaches. Becoming a health coach is a business opportunity that has a low cost of start-up and requires no
holding of inventory as all orders are shipped to the end consumer. In the current economie environment, many people are looking for supplemental
ingome to assist in paving bills such as the car pavment, rent, or mortgage, and becoming a health coach allows for supplemental income in the form
ol a commission compensation on product sales and supporting the customer neéeds by providing education on the program and support to customers
ordering through Take Shape for Life and most importantly the ability to help others regain their health through the wse of clinically proven
Medifast produets.

The Medifast Direet Response Sales division sales increased 30% fo $64.2 million as compared with $49.3 million in 2009, an incrense of $15
million. Due to 8 more effective advertising message, more targeled adverlising through extensive analviical analysis, and improved call center
closing rates the Company experienced a 2.8 o 1 return on advertising spending during 2010. The Company spent approximately 523 million on
direct response advertising in 2010, an increase of 32% from 2009,



The Medifast Weight Control Centers and Medifast Wholesale Physicians channel represent 10.7% of the Company’s averall revenues. Al the end
of 2010, Medifast Weight Control Centers were operating in thirty-nine corporate loeations in Austin, Dallas, Houston, Orlando, Baltimore, and
Washington, D.C., and twenty-one franchise centers were in operation. In 2010, the Company experienced revenue growth of 38% versus the same
time period last vear. In 2010, same store sales increased by 24% for corporate Centers open greater than one vear. In 2010, the Company opened
12 new corporate Medifast Weight Control Centers and 3 new franchise centers. Throughout 201 1, the Company anticipates opening an additional
25-30 corporately owned Medifast Weight Control Centers.

Costs of Sales: Cost of sales increased $19.7 million in 2000 10 $65.1 million as compared 10 $45.4 million in 2009. As a percentage of sales, gross
margin inereased 1o 74, 7% from 73.3% in 2009, The 140 bps improvement in gross margin percentage resulled in a 33.6 million improvement in
gross margin based on 2010 sales volume of $257.6 million. The gross margin improvement was primarily the result of decreased shipping cost as a
percentage of sales of $1.4 million, economics of scale in ordering raw materials and packaging of $1.4 million, and improved labor and overhead
ahsarption af $750,000.

Selling., General and Administrative: Overall, selling. general amnd sdministrative expenses increased by $54.9 million as compared to 2009, Asa
percentage of sales, selling, gencral and administrative expenscs remained at 62.4% for 2010 and 2009, Take Shape for Life commission cxpense,
which 15 completely vanable based upon product sales, increased by approximately $27.4 million as the Company showed sales growth of 61% as
compared to 2009, Take Shape for Life Health Cosches are ind.cpl.-nd:nt contractors thal are Imir.l COMMISSIONS 01 Pr-m:lu::l sales referred 1o the
Company. Health Coaches earmn commissions by referring product sales through their own replicated website or through the Company s in-house
call center. The clients of Health Coaches are responsible for order and payment of produet and their order is shipped direetly to their home or
designated address. Health Coaches are not required to purchase praduct in order o receive a commission. In addition, Health Coaches do not
receive a commission on their personal product orders or non product sales on tools and training materials. Salaries and benefits increased by $12.5
wilhion i 20010 as compared 1o last vear. The increase neludes the hinng of addibonal expertise in entical areas such as Take Shape for Life and
the Medifust Weight Control Centers. Areas that also experienced additional stafling due to the 52% sules growth in 2010 inelude manufactiuring.
distribution, call center, and IT. The opening of the Company's new Dallas, TX distribution center in July of 2010 also led to the hiring of
additional personnel in both distribution and the call center. Sales and marketing expense inereased by 7.8 million in 2010 as compared to the prior
year, pr:imarihr due o the 5.6 million incresse in Medilast Direct adw:rli:u'ng. Communieation CXponse mereased S300,000 and other CXpenses
increased by $1.9 million which included items such as depreciation, amorization, credit card processing [ees, charlable contnbubtions, and
property laxes. Operating expenses increased S800.000 as compared (o 2009, Office expense increased by 53,7 million and stoeck compensation
expense increased by 5527000 as additional restricted shares were issued to key exccutives and Board members.

Income taxes: In 2010, the Company recorded 512.1 million in income tax ¢xpense, which represents an effective rate of 38.1%, In 2009, ihe
Company recorded income tax expense of 7.1 mallion which reflected an effective tax rate of 38 4%,

Net income: Nel income was approximately $19.6 million in 2010 as compared to approximately $11.4 million in 2009, an increase of 73%. Pre-
tax profil as a percent of sles increased to 12.3% in 2010 as compared 1o 10.9% in 2009, The improved profitability in 2000 15 due 1o sales growth
in the Take Shape for Life division, Medifast Weight Control Centers, and Direct Response sales channels as well as improved advertising
effectiveness in the Medifast Direct sales channel, gross margin improvement as well az leveraging the fixed costs associnted with our vertieally-
infegraled support struclure

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Company had stockholders’ equity of $72.0 million and working capital of 334.7 million on December 31, 2010 compared with $47.8 mullion
and 527.1 million at December 31, 2009 respectively. The $24.2 million net increase in stockholder’s equity reflects 519.6 million in 2010 profits
as well as equity transactions as outlined in the *Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders” Equity and accumulated other comprehensive
income (loss).” The Company’s cash and cash equivalents position inereased [rom 51006 million af December 31, 2004 1o 5172 million at
December 31, 2010, The 36.6 million increase was due mainly 1o the inereased profits of $19.6 million and an increase in payvables and acerued
expenses of §7.3 million. These were offset by an 583 million increase in inventory and an increase in capital spending.

The Company currently has no off-balance sheet arrangements.

In the year ended December 31, 2000 the Company generated eash Qow of $28.8 from operations, primanly atinbulable o higher operating income.
Nel changes in operaling assels and liabilities increased cash Dow by 3486000, Sources of cash include a deerease in prepad expenses of 51.6
million, a decrease of other assets of $138,000, and an increase in payables and acerued expenses of 37.3 million. This was offset by a total use of
S8.6 million which includes an ineréase in inventory of $8.302.000 and an increase in prepaid income taxes of $344.000.

In the vear ended December 31, 2010, net cash used in investing activities was 823.5 million, which was primanly due 1o an inerease in investment
activity and the purchase of property and equipment.  The increase in property and equipment relates to the building of a large amount of
infrastructure m 2010 o support growth, This included the opemng of twelve new Medifast Weight Contrel Center locations, development of an
operating system for the Medifast Weight Control Centers, continued development of a new web shopping platform the Direct Response Marketing
and Take Shape for Life Channel that launched successfully in March 2011, ERP system enhancements, IT infrastructure to support new systems
and leasehold improvements to manufacturing and distribution facilities to support future growth.

In the vear ended December 31, 2000, financing activities generated 51,333,000 in cash flow. Sources of cash included an increase in long term
debt of $393,000, a decrease in notes reccivable of $5.000, an issuance of commaon stock, options and warrants of $34,000, and excess tax benefit
from share based payment arangements of $1_ 77000, This was offset by a vse of cash in the repayment of long term debt of $834 000 and the
purchase of treasury stock for 535,000,

In pursuing its business simiegy, the Company may require additional cash for operating and imvesting sctivities, The Company expects (uture cash
requirements, if any, to be funded from operating cash flow and eash flow from financing activities.



There are no current plans or discussions in proeess relating to any material acquisition that is probable in the foreseeable future.

SEASONALITY

The Company's weight management products and programs have historically been subject to seasonality.  Tradiionally the holiday season in
November/December of each vear is considered poor for diet control products and services. January and February generally show increases in sales, as
these months are considered the commencement of the “diet season.”

INFLATION

Ta date, inflation has not had a material effect on the Company's business,

ITEM 7TA. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Markel nsk is the potential loss ansing from adverse changes in markel rales and prices, such as mlerest rales and a decline in the stock markel. The
Company does not enter into derivatives, foreign exchange transactions or other financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes. The Company
has limited exposure to market risks related to changes in interest rates, The principal nisks of loss ansing from adverse changes in market rates and
prices to which the Company and itz subsidiaries are exposed relate to interest rates on debt. Since nearly all of our debi is variable rate based, any
changes in market interest rates will cause an equal change in our net inferest expense. At December 31, 2011, there were $4.5 million of vanable
interest loans outstanding which is subject to interest mte risk. Interest rates on our vanable rate loans ranged from 1.3% to 2.8% for the year ended
December 31, 2011, Each 100 basis point increase in the bank's LIBOR rates relative to these borrowings would impact interest expense by 545 000
over a 12-month peried.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The information required by this item is set forth on pages 39 to 78 hereto and incorporated by reference herein,

ITEM % CHANGES AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING
AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES

There were no disagreements with the Company’s independent auditors, regarding accounting and financial disclosures for the fiscal year ending
December 31,2011,

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Dizclosure Controls and Procedures

In accordance with Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(¢), we carned out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of management,
including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as required by
Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(b) as of the end of the period covered by this report. Based upon that evaluation, our management has concluded that
our disclosure controls and procedures are effective as of December 31, 2011,

Management's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Cur management 5 rﬁilmrmihlc for culahl[ﬂhinﬁ and m.uinlu.'minE u.d«:quulu infernal control over linaneial rl:purling for the Company. Internal eonirol
over financial reporting is a process to provide ressonuable assurance regarding the relisbility of our (inaneial reporting for external purposes in
accordance with asccounting principles generally accepled in the United Stales of Amenca. Internal control over linancial reporting includes
maintaining records that in reasenable detail accurately and fairly reflect our transactions; providing reasonable assurance that transsctions are
recorded as necessary for preparation of our financial stalements; providing reasonable assurance that receipls and expenditures of Company assels
are made in sceordance with management authonzation; and providing reasonable assurance that unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of
Company assels that could have a material effect on our finuncial stalements would be prevented or detecled on 8 timely basis. Beenuse of s
inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting is not intended 1w provide abselute assurance that a misstatement of our financial
statements would be prevented or detected.

Management conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting based on the framework in Internal
Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on this evaluation, our
management concluded that the Company 's intermal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2011.

The effectivencss of the Company's internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2011, was audited by MoGladrevé& Pullen, LLF,
our independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report appearing below.

Changes in our Internal Control

In our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the vear ended December 31, 2010, we reported two matenial weaknesses with respeet to internal controls
relating o the effectiveness of management’s monitoring of the finaneial close processes and the income ax process.



In response o these material weaknesses, management has implemented the following remediation actions during the fiscal vear ended
December 31,2011

*  Hired key management level finance emplovees, including a Senior Controller and Assistant Controller with a combined 50 vears of
gxperience in public accounting and Fortune 300 companies, These individuals possess the technical aceounting knowledge and experfise
necessary 1o effectively monitor the financial close process,

*  [Established an expense recognition policy and implementing control enhancements that ensure expenses are recognized in the proper
period and that we are in compliance with GAAP.

*  Implemented a new point of sale system at Medifast Weight Control Centers to give management enhanced visibility as to programs
purchased and revenue recognition assumptions.

*  Hired a Director of Corporate Tax with experience in ASC740, “Accounting for Income Taxes™ and ASCT40-10 “Accounting for
Uncertainty in Income Taxes™ to manage the tax provision process.

+  [Enhanced our process for compiling and reviewing the gquarerly tax provision, ineluding review by the CFO and Senior Controller,

Management has determined as of December 31, 2011, that the remediation actions discussed above were effectively designed and demonstrated
effective operation for a sufficient peniod of time to enable the Company to conclude that the material weaknesses have been remediated,

Limitations on the Effectiveness of Controls

Our management, including our Chiel Exeeutive Officer and Chief Finaneial Officer, does not expect that our disclosure controls ar our internal
controls will prevent or detect all errors and all fraud. A control gystem, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable, not
absolute, assurance that the cantrol system’s objectives will be met. Further, the design of a control system must reflect the fact that there arc
resource constraints, and the benefits of contrals must be considered relative to their costs. Beeause of the inherent limitations in all control systems,
no evaluation of contrals can provide shsolule assuranee that all eontrol issues and instances of fraud, iCany, within the Company have been
detected. These inherent limitations include the realitics that judgments in decision-making can be faulty, and that breakdowns can occur because of
simple error or mistake, Conltrols can also be cireumvented by the individual acts of some persans, by collusion of twe or more people, or by
:mu.nuchcnl overnide ol the contrals. Thl: d::u'En nran:,' h':,'rd.cm of contrals 15 based in paﬂ. upon cerlain amiumptiuna about the ikelihood of future
events, and there can be no assurunee that any design will suceeed in sehieving its stated goals under all potential future conditions. Over ime,
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or deferioration in the degree of compliance with assoeiated policies or
procedures. Beeause of the inherent limitations in a cost-cffective control system, misstatements due to error or fraud may oceur and not be
detected.



Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Sharcholders of
Medifast, Inc.

We have audited Medifast, Ine."s (the “Company™) internal control over {inancial reporting as of December 31, 2011, based on criteria established
in fnternal Control—Imiegrated Framework issued by the Commitlee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission The Company s
management iz respongible for maintaining effective intemnal contral aver financial reporting and for its aszeszment of the effectiveness of internal
control over financial reporting included in the accompanying “AManagement s Reporr en Internal Cantrol Chver Finaneial Reporting ™. Our
responsibility is 1o express an opinion on the company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Hoard (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to oblain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respeets. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal eontrol over finaneial reporting, assessing the risk that
a materal weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating ellectiveness of internal control based on the assessed ngk. Our
audit alzo included performing such other procedures az we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opimon.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financal
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (o) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the asscts of the company; (b} provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepled accounting pnnciples,
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (¢) provide reazonable assurance regarding prevention or imely detection of unauthorized scquisiion, use, or disposiiion of the
company’s asscts that could have a material effect on the financial stalements.

Beeause of its inherent limitations, internal eontrol over financial reporting may nol prevent or detect misstalements. Also. projections ol any
evaluation of elfectiveness to [ulure penods are subjeel (o the nsk that eontrols may beeome inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Medifast, Inc. maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2011, based
om erileria established in fnierral Cantral — fﬂ.l!egra!ad Framework 1ssued I:}r the Commiliee of 5 [l::nsu:ri ng, Org,ani?nﬁunn ol the Tn:u:lwa}r
Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated
halance sheets as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the related consalidated statements of income, chun&:s in stockholders” cqui.l:r and
comprehensive income, and cash flows for each of the two vears in the peniod ended December 31, 2011 of the Company and our report dated
March 15, 2012 expressed an unqualified opinion.

/&/ MeGiladrey & Pullen, LLP

Baltimore, Mary land
March 15, 20012



ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

Not applicable

k)



PART III

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY

MName Age Position
Hradley T. Macilonald 64 Executive Chalrman of the Board (until October 31, 2011) and Director
Michael 5. MeDevit 33 Chiel Executive Officer and Director (until February 8, 2012)
Michael C. MacDronald 59 Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chicl’ Executive Officer
Margaret Sheatz 34 Chief Operating Officer, President and Director
Brendan N, Connors 34 Chiel Financial Officer
Harvey C. "Bamey™ Bamum, Jr. 71 Inrector
Barry B, Bondroff, CPA 63 Director
Charles P. Connally 63 Director
Jazon L. Grovea 41 Execmiive Vice President, General Counsel and Director
George J. Lavin, Jr., Esq. 83 Directar
Sr. Catherine T. Maguire RSM 61 Director
John P. MeDaniel 649 Darector
Jeannetie M. Mills 45 Director
Jerry D. Reece 71 Darecior
Donald F. Reilly, OSA [ Director

Bradicy T. MacDonald, age 64, served as the Excoutive Chairman of the Board of Medifast. Inc. until October 31, 2011, at which time he resigned
due to health 1ssues. Mr. MacDonald was Chairman of the Board of Medifast, Inc. from January 1998 to October 2011, and was also Chief’
Executive Officer from September 1996 to March of 2007. He was the principal architect of the turnaround of Medifast and formulated the “Direct
1o Consumer™ business models that are the primary drivers of revenue to this day. He also was the Co-Founder of Take Shape for Life and acquired
the Clinie operations in 2002, During his time as Chairman of the Board he provided strategic oversight and assisted the executive management
team o 33 consecutive quarters of profits and improved sharcholders equity from negative 54 million to over 855 million in ten yvears. In this time
the Company increased its market cap from negative 53 .8 million to over 5400 million and was listed on the NYSE. At the time the Board planned
leadership succession, the Board assigned Mr. MacDonald executive pesponsibilities in the following arcas: legal affairs, treasury, banking
relationships, M&A, strategic plan oversight, public policy oversight, and community relations in addition to Board responsibilitics as Execulive
Chairman and as the formal Co-Founder of Take Shape for Life. In 2006, Mr. MacDonald received the prestigious Ernst and Young award of
“Entreprencur of the Year™ for the state of Marvland 1n the consumer products catégory. Also, he helped lead the Company to national recogniton
in Forbes Magazine ranking Medifast 28" of the top 200 small companies in America. Mr. MacDonald was previously employed by the Company
as its Chief Exceutive Officer from September 1996 to August 1997, From 1991 through 1994, Colonel MacDonald retumed to active duty 1o be
Deputy Director and Chief Financial Officer of the Retail, Food, Hospitality and Recreation Businesses for the United States Marine Corps. Prior
therets, Mr. MacDonald served as Chief Operating Officer of the Bonneau Sunglass Company, President of Pennsvivania Optical Co., Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer of MacDonald and Associates, which had major financial interests in retail drug, consumer candy, and pilot sunglass
companies. Mr. MacDonald was national president of the Marnne Corps Reserve Officers Association and retired from the United States Marine
Corps Reserve as a Colonel in 1997, after 28 vears of service, He was appointed and served on the Defense Advisory Board for Employer Support
of the Guard and Beserve (ESGR.) for three vears. Currently, Mr. MacDonald serves on the Board of Trusiees of Stevenson University in
Marviand, and is the President of the Catholic Community Foundation of the Archdiocese of Baltimore. He is also the Viee-Chairman of the Board
of Directors of the Marine Corps Reserve Tovs lor Tols Foundation.  Mr. MacDonald is the father of Margaret Sheetz, the President and Chiefl
Operating Officer of Medifast, Ine. Mr, MacDonald 15 the brother of Mr. Michael C. MacDonald, Chairman and Chief Exceutive Officer of the
Company.

Bradley T. MaeDonald was first selected as a Direetor in 1996, beeause of his executive and entrepreneurnial expenience in the businesses noted
above. In addition, he has held leadership positions of increasing responsibility in the United States Marine Corps attaining the rank of Colonel and
attending service schools to include the Maval War College. [is selection as Director was based on his successful wrnaround of Medifast as Chiel’
Executive Officer and amml‘u“y guiding the Company under a new prnﬁlnhlc business model . Ihwi'ng exlensive c:i]:l-:ricnnc on Wall Street, ax
Chiel Executive Officer off Medifast when he restructured the Company in 1999 which has since recorded over 49 conseculive quarlers of
profitability, he is able to provide stratepie guidance to the Company.

Michael S. McDevitt, nge 33, served as the Chief Executive Officer of Medifast Inc. until February &, 2012, Under Mr MeDevitt's leadership,
Medifast was named the “#1 Small Company in Amenca”™ by Forbes Magazine in 2010, due in part to the Company’s tremendous 120% vear-over-
vear enmings growth. Mr, MeDevitt joined Medifast in 2002 bringing with him a strong background in financial and operational management. He
was named Chief Financial Officer in 2006 before rising o the role of Chiel Executive Officer in 2007, Prior to Medifast, McDevint served as
a senior analyst for the Blackstone Group, a private equity group based in Mew York City. Mr. MeDevitt volunteers for Big Brothers Big Sisters of
Central Maryland and is a member of the board of direetors for the American Heant Association's Baltimore region. Additionally, he supports the
efforts of the Amencan Diabetes Association and the Toys for Tots Foundation. Mr. MeDeviit holds a bachelor's degree in business administration
from James Madison University with a coneéntration in finance.

Michael C. MacDonald, age 59, Mr. MacDonald joined Medifast's Executive Commitiee of the Board of Directors in 1998, has served as
Executive Chairman sinee Movember 2011, and was promoted to Chairman & Chief Executive Officer in February 2012, Prior to this role, Mr.
MacDonald was Exccutive Vice President of OfficeMax, oversecing the Contract Division — a 33,6 hillion division of the OfficeMax Company
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Mr. MacDonald has spent an additional 33 years in sales, marketing, and general management at Xerox Corporation. Among his most significant
roles was leading the tumaround in Morth America from the years 2000 to 2004 as President of the North American Solutions Group, a 6.5 billion
division of Xerox, In addition, Mr. MacDonald was President of Global Accounts and Marketing from 2004 1o 2007, where e led the re-branding
of the Xerox Corporation. Mr. MacDonald also has international experience in marketing. sales, and operations with both Xerox and OfficeMax.

Mr. MacDonald received his Bachelor of Arts, Political Seience at Rutgers University, eamed 44 MBA Credits at lona College, and attended
premier exceutive education courses in leadership and management at Harvard and Columbia Universities.

In addition to serving ag Chairman and CED of Medifasl, Ine., Mr. MacDonald alzo serves on the Jimmy V Foundation and the Archdiocese of
Baltimore Catholic Community Foundation.

Margaret Sheetz, age 34, is the President and Chief Operating Officer of Medifast, Inc. In March 2011, Margaret also became the Chief Executive
Officer of Take Shape for Life. Prior to joining the company in 2000, she worked with the firm of Carmington, Coleman, Sloman and Blumenthal in
Dallas, Texas. As Medifast confinues to see strong vear-over-vear growth, Ms. Sheetz has provided the operational and technical leadership that
has resulted in Medifast providing the proper infrastructure 1o support the growth of the company. Her aceomplishments include making dramatic
productivity improvement in the Company”s operational capabilities, as well as building a strong infrastructure of distribution, manufacturing,
information systems and human resource operations necessary to support rapid business growth, Ms. Sheete was first selected as a Management
Dhirector in 2008 after she had assumed the positions of President and Chief Operating Officer of Medifast. Ine. Her leadership and oversight skills
are greatly admired, and she is recognized in the Company as a detail-orientated executive who builds high-performance teams. The Board
considers her the source person to get information pertinent to the oversight of Medifast's operations. Ms. Sheetz is the daughter of Bradley T.
MacDonald and the nicee of Michael C. MacDonald.

Ms. Sheetz supports the efforts of the Amencan Diabetes Association, the American Heart Association, and Toys for Tots Foundation. She sits on
the Board of Directors for Stevenson University, the Greater Baltimore Committee, Siloam, and is also a member of the Villanova President's
Leadership Cirele. In addition, she is the managing trustes of the MacDonald Family Foundation and the Take Shape for Life Foundation which
focuses on grants to support educational programs for disadvantaged students. Ms. Sheetz is an active member of Vistage, an orgamzation of top
area business leaders who meet regularly to discuss business challenges, get peer advice, and learn how to take sman risks to move their companies
confidently to the next level. She holds a Bachelor of Arts degree from Villanova University and received an Executive MBA from Lovaola
University.

Brendan N. Connors, CPA, age 34, Mr. Connors has been the Chiel Financial Officer of Medifast since May 2010, Mr, Conners jeined Medifast
as the Vice President of Finance in April of 2005. Prior to joining Medifast, Mr. Connors worked as a Senior Accountant at Welf &Company P.C.,
o certified public accounting and consulting firm in Boston, MA .

Directors

Harvey C, “Barney™ Barnum, Jr., age 71, was sworn in as the Deputy Assistant Secretary of the Navy for Reserve Affairs on July 23,
2001, In this capacity he was responsible for all matiers regarding the Mavy and Marine Corps Heserve including manpower, equipment,
policy and budgeting. On Jan, 20, 2009, Barnum was designated Acting Assistant Secretary of the Mavy (Manpower and Heserve Aftairs), a
position he held until May 2009, Mr. Barnum was the fourth Marine to be awarded the nation’s highest honor, the Medal of Honor for valor
in Vietnam. He retired from the Marine Corps as a Colonel in August 1989 after 27 and one-half years of service, Barmum served multiple
tours as an arilleryman with both the 3rd and 2nd Marine Divisions to include two tours in Vietnam; 2nd Marine Aireraft Wing, guard
officer ai Manne Rarracks, Pearl Harbor, and operations officer, Hawniian Armed Forces Police; weapons instructor at the Officer Rasic
School, four vears at Marine Corps Reeruit Depot, Parns Island, as commanding officer, Headquarters Company and the 2nd Recruit
Training Battalion of the Training Regiment. Chief of Current Operations, US Central Command where he planned and executed the first
LS. Aordanian joint exercise statf as the commander of LS. Forces and twice planned and execoted Operation Bnght Star spread over four
southwest Asian countries involving 26 (00 personnel. Headquarters Marine Corps tours included: aide to the assistant commandant as a
captain and deputy director Public Aflairs, Director Special Projects Directorate and Military Secretary to the Commandant as a colonel,
Upon retirement in 1989, Barnum served as the principal director, Drisg Enforcement Policy, Office of the Secretary of Defense. Bamum’s
personal medals and decorations include: the Medal of Honor, Defense Superior Service Medal: Legion of Merit; the Bronze Star Medal wath
Combat “V" and gold star in liew of a second award; Purple Heart, Mentonious Service Medal, Navy Commendation Medal; Mavy
Achievement Medal with Combat “V™, Combat Action Ribbon: Presidential Unit Citation; Army Presidential Unit Citation: Joint Meritorious
Unit Award; Navy Unit Citation; two awards of the Meritorious Unit Citation; the Vietnamese Cross of Gallantry (silver) and the Department
of the Navy Distinguished Public Service Award. Barnum has attended The Basic School, U.S. Army Field Artillery School, Amphibious
Warfare School, US. Army Command and Geneml Staft’ College and the U8, Naval War College. He is the past president of the
Congressional Medal of Honor Society, Connecticut Man of the Year '67, presented [lonorary LegumDactorem St Anselm College: Rotary
Paul Harris Fellow; Abe Pollin Leadership Award "03, Marine Corps League “Tron Mike™ Award. Order of the Carabao Distinguished
Service Award, and Ted Williams Leadership Award.

Harvey C. “Bamey” Bamum was first selected to be a Director in 2009 because of his extensive distinguished government service at the
Department of the Navy Executive level and his distinguished military career which includes the Medal of Honor Award for bravery in
Vietnam. Mr. Barnum will bring expertise to the Board in the area of Publie Poliey initiatives as it relates to his knowledge of the Executive
and Legislative Branch of the US Government and his oversight of our Governmental BEelations and Policy initiatives on Obesity related to
Medifast products, protocols and clinical studies.

Barry B. Bondrofl, CPA, age 63, is an officer and director with Georfine, Schiller & Gardyn, PA, a full-service certified public accounting
firm offering a wide range of accounting and consulting serviees.  Previously, he was a Semior Managing Director with SMART. Mr.
BondrofT brings over 35 vears of experience providing companies of all sizes and industries with practical and cost-effective accounting,



assurance, tax, business, technology and financial advisory services. Prior to managing SMART, Mr. Bondroft was the Managing Director
for (rrabush, Newman & Co., P A, which combined with SMART in May 2003. Mr. Bondroff began his career with Grabush Newman in
1970, and in 1976 became Officer and was promoted to Managing Director in 1982, He camed his Bachelor of Science degree in Accounting
from the University of Baltimore, Additionally. Mr. Bondrofl serves on the Board of Directors for the publicly traded First Mariner Bank of
Marviand, o MASDACQ listed SEC registrant. He is active with First Mariner serving on the Executive Commitiee, Loan Committes, Audit
Commitiee and as Chairman of the Compensation Committee. In addition to his professional affilintions, Mr. Bondrofl’ served on the
Executive Comimttee for Ismel Bonds and was a Direclor of Cyele Across Maryland., He has served the National Jewish Medical and
Kesearch Center, the Jewish Center for Business Development and has assisted the Baltimore Svimphony Crehestra in its fundraising eflorts.
In addition, Mr. Bondrofl was a past President and Treasurer of the Edward A. Meyerberg MNorthwest Senor Center, and also served as a
Member of the Board of Directors for the Levindale Hebrew Geriatric Center and Hospital. He currently serves as Treasurer for Special
Olympics of Maryland, as a Trustee for Stevenson University in Marvland and a member of the Audit Committee of the Associated.

Barry B, Bondroff was first selected as a Director in 2008 because of his more than 36 years experience as a CPA, and with corporaie
governance including serving on the Board of another public Company. He utilizes that experience as a financial expert and his elected
position of Vice Chairman of the Board. His service on the Audit Committee and Nominating Committee and his availability as a local
director in Baltimore provide for local oversight and practical consulting in the area of financial management, risk assessment and Sarbanes-
COrdley regulations. He also provides an extensive rolodex that assists Medifast's manogement team to find the best talent in the market to
assist in our growth and develepment.

Charles P. Connolly. age 63 is currently an independent director focusing on bank relationships, debt relinancing. merger and acquisition
strategy and executive compensation design. Mr. Connolly spent 29 vears at First Union Corp. that merged with Wachovia Bank in 2001. He
retired in 2001 as the President and CEO of First Union Corp. of Pennsylvania and Delaware. Mr. Connolly serves on the Boards of
numerous profit and non-profit organizations. He helds an MBA from the University of Chicago and AB from Villanova University.

Charles P. Connolly was first selected as a Director in 2006 for his extensive executive expenience and financial acumen derived from an
executive banking resume, His current selection as Director leverages that background of reviewing the financials and performance of
hundreds of companies in the public and private sector. He possesses a unique financial and risk assessment perspective into the operations
and financial management of the company. He spends an extraordinary amount of tme with our executive téam providing guidance and
consultation on kev metrics and performance objectives that have served Medifast well in the past few vears. As the Chairman of the Audit
Committee he has served diligently to insure that the company maintains its ligh standards of accountability,

Jason L. Groves, Esq., age 41, 13 the Company's Executive Viee President and General Counsel. Prior to joining Medifast as EVEP and
General Counsel in Mavember 2011, Mr. Groves previously spent ten vears with Venizon. He was most recently the Assistant Vice President
of Government Affairs for Verizon Maryland, since 2003, Mr. Groves iz also an Army veteran. [le waz a direet commissioned Judge
Advocate in the United States Army Judge Advocate General's Corp (JAG). As a JAG Officer, he practiced law and had the distinetion of
prosecuting cniminal cases in the Distnet Court of Maryland as a Special Assistant United States Attorney. Over the course of three years, he
received two Army Achievement Medals, and one Army Commendation Medal. Mr. Groves received his Bachelor of Science degree, eum
laude, in Business with a concentration in Hospitality Management, from Bethune-Cookman University. He also obtained his law degree
from Morth Carolina Central University School of Law and is a member of the Mew Jersey and District of Columbia bars as well as several
bar associations. Additionally, he sits on several non-profit boards including Anne Amundel Medical Center and the Maryland Hospital
Assoeiation,

Juson .. Groves, Esg. was first selected as a Director in 2009 based on his military, business and legal background. Tn addition he has
exlensive experience with government relations, knowledge of the healthcare and commumications technology hields. He was a Federal
prosecutor thus providing keen insight on the regulatery and legul issues the company (aces in woday s business climate. His service on the
Audit Committee has provided timely oversight for all projects he has undertaken.

George J. Lavin, Jr., Esq., age 83, was the senior founding partner of Lavin, O'Meil, Ricei, Ceprone & Disipio. Mr. Lavin 15 a 1951
graduate of Bucknell University. He attended the University of Pennsylvania School of Law, receiving an L.L B, in 1956, and then served as
a Special Agent, Federal Bureau of Investigation, United States Department of Justice, until 1959, Mr. Lavin has extensive national
experience in products liability defense. He has had regional responsibilities in several automotive specialfy arcas, and was called upon to try
matters throughout the county on behalf of his clients. Mr. Lavin's practice emphasized his commitment to defending the automotive industry.
Mr. Lavin is admitted to practice before the Supreme Court of Pennsylvania, the United States Court of Appeals for the Third Circuit and the
United States District Courts for the Eastern and Middle Districts of Pennsylvania. He 15 a member of the Faculty Advisory Board of the
Academy of Advocacy, the Association of Defense Counsel, The Defense Research Institule, The American Board of Trial Advocates, and
the Temple University Law School faculty. He has also been elected a fellow of the American College of Trinl Lawvers, On March 1, 1904,
Mr. Lavin assumed the title of Counsel 1o his name sake firm. Mr. Lavin has served as the General Counsel 1o the Augustinian order of
Villanova, PA.

George 1. Lavin, Esq. was first selected as a Director in 2005 for his prestigious demonstrated legal experience on behall” of major
infermational businesses, management experience in his law firm and his exiensive service with the FBI. His current sclection as Director
values his experiential oversight on legal matters as well as his serviee on the Audit Commitiee and mentoring talents.

Sr. Catherine T. Maguire RSM. age 61, a Sister of Mercy, has served as Associate Executive Director at SILOAM, a Body, Mind, Spirit

wellness center for the HIVIAIDS community, from 1997 - 2000, Prior o this Sr. Maguire worked in ATDS Ministry within the prison
system in Washington, DC. and served as vocation director for her religious community for 8 vears. She received a BS degree in
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EducationEnglish in 1972, a MS degree in Library Science in 1974 both from Villanova University, and a MA degree in Theology with an
emphasis in Pastoral Ministry & Spintuality in 1995 from St Michael’s College in Vermont. She served on the Board of the Mational
Religious Voeation Conference from 1990-1992,

Sister Catherine T. Maguire, ESM was first selected as a Diregtor in 2009 for her extensive executive experience with not for profit human
services organizations and her strong baekground in organizational ethies and human resources and personnel management. She has multiple
sdvanced degrees and will assist in developing the “Women Executives™ of Medilast. As a result of her extensive management and human
resources background she was elected to the Nominations commitiee where she will assist in sereening and evaluating potential Director
Candidates and insure the corporate values related to diversity are implemented in the Company and on the Board.

John P. McDaniel, age 69, is a seasoned healthcare executive with more than 36 years of experience as a chiel executive officer, most
recently at MedStar Health in Columbia, Marvland, one of the largest and most comprehensive healtheare delivery systems in the mid-
Atlantic region with annual revenues exceeding 54 billion, encompassing 25,000 employees 5,000 physicians and nine leading hospitals and
other health related businesses. Mr. MeDaniel has a degree in Business Administration from Wittenberg University, a MHA in Health
Management and Poliey from the University of Michigan, and an Honorary Doctorate of Humane Letters (LHDY) from Wittenberg University.
He is presently Chair and Partner in The Hickory Ridge Group, an advisory, development and Tnvestment company thal focuses on emenging
healtheare and wechnology related entities, He is also o past member of the board of the Greater Baltimore Commitice, & member of the
Executive Committee of the Greater Washington Board of Trade, Wittenberg University and is Chair of the Washington Real Estate Trust
(WRE) a NYSE listed company.

John P. MeDaniel was {irst elected a Director in 2009 for his extensive executive and entreprencunial experience as well as his service on
other public boards, His extensive management and Board knowledge concerning the health care industry and health care policy will provide
seasoned oversight on behall’ of shareholders. Because of his Board related experience and leadership experience as a member of the
Maryland Racing Commission, Director of First Mariner Bank and former CEO of Medstar Health Systems. he is serving on the Executive,
Audit and Compensation Committees in order to bring his business acumen and organizational knowledge to the Company.

Jeannette M. Mills, age 45, currently serving as senior vice president with the Baltimore Gas and Electric Company, a subsidiary of
Constellation Energy. A Baltimore, MD native, Mills earned her Bachelor of Seience in Electneal Enginéenng from Virginia Polytechnie
Institute & State University (Virginia Tech) and she currently serves on the Advisory Board of the Bradley Department of Electrical and
Computer Engineering. In 2006, Ms. Mills carned her Masters of Business Administration from Lovola College. s, Mills also works in the
community, serving on the Board of Directors for Voices for Children. The Leadership (a program of the Greater Baltimore Commineg), the
Baltimore Polytechmie Institute Foundation, Ine., and the Esophageal Cancer Action Metwork (ECAN).

Ms. Mills was first selected as a Director in 2008 not only for her technical background but primarily for her high level of executive
experience. Her service as Chairperson of the Compensation Committee has effectively utilized her talents to review and assess the
operations and metncs used to evaluate key executives in the company. She has been instrumental in providing gudance and direchon to
ensure that all executives maintain the transparent high performance culture, and entreprencurial philosophy of exeoutive compensation
balanced with appropriate nsk assessment analysis.

Jerry D Reece, age 71, is chicf executive officer of Reece & Nichols: Real Estate, Mortgage, Title Insurance, The real estate arm of the
company is the largest real estate brokerage in Greater Kansas City. With over 40 vears expeneénce in real estate, Jerry Reece formed 11D,
Reece Realtors in early 1987, He sold the company in 2001 to Homeservices of America, Inc. a Berkshire Hathaway affiliate. After
graduating from the University of Oregon in 1963 with a B.S. in Finance, Jerry Reece joined the United States Marine Corps and served in
Hawaii and Vietnam as a first licutenant, Following active duty, he continued his service in the Marine Corps Reserve. His various
assignments included the command of a nfle battalion and service as a member of the Seeretary of the Navy's Marine Corps Reserve Policy
Board at the Pentagon., Retired with the rank of Colonel, he is a past member of the Board of Directors of the Manine Tovs for Tots
Foundation. His personal decorations include the Legion of Ment, The Navy Commendation Medal with Combat "V" and the Combat Action
Ribbon,

Jerry I, Reece was first selected as a Director in 2009 for his executive, entreprencurial and broad real estate expertise. He is a leader in his
community in Kansas City and has served on many for profit and nonprofit Boards, He is a decorated Vietnam veteran who has both civil and
military executive experience 1o provide oversight and be a resource for executive and real estate mafters requiring Board and corporate
governance oversight, Mr. Reece was an Advisory Board Member of Commerce Bank, K.C., from 2003 to 2011,

Donald F. Reilly, OSA, age 64, holds a Doctorate in Mimistry (Counseling) from New York Theological and an MA. from Washington
Theological Union as well as o B.A. from Villanova Umiversity. Reverend Don Reilly was ordmined o priest in 1974, His assignments
ingluded Associate Pastor, Pastor at 51 Denis, Havertown, Pennsylvania, Stafl at Villanova University, Personnel Director of the Augustinian
Provinee of 51. Thomas of Villanova, Provineial Counselor, Co-Founder of SILOAM Ministries where he numsters and counsels HIV/AIDS
patients and caregivers. He is currently on the Board of Directors of Villanova University. He also serves on the Board of Trustees of
Memimack College, MA, St Augustine Prep, NI, and Malvern Prep, PA. Fr. Reilly was Prior Provincial of the Augustinian Order at
Villanova, PA from 2002 - 2010, He oversaw more than 220 Augustinian Friars and their service to the Church, teaching at universities and
high schools, ministering to parishes, serving as chaplain in the Armed Forces and hospitals, ministering to AIDS victims, and serving
missions in Japan, Peru, and South Africa. Fr. Reilly is currently the President of St Augustine Preparatory School in Richland. New Jersey.

Very Rev. Donald F. Reilly, OSA was first selected ns a Director in 1998 for hus strong background in Personnel and Execulive management
with the Augustiman Community which serves the Catholic Church at Villanova University, Mernimack College, High Schools, Panshes and
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missions in Japan, South Africa and Peru. His current selection as Director utilizes his extensive knowledge of the Company serving as a
Direetor and participating in the restrueturing of the company in 1999, He was also instrumental in developing the current business model in
consultation with the Business Sehool at Villanova University. As Chairman of the Nominations comminee and being a Ph.D and nationally
known academic he has been an invaluable asset providing guidance to the company and ¢reating sharcholder value, He also is the primary
person on the Nomination Committee to identify and evaluate potential Director Candidates for character necessary to perform high
performance, nisk assessment and be transparent which are desirmble charactenisties for all potential directors. This will ensure continuity in
respect to the company s corporale govemance proctices and philosophy.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Board Involvement in Risk Oversight

The Company takes a comprehensive approach to nsk management. We believe nsk can anse in every decision and action taken by the Company,
whether strategic or operational, The Company, therefore, seeks 1o include risk management principles in all of its management processes and in the
responsibilities of its emplovees at every level. Our comprehensive approach is reflected in the reporting processes by which our management
provides timely and comprehensive information to the Board to support the Board™s role in oversight, approval and decision-making.

The Board of Ihrectors closely momtors the information 1t receives from management and provides oversight and gmdance to our management
team concerning the assessment and management of risk. The Roard approves the Company's high level goals, stratepies and policies to et the tone
and direction for appropriate risk taking within the business. The Board and its commitiees then emphasize this tone and direction in its oversight off
management”s implemeniation of the Company’s goals, strategies and policies.

Our sentor executives provide the Board and its committees with regular updates abou the Company's strategies and objectives and the risks
inherent within them at Board and committes meetings and in regular reports. Board and committee meetings also provide a venue for directors to
discuss issues with management, The Board and commiltees call special meetings when necessary 10 address specilie ssues, In addition, our
directors have sccess o Company management at all levels to discuss any matters of interest, including those related 1o risk. Those members of
management most knowledgeable of the issues attend Board mectings to provide additional insight inte items baing discussed, including nsk

ENpPOSUres.
The Board has delegated oversight for matters involving certain specific areas of risk exposure to its three committees. Each committee reports 1o

the Board of Directors at regularly scheduled Board meetings, and more frequently if appropriate, with respect to the matters and risks for which the
commitiee provides oversight.

The Audit Cummitlnr. oversees the inl:Erit}' of our ﬁna.n.ciul slalemenis, Il:IHH'f.inB process and mternal um'l.lmlu, the iIlI:ITIIJ audit Fum:linn. the
independent auditors’ qualifications, independence and performance, and the Company's corporate finance matiers including its capital structure.
The Audit Committee also provides oversight with respect to the Company’s =k management process, including, as required by the NYSE,
discussing with management the Company’s significant financial risk exposures, steps management has taken to monitor, control and report such
exposures amd our }'rn“i.:ics with respeet 1o nzk assessment and risk management.

Our Compensation Committee is responsible primanly for the design and oversight of the Company's execulive compensalion policies, plans and
practices. A key objective of the Compensation Committee is to ensure that the Company’s overall executive compensation program appropriately
links pay o performance and aligns the interests of the Company s execulives with its stockholders withoul encouraging unnecessary nsk. In
furtherance of this objective, the Compensation Committee evaluates the potentinl compensation pavable under the Company™s execulive
compensation plans based on alternative performance seenanos. The Compensation Committee also monitors the design and administration of the
Company’s overall in¢entive compensation programs to énsure that they include appropriate safeguards to avoid éncouraging unnécessary or
excessive nsk nking by Company emplovees. Elements of our execulive compensation program that mitigate excessive nisk taking, such as our
combination of short and long-term incentives are deseribed below under “Compensation Discussion and Analysis,”

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee oversees risks related to our corporate govemance, including Board and director
performance, director succession, director education and the Company’s Corporate Governanee Guidelines and other governance documents. The
Nominating and Corporate Governance Commitiee algo oversees the Company’s quality and regulatory affairs operations and the Company s
programs regarding ethics and compliance, and social and environmental responsibility.

Pursuam to Medifast Inc."s bylaws and governance guidelines, the rules of the NYSE, and the Chairman of the Board, the Nominations Commitlee
along with the consent of the Board of Directors determines the best committee structure for Medifast. The Board elects the Officers of the
Company.

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The Board of Dircctors of the Company has established a policy and certain procedures that must be followed prior to any transaction, arrangement
or relationship or senes of sumlar transactions, armangements or relationships, mcluding any indebicdness or guaraniee of indebicdness, with a
related party. Under this paliey, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee monitors and reviews issues invelving potential eontlicts of
interest involving officers and directors of the Company, including reviewing all related party transactions.
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Dvirector Independence

As of March 14, 2012, the Board consists of 13 members, 9 of whom are non-management directors. Delermination as (o the qualifications of an
independent directors are determined under seetion 303A.02 of the Mew York Steck Exchange, or the NYSE, Listed Company Manual and the
Company’s Categorical Standards of Independence. The NYSE’s independence guidelines and the Company’s calegornieal standards include a
series of objective tests, such as the director is not an emplovee of the Company and has not engaged in vanous types of business dealings involving
the Company, which would prevent a director from being independent. The Board of Directors has affirmatively determined that none of the
Company’s independent directors had any relationships with the Company.

The Board, in applving the above referenced standards, has affirmatively determined the Company s current independent directors are: Harvey C.
Barnum, Jr.. Barry B. BondrofX, Charles P. Connolly, George J. Lavin, Jr. Esq.. Catherine T. Maguire, John P. McDaniel. Jeannette M. Mills, Jerry
D. Reece, and Donald F. Really.

Board Meetings

For the iscal vear ended December 31, 20011 (“Fiscal 2010™), the Board of Directors held six meetings. All Board members attended at least 75%
of the aggregate number of Board meetings and applicable committes meetings held while such individuals were serving on the Board of Direclors,
or such committees. Under the Company's Principles of Corporate Gevernance, which is available on the Company's website
www, choosemedifast com, by follovang the hok through “Tnvestor Relations™ to “Corporate Governance,”™ each direetor 1 expected to dedieate
suflicient time, energy and attention to ensure the diligent performance of his or her duties. including attending meetings of the shareholders of the
Company, the Board of Directors and committees of which he or she is a member. Three directors attended the 2011 annual sharcholder mecting.

Codes of Business Conduct and Ethics and Corporate Governance Guidelines

Chir Board of Directors has adopled a corporate Code of Business Conduct and Ethies applicable to our directors, officers, ineluding our prineipal
execulive officer. principal linancial officer and principal accounting officer, and employees. as well as Corporate Governanee Guidelines, in
accordance with applicable rules and regulations of the SEC and the NYSE. Each of our Code of Business Conduct and Fthics and Corporate

Govemance Guidelines are available on our website at www. choasemedifast. com by following the links through “Tnvestor Relations” 1o “Corporale
Governance.”

Any amendment to, or waiver from, a provision of the Company’s Code of Business Conduet and Ethies with respeet 1o the Company’s prineipal
executive officer, prnneipal fnoncinl officer, principal accounting oflicer or controller will be posted on the Company’s websile,
www, cliooyernedifast, com,

Committees of the Board

Our Board of Directors has a standing audil commitiee, nominating and corporate governance commiliee, compensation commitiee, and execulive
commitiee,

Audit Commirtes

Our audit commitiee consists of Charles P. Connelly, Chairpersen, Barry B. Bondrofl, George J. Lavin, Jr. Esg., and John P. McDaniel each of
whom are independent as discussed above under “Director [ndependence.” As required by Rule 303A.07 of the NYSE Listed Company Manual,
the Board of Directors has affirmatively determined that each audil committee member is financially literate, and that Mr. Connolly is an “audit
commiflee financial expert,” 28 deflined in [em A07(d)5) of Regulation S-K.

The principal duties of the audit committee are as follows:
*  have the sole authority and responsibility to hire, evaluate and, where appropriate, replace the independent auditors;

*  meet and review with management and the independent auditors the interim financial statements and the Company’s disclosures under
Management's Diseussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations prior to the fling of the Company 's Quarterly
Reports on Form 10-0),

o méet and review with management and the independent auditors the financial statements to be included in the Campany s Annual Beport
on Form 10-K (or the annual report to shareholders) including (i) their judgment about the quality, not just accepiability, of the
Company”s accounting principles, ineluding significant financial reporting issues and judgments made in connection with the preparation
of the financial statements; (ii) the clanty of the disclosures in the financial statements; and (iii) the Company’s disclosures under
Management's Diseussion and Analvsis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, including entical aceounting policies;

* review and discuss with management, the internal auditors and the independent auditors the Company's policies with respect to risk
assessment and nisk management;

¢ peview and discuss with management, U intermnal auditors and the independent auditors the Company s internal controls, the results of the
intemnal audit program, and the Company s disclosure controls and procedures, and quarterly assessment of such controls and procedures,

*  establish procedures for handling complaints regarding accounting. imternal accounting controls and auditing matters. including
procedures for confidential, anonymous submission of concerns by emplovees regarding accounting and auditing matiers;

#  Review and discuss with management, the internal auditors and the iwlependent auditors the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the

Company's legal, regulatory and ethical complisnee programs, and
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*  Serve as a communication report to link under Company Whistle blower Policy.

Our Board of Directors has adepted a written charter for the audit commitiee which is available on the Company's website at
. elinasemedifast com by following the links thraugh “Investar Relations” to “Coamporate Governanee,” In fiseal 201 1, the audit committee met
twelve times.

Neminating and Corporate Governance Commilfee

The neminating and corporate governance committee consists of Very Rev. Donald F. Reilly, Chairperson, Sister Cathenine T, Maguire, and Barry
B. BondrofT, all of whom are independent as discussed above under “Director Independence.”™ The Nominating and Corporate Governance
Committee identifies and recommends 1o the Board of Directors qualified candidates for election as Directors, recommends Director Committes
nssignments, and recommends actions necessary for the proper governance of Medifast, Inc,, and for the evaluation of the performance of the Board
of Directors and Chiel’ Executive Officer. With input from the Executive Chairman of the Beard and Chiel Exegutive Officer, the Mominating and
Corporate Governance Committee recommends certmin executive officers for annual election. The NMominating and Corporate Governance
Committee reviews issues and developments related to corporate governance practices and makes recommendations to the Board of Directors on
changes in structure, rule or practice necessary for compliance and for good corporate govemance. The Nominations committee has been tasked to
assist the Chairman in selecting the most qualificd and appropriate directors to serve on the Company's separate Board committees.

The Company’s Nominating and Corporate Governance Commitiee Charter provides that the skillz sand characteristics required generally of
Directors include diversity, age, business background and experience. sccomplishments, experiences in Medifasi, Ine.'s business and a willingness
to make the requisite commitment of time and efTort. Accordingly, the Board of Directors has not get minimum standards for Director candidates,
Rather, 1l seeks highly qualified individuals with diverse backgrounds, business and life experienees that will enable them 1o constructively review
and guide management of the Company, Medifast, Inc. has successiully obtained diverse highly qualified candidates for Dircetors without utilizing
a paid outzside consultant. The Corpomate Governance Commitiee considers and cvalustes poteniial Director candidates and makes itz
recommendations 1o the full Board of Dircetors, Any shareholder may submit a recommendation for nomination to the Board of Dircctors by
sending a wrnitten statement of the qualifications of the recommended individual to the Corporale Secretary, Medifast, Inc., 11445 Cronhill Dr.,
Orwings Mills, Maryland 21117, The Nominating and Corporate Governance Commitice will utilize the same process for evaluating all nominees,
regardless of whether the nominee recommendation is submitied by a sharcholder or some other source.

I & shareholder wishes o nomnnate a candidate for election (o the Board of Directors, in order for the nomination o be properly made the
sharcholder must give wnilten notice (o the Corporate Scerctary of Medilast, Inc. Notice must be received at Medifast, Ine.’s pnincipal execulive
offices at least 0 davs before the date that is one vear after the prior vear's regular meeting. The notice must s¢t forth: (i) the name and address of
the shareholder who intends to make the nomination and of the nominee or nominees, (i) a representation that the shareholder is a holder of record
of shares of Medifast, Ine. entitled to vote at the meeting and that the shareholder intends to appear in person or by proxy at the meeting to nominate
the person or persons speeified in the nobice, (1) a descnption of all arrangements or understanding between the sharcholder and each nomines and
uany other person or persons (naming such person or persons) pursuant to which the nomination or nominations are (o be made by the sharcholder,
{iv) such other information regarding ¢ach nominee proposed by the sharcholder as would have been required to be included in a proxy statement
filed pursuant to the proxy rules of the SEC and the Company Bylaws had each nominee been nominated, or intended 1o be nominated, by the Board
of Directors, and (v) the consent of each nominee to serve as a Director of Medifast, Ine. if $0 elected.

Our Board of Directors has adopted a written charter for the nominating and corporate governance committee, which is available on the Company ‘s
wehsile at www clioosemedifast com by following the links through “Invesior Relations™ to “Corpomte Govermnance™ or in print fo any sharcholder
who requests it as set forth under “Additional Information — Annual Report, Finaneial and Additional Information.” In fiseal 2011, the nominating
and corporate governance commitiee met four times,
Compensation Comumillee
The compensation committee currently consists of Jeannette M. Mills, Chairperson, John P. McDaniel and Jerry 12, Reece, all of whom were
independent as discussed above under “— Director Independence.”

The principal duties of the compensation commillee are as follows:

o measure the Chiel Exeoutive Officer™s performance against his goals and objectives pursuant to the Company plans;

*  determine the compensation of the Chief Executive Officer after considering the evaluation by the Board of Directors of his
performance;

*  review and approve compensation of elected officers and all senior executives based on their evaluations, taking into account the
evaluation by the Chiel Exceutive Officer;

s  review and approve any emplovment agreements, severance amangements, relirement amangements, change in control
agreements provisions, and any special or supplemental benefits for each elected officer and senior executive of the Company

= approve, modify or amend all non-equity plans designed and intended to provide compensation primarily for elected officers and
senior executives of the Company;

¢ make recommendations to the Board regarding adoption of equity plans;
«  modify or amend all equity plans; and



*  review the executive compensation philosophy of the Company, assess any risks which may be reasonably deemed material to the
Company, and recommend to the Board any changes deemed necessary to the Company executive compensation plan or any sales
channe] compensation plan.

Our Board of Directors has adopted s written charter for the compensation committee which is available on the Company’s website at

www.choosemedifast com by following the links through “Investor Relations™ to “Corporate Governance.” In fiseal 2011, the Compensation
Committee met four times,

Executive Comuniftes

Michael C. MacDonald, Chairperson, Barry B. Bondrofl, Jazon L. Groves, Jeannette M. Mills, Jerry 1. Reece, and Margaret E. Sheetz are members
of the Executive Commitice. The Executive Committee has all the authonty of the Board of Dircotors, except with respect to certain matters that by
statute may not be delegated by the Board of Directors.  The Committee meets peniodically dunng the year to develop and review strategic
operational and management policies for the Company. The Committee held one meeting during fiseal 2011,

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

Mo member of our Compensation Commitiee was an emplovee during 2011, or has ever been an officer of Medifost or its subsidianies, No
cxecutive officer of Medifast has served as a director or 8 member of the Compensation Committee of ancther Company whose exccutive officers
are also members of Medifast's Board of Directors or Compensation Commitiee.

DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

The non-employee Directors of Medifast, Ine. receive an annual stock grant for their serviees as direetor. In 2011, each direclor received 500 shares
of restricted stock, with the exception of the Yice-Chairman of the Board, Barry Bondrofl whom received 600 shares. In 2011, Directors received a
meeting fee for attending cither quarterly committee or Board of Dircctor meetings. The Committes fees and Board of Director meeting fees may
be received in cash or converted 1o Medifast stoek at a 125% premium based on each Board members election. For additional committee meetings
or board serviee, Directors receive 81,500 per day or a pro rata portion thereof. Fmployvee Direetors do not receive any additional compensation for
their services as director.

2011 Director Compensation Table

The table below summarizes the compensation paid by the Company to non-employes directors for the fiscal vear ended December 31, 2011

Fees Eaxned
or Padd in Stack

Name Cash Awards (1) Tetal

Harvey C. Barrmm 5 375 $ 33,689 $ 34,064
Barry B. Bondroff 19,560 33,443 53,003
Chaales P. Connolly 22,560 51,693 74,253
Jason L. Graves 12,800 21,190 33,990
George Lavin, Jr, Esq. 5,300 51,693 56,993
Michael €. MacDonald (2) 12,750 72,183 84933
Catherine T. Maguire 9,375 22,444 31,819
John P. MeDaniel 1,875 36,198 44,073
Jeannette M. Mills 1,970 41,193 43,163
Jerry D. Reece 280 33,690 33,970
Rev. Donald F. Reilly, OSA 21,500 40,980 62,480

{1y Amounis are caleulated based on the aggregate grant date fair value of these rewards computed in accordance with ASC Topic 718
“Stock Compensation” which excludes the effeet of estimated forfeitures. The assumptions and methodologies used to caleulate these
amounts are discussed in Note 2 1o owr Comsolidated Financial Statements in this Form 10-K with the Securities and FExchange
Commszion, Under generally aceepled accounting pnneiples, compensation expense with respect to stock awards and oplion awards
grunted to our employees is recognized over the vesting perieds of the applicable rewards,

(2}  Michael C, MacDonald's director compensation is for the period January 1, 2011 to November 3, 201 1. On November 4, 2011, the

Board of Directors appointed Michael C. MacDonald as the Exeeulive Chairman of the Board. On February 8, 2012, he was appointed
1o the additional position of Chiel Executive Officer.
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The table below summarizes the equity based awards held by the Company’s non-employee directors as of December 31, 2011,

Option Awands Stock Awards
Market
Number Value of
Number of Number of Shares or Shares ox
Securities Securities Units of Units of
Underlying Underlying Stock That Stock that
Narae Options (1) Options () Exercise Expiration Vested Vested
Exercizable  TUn-Exercisable Price ($) Diate Vesied
Chasles P, Connally - - - - 1,000 § 13720
Geoage Lavin, Ir, Esq, * - - - 1,000 13,720
Michael C. MacDonald (2) - - - - 2,000 27,440
Fev. Donald F. Reilly, OSA - - - - 2,000 27,440

(1) The market value of shares of stoek that have not vested is based on the elosing price of our commeon stock on December 30, 2011, or £13.72
per share.

(23 Michael C. MacDonald's shares that have not yel vested relate to previous restnicted stock grants during s tenure as a Director. On
November 4, 2011, the Board of Direetors appointed Michael C. MacDonald as the Executive Chairman of the Board, On February &, 2012,
he was appointed to the additional position of Chicl Excoutive Officer,

The Medifast Board of Directors on July 24, 2008 approved restricted commeon stock grants to Board members with a 5 yvear vesting period,
beginning on the grant date. The grant was to tenured Board members that successfully implemented the Senior Management Succession Plan over
the last four years through adviee, counsel, and mentorship. A total of 55,000 shares of restricted common stock were granted o tenured Dhreclors,

The Medifast Board of Directors on Movember 24, 2008 approved restricted common stock grants 1o key executives and Board members as a 2008
performance bonus for excecding internal sales and profit forecasts.  Non-mansgement Board members were each granted 5,000 shares of restricied
comumon stock vesting over two years, beginning on January 1, 2009,

The Medifast Board of Directors on May 7, 2009 approved resincted common stock grants to key exeeutives and Hoard members wath a 5 yvear
vesting peniod, beginning on the grant date. Key executives were granted 460,000 shares of restricted common stock to retain their services over the
next five vears and recognize continued sales and profit growth in accordance with targets set by the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors
received a total of 71,000 shares with a fwio vear vesting penod, beginming on the grant date for their active participation in the strategic planning
process and guidance as it relates to Medifast's strong performance and growth.

The Board of Directors approved restricted stock grants effective November 4, 2011 to Michael C. MacDeonald on the date of his appointment as
Executive Chairman of the Board of Directors. He was granted 60,000 shares as an employee inducement which will vest in three annual
installments beginning on the (st anniversary of the November 4, 2011 grant dale.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Com pliance

Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act requires the Company’s directors and executive officers and persons who beneficially own more than ten percent
of a registered class of the Company’s equity securities o file with the SEC and the NYSE initial reports of ownership and reports of changes in
ownership of equity securities of the Company. Directors, officers and greater-than-ten-percent beneficial owners are required by SEC regulations
to fumish the Company with copies of all Section 16(a) forms filed by them. In 2011, with one exception noted below, o the Company's
knowledge, based solely on a réview of the copies of such filings on file with the Company and written réprésentations from the Company”s
directors and executive officers, we believe all Section 16{a) filing requirements have been made by the Company's directors, executive officers and
greater-than-ten-percent beneficial owners in fiscal 2001, For the fiscal vear ended December 31, 2011, we have identified one late filing. Due to
an administrative error, the required Form 4 for the sale of Company shares in November 2011 by Mr, Lavin was inad vertently late,
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ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Purpose and Philosophy

The Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors is responsible for developing and recommending to the Board of Directors the executive
compensation program for the five named executive officers: (referred to in this section as the “exceutive officers™). Each of these executive
officers is included in the Summary Compensation Table and the related tables beginning on page 51.

The Compensation Commitiee is responsible for creation and periadic review of the overall executive compensation philosophy of the Company
related analysis and assessment of any material risk 1o the Company related thereto, and it outlines the components of exccutive compensation for
the executive officers. The Company believes that strong, effective leadership 15 the comerstone of its continved growih and success. To be
suecessiul, the company must be able to attract, retain, and metivate highly qualified exccutive officers with the competencies needed 1o excel In a
rapidly changing marketplace and to understand issues relating to a diverse group of companies in several different indusinies.

Executive compensation at Medifast is focused on executive performance Keved 1o results. The Company provides fair and equitable compensalion
1o ity execulive oflicers by combining conservalive base pay, annual cash incentive, and stock-based long-term incentive. The Execulive Cash
Bonus Plan is desigred 1o reward executives for the Company’s current year linancial success and recognize the responsibilitics of the execulive
officers for meeting the Company's {inaneial performance goals. Stock-based incentives focus on long-term performance by aligning the executive
officers” long-term financial nterests with Company™s shareholders” mterest

Total direct compensation which includes base payv, annual cash incentive and stock-based long-term incentive is measured against organizations in
the general weight-loss industry. In general, there are different kinds of diet products and programs within the weight loss industry. These include
a wide variety of commercial weight loss programs, pharmaceutical products, weight loss books, sell-help dicts, dietary supplements, appetite
suppressanis and meal replacement shakes and bars, Some of our competitors are substantially larger than we are, and have considerably greater
financial resources than we have, Our ability to remain competitive depends, in significant part, on our suceess in recruiting and retaining executive
leadership with an attractive compensation package. The Company targeis total direct compensation for each executive officer near median for
organizations in the general weight-loss industry. The mix of pay (base pay, annual cash incentive and long-term incentive) is designed to reflect a
strong bias towards pay for performance by placing a majority of target compensation at risk. The only element of total direct compensation thai is
not performance based is base pay. Both annual cash incentive and long-term incentive ane performance based,

Elements of Executive Com pensation
Base Salary

Our base salary determinations prineipally reflect the skills and performance levels of individual executives, the needs of the Company, and pay
practices of comparable public companies within the general health and wellness diet industry, Medifast’s identified peers in the general health and
wellness diet industry are NutriSystem Ine., eDietz.com, Herbalife Ltd., USAMNA Health Sciences, and Weight Watchers International Ine. It iz not
our policy 1o pay our executive officers at the highest base salary level. Instead, we cstablish executive basc salaries below the midpaint level
relative 1o our peers. We belicve this policy sets a prudent and fiscally responsible tone for the Company®s overall base salary compensation
programs. Please refer 1o the discussion below under “Peer Group™ for a more detailed discussion of our use of peer group and general industry
revenue data.

Target Bonus

Cash bimuses principally reflect the Company’s linancial performance and achievement of corporate objectives established by our Board prior 1o
the fiscal year. The executive bonus plan is designed 1o reward our executives for the achievement of shorter-lerm financial goals, predominantly
revenue growth, profitability, and cash flow. In consultation with the Executive Chairman and Chief” Executive Officer, the Compensation
Committee evaluates, adjusts and approves the amount and alloeation of the bonus pool 1o each executive officer. In determining the cash bonus
allecation among semor executives, the Compensation Committes and the Executive Chairman and Chief Executive Officer consider cach
executive’s &) contribution to current and long-term corporate goals, and b) value in the labor market.

The financial targets for annual cash incentive are premised upon the executive officers delivering on their financial performance projections to
Medifast, Inc. as reflected in part, in the annual budger approved by the Board of Dircctors. In 2011 wrgeted annual incentive compensation was
tied 1o the annual budget approved by the Board of Directors. The Compensation Commillee set the target for pre-tax profit as a pereentage of sales
at 10%, the target for corporate revenue at $310 million, and net increase in cush, cash equivalents, and investments at $15.5 million, excluding
treasury stock repurchases. The target performance level is sct to promote solid performance. The financial targets for annual cash incentive are
divided into three components as follows?

|. Pre-Tax profit as a percentage of sales. Each executive officer receives 33.33% of the total trget payvout if the Company achieves the targeted
pre-tax profit as a percentage of sales. Each officer receives a portion of the total target payout i the Company achieves the targeted performance
level, and additional increments for performance above the target. For pre-tax earnings as a percentage of sales the target waz 10%. The Company
was below the threshold performance level for pre-lax camings as a percentage of sales in 2000 at 2.4% compared to the target of 10%.
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. Corporate Revenue. Fach officer receives 33.33% of the tofal target pavout if the Company achieves the targeted sales amount for the full vear.
Euch officer receives a portion of the total target payout if Medifust, Ine. achieves the trgeted performanee level, and additional inerements for
performance above the target. For corporate sales the target was $310 million.  The Company was below the targeted performance level for sales in
2001 fimashing at £298.2 million, or £1 1.8 million below the target set by the Board.

. MNet increase in cash, cash equivalents, and investments. Each oflicer receives 33.33% of the total target payout if the Company achieves the
targeted net cash inerease for the full year. Each officer receives a portion of the total target payout if the Company achicves the targeted
performance level. and additonal inerements for performance above the largel.  The net inerease in cash and cash equivalents, exeluding treasury

stock repurchases target was 5155 million. The Company exceeded the moaximum performance level for the nei increase in cash and cash

uquivalcnui i 2011 by E-:rl.cmlinE a 5198 million net increase in cash, eash :qui\lah:nlzh and investments, :xl.:lud'mg repurchases :}ftmuur}' stock.

Equity Compensation

Stock option and restneled stock awards principally reflect the responsibilities 1o be assumed by ench executive in the upeoming fiscal vear, the
responsibilities of each exccutive in prior periods, the size of awards made to each executive in prior vears relative to the Company’s overall
performance, available stock for issuance under our Option Plan, and potential grants in future yvears, The Committee believes that stock option and
restricted stock grants (1) align the interests of executives with long-term stockholder interests as the grants vest up to 6 vears, {2) give executives a
sigi ficant, long-term interest mi the Company’s success, and (3) help retmn Key execubives i a compeliive market for execulive talenl. The
restnicted stock awards award the continuity of service of the executive officers since the restricted stock awards vest up (o 6 vears and unvested,

restncted stock is forfeited upon voluntary termination, In addition, the value of shares awarded increase or decrcase with the value provided to
shareholders.

Equity Ownership by Executives

We do not currently have a formal equity ownership requirement for our execulives. However, we encourage our execulives o own equily in the
Company on a voluntary basis. All of our executive oflicers own stock, restricted stock and vested and unvesied stock options. We periedically
review the vested and unvested equity holdings of our executives and evaluale whether these holdings suiliciently align the interests of our
executives with the long-term interests of our stockholders. We may consider adopting equity ownership requirements in the future,

Pecr Group

We believe that it is appropriate to offer industry competitive cash and equity compengation to our genior executives in support of our objective to
assemble and maintain a high performing management leam. Our cumenlt level of compensation for our execulive officers was compared 1o
compensation paid by an industry peer group approved by the Commitiee. The criteria used to identify the peer group were: (1) industry — we
compele for talent with other healthy living and wellness companies and general weighi-loss industry companies of similar and larger size: and (2)
financial scope — our management talent ghould be compensated similar to that of companies of a similar and larger gize in terms of revenues,

For 2011, the peer group was comprised of five corporations lisied above. The peer group revenue range is from 5401 million 1o 53.5 billion with a
median revenue of $1.7 billion for 2011, The peer group revenue percent change ranged from a decline of 21.2% to an increase of 26.3%, with a
median revenue increase of 13.4% in 2011,

Advisory Vote on the Company's Executive Officers’ Compensation

Al last year's annual meeting, we provided our sharcowners with the opporlumly (o cast an advisory vole regarding the compensation of our named
executive officers as disclosed in the proxy statement for the 2011 Annual Meeting of Stockholders. At our 20011 annual meeting. our stockholders
overwhelmingly spproved the proposal, with more than 97% of the voles cast voling in [avor of the proposal. We also asked our shareowners to
indicate il we should hold a "say-on-pay” vole every one, two or three years. Consistent with the recommendation of our board of directors, our
shareowners indieated by advisory vote their preference to hold a sayv-on-pay vote every three vears. Afler consideration of the 2011 voting resulls,
and based upon ils prior recommendation, our board of direetors elected to hold a stockholder "say-on-pay" vole every three years. Because the
vote on the Company’s Executive Officers’ Compensation 15 advisory, it will not be binding upon the board of directors or Human Resources and
Compensation Committee. However, the board of directors or Human Resources and Compensation Committee will take the outcome of the vote
into necount when considening future executive compensalion arrangements.

Com pensation Committee Report

We have reviewed and discussed with management certain Compensation Discussion and Analysis provisions 1o be included in this Form 10-K.
Based on the review and discussions referred 1o above, we reeommend 1o the Board of Direetors that the Compensation Discussion and Analysis
referred lo above be included on the Form 10-K for the year-ended December 31, 2011, Based upon the Compensation Committee risk assesament,
the Board does not believe the Executive Compensation Plan or any distribution channel compensation Plan presents a material risk to the Company
a5 structured.

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Jeannette M. Mills, Chairman
John P, McDamel
Jerry D. Reece
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2011 Summary Compensation Table

The following table sets forth the annual and long-term compensation for the last three fiscal years of the Company’s Executive Chairman of the
Board, Chief Executive Officer, President, Chief Financial Officer and the other most highly compensated executive officers. These individuals ane
collectively referred to as the Named Executive Officers.

MNengqualified
Defexred
Steck Option Compensation All Other
Salary Awards Awards Henms Earnings Compensation Toatal

Name and Pricipal Position Year @ D EXD D ® . ®
Bradlsy T. MacDaonald (4) 2011 230,000 270,000 - 488,000 3,700 991,700
Exscutive Chamman of the Board 010 225,000 331,000 - 755,000 3,400 1,314,400
2000 225000 331,000 - 235,000 3,600 794,600
Michnel 5. MeDevitt (5) 2011 230,000 532,000 - 560,000 7.000 1,349,000
Chief Executive Officer 2010 185,000 639,000 - 826,000 5,550 1,655,550
2009 185,000 639,000 - 410,000 5,800 1,239,800
Margaret Sheetz 011 125000 450,000 - 471,000 6,200 1,158,800
Chisf Opemling OfTicer, Presiclent 2010 135,000 531,000 - 753,000 4,650 1,445,630
2009 155,000 531,000 - 350,000 4,900 1,040,200
Brendan N. Cannors 011 185000 151,000 - 157,000 5,550 508,550
Chisf Financial Officer 010 125000 167,000 . 270,000 3,750 565,750
2009 125000 167,000 - 117,000 3,900 412,200
Michnel C. MazDanald 2011 35,000 - - - - 35,000
Chairman of the Board 2010 - - - - - -
Chinf Exscutive Officer 2009 - - - - - -

{1y Amounts shown represent the ngeregale gramt dote fair value of the stock awards o the vear indicated. For o discussion of the assumplions
mude m the valuation reflecied in these columns, see Mole 2 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Stalemenis in this 10K, The actual value
that may be realized from an award is contingent upon the satisfaction of the conditions to vesting in that award on the date the sward s
vested. Thus, there 15 no assurance thal the value, if any, eventually realeed will comespond to the amoumt shown,

{2} Bonus amounts determined & more specifically discussed above under * Compensation Discussion and Analvsis”,

{33 The amounts represent the Company s matching contributions under the 401(K) plan.
(4) Om Ociober 31, 2011, due o healih issucs, Bradley T, MacDomald resigned a5 the Executive Chairman of the Boand,
(5} On Febrsary 8, 2012, Michacl 5. McDevitt departed as Chief Executive Officer and resigned as a Director of the Company,

2011 Grants of Plan-Bascd Awards

The Board of Dircctors approved restricted siock grants effective November 4, 2011 to Michael C. MacDonald on the date of his appointment as
Executive Chairman of the Board of Directors. e was granted 60000 shares as an emplovee inducement which wall vest in three annual
installmentz beginning on the first anniversary of the November 4, 2011 grant date,

The Medifast Board of Directors on May 7, 2009 approved resiricled common stock grants lo key execulives and Board members with a 5 year
vesting period, beginning on the grant date. Key executives were granted 460,000 shares of restricted common steek to retain their services over the
next five vears and recognize continued sales and profit growth in accordance with targets set by the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors
received a total of 71,000 shares with a two vear vesting period, beginning on the grant date for their active participation in the sirategie planning
process and guidance as it relates to Medifast's strong performanee and growth.

The Medifast Board of Directors on November 24, 2008 approved restricied common stock grants (o key executives as g 2008 performance bonus
for exceeding internal sales and profit forecasts. Kev execulives were granied 130,000 shares of restricied common stock over a five vear vesiing
peried, beginning on January 1, 2009,

The Medifast Board of Directors on July 24, 2008 approved restricted common stock grants to the Named Executives Officers with a 5 vear vesting
period, beginning on the grant date. Named Exccutive Officers were granted 423,000 shares of restricted comman stock to retain their services over
the next five vears, reward their effons in the participation of the successful succession and transition of the Company operations to the new senior
management team, and incentivize continued sales and profit growth in accordance with targets set by the Board of Directors.
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On Januwary 25, 2008, the Board of Directors modified Bradley T. MacDonald's compensation package for his role in the suwceession plan and
business development initiatives as outlined in the December 31, 2006 10-K. The Board cancelled the 100000 options granted to Mr. MaeDonald
on February 8, 2006 and replaced them with a restricted stock grant of 42,000 shares. The restncied shares vested over a period of 3 vears

beginning on January 25, 2009,

Ouistanding Equity Awards at 2011 Fiscal Year-End Table

Bradley T. MacDonald

Executive Chairman of the Board
Michael §. McDevatt

Chiaf Exuentive Officer
Margamst Shastz
Brendan M. Conmars

Chiaf Franeial Officar

Michael C. MacDonald

Chairman of the Board

Chief Executive Officer

Underlying
Unsxsrcised

Options (#)

Option Asrxrds Stock Awaris ___
Equity
Marker incentive
Number Value of Plan Awurds:
Number of Shares ax Shares ax Number of
Securitiax Undin af TUnits of nsarned
Underlying Stock That Stock that Shares, Units
Unesxezcised Option Opiion Hawvw Not haove net or Othax
Options () Exervise Expiration Vested Vented rights
Um-
Exercisable Price g! Date Vesied (#X1) X2 (L]
= = 74,000 1,015,280 =
= = 7,000 1,193,640 -
3 a 73,000 1,001,560 -
- - 30,000 411,500 -
- - 60,000 823,200 -

{1} The restricted stock grants vest over five and six vears of service as deseribed below under “Marrative Diselosure to Summary Compensation
Table and Grants of Plan-RBased Awards”

{2} The market value of shares of stock that have not vested 15 based on the closing price of our common stock on December 30, 2011, or §13.72

per share,
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2011 Option Exercises and Stock Vested Table

The following table sets forth information regarding option exercises and stock vesting for the Named Executive Officers during 2011 and the
resulting value realized.

Option Awards Simck Awards
~ Numberof Number of
Shared Valus Shared Valus
Acquired on Eralized an Acquircden  Rralized sm
Exercise Exercise Vesting Vesting
Name _ @ @xn @ &
Bradley T. MacDearald - -
Executive Chatrman of the Board - = 20,000 403,000
20,000 409 200
5,000 124,650
Iicheal 5. McDwvitt . .
Chief Executrve Officar 33333 812,992
30,000 614,700
24,000 483,600
%,000 124,650
Margaret Sheatz
Chisf Operting Officer, President 2 . 25,000 602,750
25,000 513,250
20,000 403,000
8,000 110,200
Brendan N, Connors - -
Chief Fimaneial Officer 5,000 121,950
10,000 204500
8,000 161,200
4000 55,400
Michasl O, MacDanald
Chairman of the Bosrd - . - -
Chisl Executive OfTicer

(1} Represents the difference between the exercise price and the fair market value of the commeon stock on the date of exercise, multiplied by
the number of aptions exercised.

(2} Reprezents the number of restricted shares vested, and the number of shares vested multiplied by the fair market value of the common
stock on the vesting date.



Marrative Disclosure to Summ ary Clmll'lﬂ‘ll.i:l.‘l‘hlll Tauble and Granis of Plan- Based Awards

We have entered into emplovment agreements with cerlain Named Executive Officers, certain lerms of which are summanized below,

Bradley T. MacDonald. Mr. MacDonald entered into a live vear emplovment agreement effective February 8, 2006, The employment agreement
expired in 2011 and was not renewed. Mr, MacDonald was granted 100,000 options over a five year vesting period beginning on February 8, 2007
in consideration for his five vear commitment and to align his interests with the interests of long-term sharcholders.  On January 25, 2008, the
Board of Directors modified Mr. MacDonald’s compensation package for his role in the succession plan and business development initiatives as
outlined in the December 31, 2006 10-K. The Board cancelled the 100,000 aptions granted to Mr. MacDonald on February &, 2006 and replaced
them with a restricted stock grant of 42,000 shares. The restncied shares will vest over a period of 3 vears beginning on January 25, 2009, Upon
termination of Mr. MacDonald's employment by the Company withou! cause, or upon his resignation for good reason, he would be entitled 10
receive an amount equal to one and a half times the sum of his highest annualized salary pavable in equal monthly installments 30 days after his
termination of emplovment for a periad of ane vear.

Michacl 5 McDevitt,  Mr. MeDevitt entered into a six vear emplovment agreement effective February 8, 2006, The employmen! agreement
cxupired in February 2012 and was not renewed. Mr. MeDevitt was granted 200,000 shares of Medifast, Inc. restricted commeon stock over a six year
vesting period beginning on February 8, 2006 in consideration for his six year commitment and to align his interests with the interests of long-term
shareholders.

Margaret Sheetz, Ms Sheetz entered into a six vear emplovment agreement effective February 8, 2006, The emplovment agreement expired in
February 2012 and was not renewed.  Ms. Sheetz is presently an at will employee. Ms, Sheetz was granted 150,000 shares of Medifast, Inc.
restricted common stock over a six year vesting period beginning on February 8, 2006 in consideration for his six yvear commitment and to align her
interests with the interests of long-term shareholders.

Brendan N. Connors. Mr. Connors entered inlo a six yvear emplovment agreement effective February B, 2006, The employment agreement
expired in February 2012 and was not renewed. Mr. Connors is presently an at will emplovee. Mr. Connors was granted 30,000 shares of Medifast,
Inc. restricted common stock over a six year vesting peniod beginning on February 8, 2006 in consideration for her six year commitment and 1o
align his interests with the interests of long-term sharcholders.

Potential Payments upon Termination or Change in Control

As of December 31, 2011, the Company had previously, as above noted, entered into employment agreemenis with each of the Named Execulive
Officers. As described in more detail above under “Namative Disclosure to Summary Compensation Table and Grants of Plan-Based Awards™.
The employment agreements with the Named Executive Officers generally provide for the payment of benefits if the exccutive's employment with
the Company is terminated either by the Company without cause or by the executive for good reason.  The employment agreements with the Named
Executive Officers do not provide for any additional payments or benefits upon a termination of employment by the Company for eause, upon the
executive’s resignation other than for good reason, as applicable, or upon the exceutive’s death or disability.  Upon termination by the Company
without cause, or upon his or her resignation for good reason, all of the Named Executive officers are entitled to receive an amount equal to one and
a half times his or her highest annualized base salary pavable in equal monthly installments 30 days after his or her termination of employment. The
employment agreements with the Named Executive Officers expired on Februury 8, 2011 and February 8, 2012, I an executive had been
terminated withoul cause or the executive olficer resigned with good reason prior Wo the expiration of their employment agreements they would have
reecived the following amounts as of December 31, 2001:

Severance ($) (1)
Bradley T. MacDonald £375.000
Michael 5. McDevint 375,000
Margaret Shectz £337.500
Brendan N. Connors £277.500

(1) Based on 2011 zalary
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If there were a change in control, which is defined as a sale of the majority of the assets of the Company or a change of control of the Board of
Directors as o result of & third party shareholder scquiring or holding over 10% of the common stoek and attempting to nominate a majority of the
Board of Directors in faver of hisher shareholder block, the executives would have received the following amounts as of December 31, 2011:

Accelerated
Vesting of
Stock
Severance Awards

g;!! QE! Total
Bradley T. MacDonald 5,000 1,015,280 il;ﬂ!.ﬂﬂ

Michael . McDevitt 375,000 1,193,640 1,568,640
Margaret Sheetz 337,500 1,001,560 1,339,060
Brendan N. Connors 277,500 411,600 689,100

(1) Based on 2011 salary.
(2) Accelerated vesting of stock awards were based on NYSE close price of the Common Shares

Com pensation Polices and Risk

Medifast, Ine. does not believe that its compensation policies and praclices ereate risks that are reasonably likely to have a material adverse effeet
on Medifast, Ine.



ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The following table shows as of December 31, 2011, the amount and percentage of our outstanding commeon stock beneficially owned by each
person wha is known by us to beneficially own more than 3% of our outstanding commen stock.

Shares Percent of
Name and Address of Beneficially Dutstanding
5% Benelicial Owner Orwned (1) Commuon Stock
Thampson, Siegel &Walmsley, LLC (1) L191,793 8.5%
6806 Paragon Place Suite 300
Richmond, VA 23230
BlackRock Inc. (2) 1,141,346 E.1%

40 Fast 52 Streat
New York, NY 10022

(1) Based solely on information reported on Schedule 13G filed by Thompson, Sicgel & Walmsley, LLC on February 10, 2012, As reported in such filing,
Thompson, Siegel &Walmsley, LLC has sole voling power with respect 1o 901,393 shares, shared voling power with respeet to 200,400 shares of the Company’s
common stock, and sole dispositive power with respect to 1,191,793 shares of the Company s common stock.

(2) Based solely on mformation reported on, as amended Schedule 13G filed by BlackRock, Inc. on February 10, 2012, As reported in such filing. BlackRock, Inc.
has sole voting and dispositive power with respect to 1,141 346 shores ol the Company s commaon stock.



The

following table shows as of March 14, 2012, the amount and percentage of our outstanding common stock beneficially ovwned (unless otherwise mdicated) by

each of our (i) directors and nominees for directors, (i) Named Executive Officers and (111} our directors, nominees for director and exceutive officers as a group.

Percentof
Shares Outrtanding
Shaves Beneflcially Acquirable Camman 5otk

Nams of Bemeficial Owner Owned (1)) Within §0 days (44
Brodley T. MuocDonald (3) 684,148 - 487%
Michnal S. McDevitt 421,346 - 3.00%
Margaret Sheetz 326,692 . 232%
Brendan N. Connors, CPA 115,434 - -
Domald F. Reilly 24,040 - -
Michasl C. MacDonald 13,156 - -
Charles P. Connolly 40,534 - -
John . McDardsl X692 - ol
Catherins T. Maguirs 9,785 - -
Lao 'V, Williarns: 14,000 - -
Gieorge J. Lavin, Jr, Bsq. 23,950 . .
Baxry B. BondmfY, CPA 18,05% i -
Joemne te M, Mills 14905 - i
Harvey C. Barnum 20710 .
Jerry D, Resce 2,070

Jason L. Ghoves 1,229 -
Al directors, nominees for directors and exscutive of ficers at & group: 1,861,168 - 1325%

Less than 1%,

(1) Beneficial ownership 15 determined in secordanee with the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission, Under those rules and for

(2

purposcs of the table above (a) if a person has decision making power over either the voting or the disposition of any shares, that person is
generally decmed to be a beneficial owner of those shares; (b} if twe or more persons have decision making power over cither the voling or
the disposition of any shares, they will be deemed to share beneficial ownership of those shares, in which case the same shares will be
included in share ownership totals for esch of those persons, and (e) il 2 person held aptions to purchase shares that were exercisable on, or
became exercisable within 60 days of, March 30, 201 1. that person will be deemed to be the benelicial owner of those shares and those shares
(but not shares that are subjeet o oplions held by any other stockhelder) will be deemed 10 be oulstanding for purposes of computing the
percentage of the outstanding shares that are beneficially owned by that person. Information supplied by officers and directors.

} Unless otherwise noted, reflects the number of shares that could be purchased by exercise of oplions available at March 14, 2012, or within 60

davs thereafter under our stock option plans.

(3) The shares set forth as beneficially owned by Mr. Bradley T. MacDonald include 133,667 shares owned by the MacDonald Family Trust. His

daughter, Margaret Sheetz, beneficially owns 326,692 shares which added to Bradley T. MacDonald’s 684,148 beneficially owned shares
results in 1,010,840 shares owned by the MacDonald family.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

As of December 31, 2011, there were no related parly trmnsactions. See pages 43 and 44 {or additional information under the headings “Certain
Relationships and Related Transactions™ and “Director Independence.”



ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The following services were provided by MeGladrey & Pullen, LLP, REM MeGladrey, Ine. (RSM, Me(xladrey, Ine. was an affiliate of
MeGladrey & Pullen, LLF operating under an alternative practice structure, On December 1, 2011, MeGladrey & Pullen, LLP acquired RSM
MeGladrey, Ine.), and Friedman, LLP during fiscal 2011 and fiscal 2010

2011 2010
Audit Fees (1) $ 203000 § 391716
Audit -Related Fees (2) 35,000 35,000
Tex Fees (3) 265,687 2,668
All Other Fees 25,000 29,100

Total $ 532,697 $ 458484

(1) Audit fees consist of fees for professional services rendered for the audit of the Company *s consolidated financial statements ineluded in
the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K, including the audit of internal controls required by Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Owley Act
of 2002, and the review of financial statements included in the Company's Quarterly Reparts on Form 10-0), and for services that are
normally provided by the auditor in connection with statutory and regulatory filings or engagements.

(2) Audil-Related fees are for assurance services provided o audit the Company *s employee benelit plan

(3} Tax fees were hilled for tax compliance services.



PART IV
ITEM 15 EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

The following documents are files as part of this report

(@ 1 Financial Statements

See lndex to the Comsolidated Financial Siatements on page 60 of this Anmnual Report

2 Financial Stateiment Schedules

Wone, as all information required in these schedules is included in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
3 Exhibits

Reference is made 1o the Exhibit Index on page 81 of this Annual Report for a list of eshibits required by Item 601 of Registration 5-K to be filed s part of this
Ammual Repori
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Sharcholders of
Medifast, Ine.

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of Medifast, Ine. and subsidiaries (the “Company™) as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the
related consolidated statements of income, changes in stockholders” equity and comprehensive income, and cazh Mows for each of the two years in
the period ended December 31, 2011, These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these nancial statements based on our awdits,

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board {United States). Those standards
requine that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidenee supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also ineludes
agseszsing the scecounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, 2s well az evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basiz for our opinion,

In our apinion, the consalidated financial statements referred to above present Fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Medifast, Ine.
and subsidianies as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the two years in the penod
ended December 31, 2011, in conformuty with ULS. generally accepted accounting principles.

We have also awdiled, in accordance with the stiandards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the Company's
intemal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 200 1, based on crifena established in fnternal Conrof—megrated Framework issucd
by the Committee of Sponsenng Organizations of the Treadway Commission), and our report dated March 13, 2012 expressed an ungualified
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company s internal control over financial reporting.

/s MeGladrey & Pullen, LLP

Baltimore, Maryland
March 15, 2012



REPORT OF INDEDPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Threctors and Stockholders
Medifast, Inc.
Owing Mills, Maryland

We have audited the consolidated statements of income, changes in stockholders’ equity and sceumulated other comprehensive income, and
cash flows of Medifast, Inc. and subsidianes (the “Company™) for the year ended December 21, 2009 These financial staterments are the
responsibility of the Company s management. Our responsibility is 1o express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Aceounting Oversight Board (United Sttes). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstalement. An sudit includes examimng, on a tesl basis, evidence supporling the amounts and diselosures in the Onancial stalements, assessing
the accounting principles wsed and signilicant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overull presentation of the financial
statements. We believe that our awdit provides a reasonable basis for cur opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidaled finaneial statements referred o sbove present fwrly, in all materia] respects, the resulls of operations and
cash Nows of the Company and its subsidiaries for the vear ended December 31, 2009, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America.

Jfa/ Friedman LLP
Marlton. Mew Jersey
March 29, 20010, except for noles 6, 9 and 13 which date s March 31, 2011



MEDIFAST, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
As of December 31, 3011 and 3018

ASSETS
Current asseis:
Cash and cash equivelents
Accounts recetvahle-nat of allowance fior sales retums and dodbtfal acoounts
of $504,000 and $237,000
Imvamtery
Irvestmant sesuritios
Incoma bexea, propeid
Prepeid axpanses and othsr cument asssts
Deferred tex aswets
Total current assets

Property, plant and equipment - net
Tracamarks and intanghles . st
Other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIARTLITIES AND STOCEHOLDERS' EQUITY

Current biabilities:

HAccounts payeble and sccrued expenses

Crurmnt matarities of lomg-term debt and capital leasss
Total current liakilities

Oriher lishilitios

Long-term debt, net of cument portion

Cepital leases, net of current portion
Tetal Habiltiss

Stockholders' Equity:
Prefemed stock, $.001 per value (1,500,000 suthorized, no shares issued and outstending)
Cloramon stock, parveloe $001 per ahare; 20,000,000 shares authorized,

15,510,185 mnd 15,431,101 issusd and outstanding respectively
Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated other conprehanszve meame
Fatainad sarnings
Less: cont of 1,458 508 and 363,508 shares of commmon stock in tressury
Total risckhalders’ squity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

The sccompanying notes ame an integral part of thess consolidated financial statements

6l

2011

2010

§ 14262000 $ 17,165,000
1,477,000 23,000
19,960,000 19,534,000
19,535,000 17,271,000
5,434,000 3,266,000
2,251,000 2,102,000
1,055,000 703,000
—0R6008 60678000
38,352,000 30,559,000
1,003,000 1,072,000
1,824,000 1,728,000
] 105665000 § 94,059,008
§ 18,830,000 $ 15,020,000
1,426,000 244,000
3,337.000 4,648,000
214,000 207,000
1,756,000 1,284,000
32,263,000 12,103,000
16,000 16,000
36,076,000 32,933,000
308,000 240,000
600,658,000 42,117,000
(23,744,0000 (3,355,000)
73,402,000 71,955 008
H 15665000 § 94,059,000




MEDIFAST, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
Years Ended December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009
(im thousands, except per share data)

01l 010 009

Revenus $ 298,189 s 257,552 % 169,743
Cost of sales (73.693) (65.083) {45.355)
Gross profit 224,496 192,469 124,388
Sellng, general, and admimstrative expenses (197114 (160,829) {105,891)
Income from eperations 27,382 31,640 18,497
Other income (expense):

Interest expense {102) {111} (145)

Interest nnd dividend income 421 385 155

Other 21 (232)

ol 5 5

Income before income taxes 27,680 31,692 18,424
Provision for income taxss {9,139) {12,081} {7.067)
Met income § 18541 $ 19,611 § 11,357
Basic sarnings par share 5133 5139 $034
Diluted ecunings per share $131 $135 $0.77
Weaghted svamge shames ootstanding -

Basic 13263018 14082.213 13512318

Diluted 14,198,495 14572931 14.736.639
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Balsnce, December 31, 2008

MEDIFAST, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

AND ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSTVE INCOME

Veurs Eunded Decernber 11, 3011, 2010, and 3009

Par Vo Additional

Humsher 0.0

Ascumulated

PadIn  ~ Ratwmed — othercamp — Treamy

ofShss Amowd Copitl  _ Eaings  comaflss) _ Stock Total

Comamon #tock iaved to dincton &,000 100 07,000 107,100
Emarise of sinck optioss 133334 100 331,000 (331,000 100
Wasmnts comverted to commen shock 44,547 100 214,000 4100
Plasiricted aharss amed in exscutioe and dirse bam 525,000 oo . g
Shams-besed compansation tax banef 303,000 1000
Sham-hadid compasdation to ameitivel and dimeton 1,151,000 2151000
Receipt of tmesery stock s payment of note meafvabils (531,000) (5310}
Prchaes of tstary stock (102,000 (102,003
Hat inooms 11,357,0m0 11,357,000
Het changs i wmealizec] guin (loas) on vestmenty, oot 548000 548,000
Comprehanaire incoms HEE

Balance, Decembar 31, 2009 153%94 § 16000 § 28,436,000 ﬂi [ 139,00 —Eﬂi [ 1817000

Consmnn stock bemed to dirctom 5,680 150,000 150,000

Rastricted ahared inved to amcatived and dincton 1£,500 i .

Share-based compensetion to exscuttves exd dirciom 1,528,000 1,528,000

Exareiss of einck options 10,000 34000 34000

Purchess of trsasary stock (35,0000 (35,0007

SEace-based compecsehion b bezafit 1,770,000 1,770,000

Comprabantive mcome:

Het fmoome 19,611,000 19,611,000
et changs in wovalized gein (koss) on imvestmenis, ort 51,00 81,000
Comprehensios incoms 19,692,000
Babacs, Deceriber 3, 2010 . L1 O 1 O 1

Share bated compersation to axecnines and directon 1,524,000 2,524,000

Share based compansation tax banafit 14,000 14,000

Festricted chares isrned to emscutives and dimctom 9,084

Pesehass of tresrory shisg {30, 3%9,000) (20,320,000}

Compmbentive icams:

Wat incoms 12,541,000 18,541,000
Bt chasge in eabzed grin (kods) oo mvertments, el 156,000 156,000
Compmeheraree ncome IEE

Balance, Decernber 31, 2011

153018 § i6@0 3 saOigool 3 cgmmn 3 Boul  Jaaieon) §  Hanmn

The sccompanying notes e an integml past of these corsolideted firancinl statements
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MEDIFAST, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
Cash flows from oparmbing sctvities:
Net income H 18,541,000 ] 19,611,000 § 11,357,000
Adjustments to reconcils net income to net cash provided by operating
Depreciation and amortization $ 8,344,000 $ 5800 % 5,267,000
Foalizad lnes on imvestment securitise, nat 207,000 205,000 21,000
Common stock waued for senvices - 50,000 207,000
Share-baged compansation 2,524,000 2,628,000 2,151,000
Deferred incoms taxes 6,01 5,000 (70,0000 (218,000
Changes in assets and lishilities which provided (used) cash:
Accounts recenyable (B54,000) 53,000 {228,000
[nventory (435,000) (8,302,000) 2,624,000
Prepuid expenses and other cument assets (143,000) 1,635,000 (1.066,000)
Other sssels (971,000 138,000 (162,000}
Accounts payshle and accrued expenses 3,810,000 1,302,000 705,000
Incoms taxes, prepaid (2,168,000) (344,0000 (1,563,000}
Net cash provided by sperating activities 34,570,000 73,769,000 19,155,000
Cash Flow [rom Imvesting Activities:
Sale of imvestment securitiss 8,054,000 5,487,000 1,178,000
Purchass of imvestment securities (10.278,000) (16,973,000 (4,442 000)
Purchase of property and equipment (14,273,000) (12,055,000) (3,117,000}
Purchase of infangile essets (327,000) o (235,000)
Net earh wred in ivvesting activities (16,874,000) (23,54],000) (8,616,000)
Cash Flow from Financing Activities:
Issuance of common stock, options and wermnts - 34,000 214,000
Proceeds of long-temm delst - 393,000 2,600,000
Ropayment of long-term debit (1,136,000) (834,000) (930,000)
Mat change in hine of credit - - (3,163,0000
Decreass in note receivehle 12,000 5,000 170,000
Excess taxbenefits from share-besed compensation 614,000 1,770,000 303,000
Furchase of treasury stock (20,389,000) (35,000) (102,000)
MNet cash provided by (used in) financing activities (20,899,000) 1,533,000 (908,000)
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (2,903,000 6,561,000 9,631,000
Cash and cash squivalents - beginning of ths period 17,165,000 _‘JM 973,000
Cash and cash equivalents - end of period 14,262,000 17165000 % 10,604,000

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Interest puid § 000 § 111 145,000
Income texes 3 4,125,000 ! 10,677,000 f 9,167,000
Supplemental disclosum of nan cash activity: L

Capitalized loase additions $ 1,014,000 $ » $ -
Treasury stock received in payment of note receivable 5 = $ : 5 531,500

The accompanying notes am an ntegral part of these consolidated fmancal statements.
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Medifast, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Years Ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 2009

1. Nature of the Business

Moedifast, Ine. (the "Company™ or “Medifast™) is a Delaware corporation, incorporated in 1989, The Company’s operations are pnmarily conducted
through six of its wholly owned subsidinnes, Jason Pharmaceuticals, Inc. ("Jason®™), Take Shape for Life, Ine, (“TSFL™), Jason Enterprises, Inc.,
Jason Properties, LL.C, Medifast Franchise Systems, and Seven Crondall. LLC. The Company is engaged in the produchion, distnbution, and sale of
weight management and diseaze management produets and other eonsumable health and diet produetz. Medifast, Ine.’s produet lines include weight
and discase management, and meal replacement products manufactured in a modem, FIDA approved facility in Owings Mills, Maryland.

The Company 15 engaged in the manufaciuring and distribution of Medifast® branded and private-label weight and disease management products.
These products are sold through various channels of distnbution, including the intemnet, call center, independent health advisors, medical
professionals, weight loss elimes, and direct consumer markefing supporied via the phone and intermel. The processing, formulation, packaging.
labeling and advertising of the Company's products are subject 1o regulation by one or more federal agencies, including the Food and Drug
Administration, the Federal Trade Commission, the Consumer Product Safety Commission, the United States Department of Agriculture, and the
United States Environmental Protection Agency,

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Significant accounting policies fallowed in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are as follows:

Principles of Consolidation - The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned subsidiarics, Jason
Pharmaceuticals, Inc., Take Shape For Life, Inc., Seven Crondall Associates, LLC, Jason Properties, LIL.C, Medifast Franchise Systems, Inc. and
Jason Fnl:rprium. Ine. All inl.cr—Cump.un:,' Imllﬁ.u:.'ﬁuna and halances have been eliminated 1n consolidation.

Reclassification — Certain amounts reported for prior periods have been reclassified to be consistent with the current period presentation. Mo
reclassification in the consolidated financial statements had a matenal impact on the presentation,

Use of Estimates — The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting pnneoiples generally accepted in the Umited States of
America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that aflect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent asseis and liabilities at the date of the financial statemenis and reported amounts of revenue and expenses dunng the reporting period.
Actual results could differ materially from those estimates,

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on deposit in financial institutions, institutional money funds and other
short-term investments with a maturity of 90 davs or less al the time of purchase. At December 31, 2011, the Company had S0.8 million in
miseellancous short-term investments through Merrill Lynch and Bank of Amenca that are considered cash equivalents due to terms of maturity,
and £13.5 million in operating checking aceounts. At Deecember 31, 2010, the Company had $4.5 million in miseellaneous short-term investments
considered cash equivalents due to lerms of matunty, and $12.7 million in operating checking accounts.

Concentration of Credit Risk — Our cash and cash equivalents and available-for-sale securitics are maintained at several financial institutions, and
the balances with these financial institutions offen exceed the amount of insurance provided on such sccounts by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation. The cash and cash equivalents generally are maintained with financial institutions with reputable credit, and therefore bear minimal
risk. Historically, we have not expercnced any losses due to such concentration of credit risk.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments = Our financial instruments include cash and cash equivalents, investment in available-for-sale securitics,
trade receivables and debl. The carmyving amounts of cash and cash equivalents, and tade receivables approximate fair value due o their short
matunities. The fair values of investment in available-for-sale secunties are based on dealer quotes. The Company believes that iis indebiedness
approximates fair value based on current vields for debt instruments wath similar terms,

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Sales Returns and Doubtful Accounts = Accounts receivable are recorded net ol reserves Tor sales
returns and allowances, and net of provisions Tor doubtiul svcounts.

We review the reserves for customer returns at each reporting period and adjust them to reflect data available at that time. To estimate reserves for
returns, we consider actual return rates in preceding periods. To the extent the estimate of returns changes, we will adjust the reserve, which will
impact the amount of product sales revenue recognized in the period of the adjustment. Our estimates for returns have not differed matenially from
our actual returns, The provision for estimated returns as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 was $234 000 and $207 000, respectively.

Allowances for doubtful accounts are based primarily on an analysis of aged accounts receivable balances and the credit worthiness of our
customers as determined by credit checks and analysis, as well as customer payment history. The allowance for doubtful accounts as of December
31,2001 and 2010 was $270,000 and $30,000, respectively.

Inventory = Inventories consist principally of packaged meal replacements held in the Company’s warehouse. Inventory is staled at the lower of
vostl or markel, ulilizing the hrst-in, Drst-oul methed, The cost of Gmshed goods includes the cost of raw malenals, packaging supplies, direct and
indireet labor and other indireet manufacturing costs. On a quarterdy basis, management reviews inventory {or unsalable or obsolete inventory.

Investment Securities —The Company s investments consist of debi and equity sccurities classified as available-for-sale securities. Available-for-
gale secuntics are siated ai fair value, and unrealized holding gains and losses, net of the related deferred fax effect, are reported as a scparate
component of accumulated other comprehensive income in stockholders' equity. Interest and dividends on marketable deht and equity securities ans
recognized in income when declared. Healized gains and losses, including losses from declines in value of specific securities determined by
management to be other-than-temporary, if any, are included in income.



Income Taxes — The benefit of a tax position is recognized in the financial statements in the peried during which, based on all available evidence,
management believes it is more-likely-than-not that the position will be sustained upon examination, including the resolution of appeals or litigation
processes, il any. Tax positions taken are not offset or aggregated with other positions. Tax positions that meet the more-likely-than-not recognition
threshold are measured as the largest amount of tax benefit that is more than 50 percent likely of being realized upen settlement with the applicable
taxing authority. The portion of the benefits associated with tax positions taken that excesds the amount measured as described above is reflected as
a liability for unrecognized tax benefits in the accompanying balance sheet along with any associated interest and penalties that would be payable to
the taxing authonties upon examination.

We evaluated our tax positions and determined that we did not have any material uncertain ax positions requinng recognifion of a labilitv. Our
policy is to recognize interest and penalties accrued on uncertain tax positions as part ol income tax expense. For the years ending December 31,
2011 and 2010, no material estimated interest or penaliies were recognized for the uncertainty of certain tax positions. We file income iax returns in
the United States and various siates jurisdictions. With few exceptions, we are no longer subject to U.S. federal, state and local income tax
examinations by tax authorities for the years before 2008

Deferred tax asscts are recognized for deductible temporary differences and deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences.
Tempormary dilferences are the dilferences between the reporled amounts of assels and Labilities and their tax bases. Defemed tax assels are reduced
by a valustion allowance when, in the opinion of management, it 15 more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tux assets will not be
realized. Delerred lax assels and liabilities are adjusted for the effeels of changes in tax laws and rates on the date of enaciment.

Advertising Costs - Adveriising costs, other than direct-response advertising. such as preparation, lavout, design and production of advertising are
expensed when the advertisement 15 first used, exeept for the costs of exceutory contracts, which are amortized as performance under the contract is
received, Advertising expense for the vears ended December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009, amounted to 527 million, $23 million, and $17.4 million,
respectively.

In accordanee with Accounting Standards Update (ASC) 720-35 and 340-20, “Reporting on Advertizsing Costs,” the Company eapitalized and
amortized certain direci-response advertising and related costs whon we could demonstrate, among other things thal customers have directly
responded to our advertisements. We assess the realizability of the ameunts of direct-response advertising costs reporied as assets at the end of each
reporting period by comparing the carrving amounts of such assets to the probable remaming future net cash flows expected to result direetly from
such advertizing. Management's judpments include determining the period over which such net cash flows are estimated to be realized. The straight
line method is used to amortize deferred direct response advertising assels as it best represents the pattern in which the economic henefits of the
defermed direel response adverlising assel is malized. In accordance with ASC 720-35 and 340-2, the deferred dircct advertising cosls are amortized
in proportion to the expected future benefits, based on histonical evidence and venfied by current results. Costs for each advertising setivily should
be accumulated and amortized separately.

In order to comply with ASC 720-35 and 340-20, the Company performs an annual evaluation based on sales by “customer List” (original cost pool)
1o determine reasonablencss of straight-line amortization. The Company amortizes the dircet-response advertising costs capilalized over a period off
5 years. Medifast, Inc. sells medically formulated portion-controlled meal replacements that are clinically proven to result in up to 2-5 Ibs. of
weight loss per week., Consumers purchase Medifast product for an extended period of time due to their weight loss suceess. This is done in eveles
ns o vast mojority of weight loss consumers re-goin weight and agmn purchase Medifast product to lose weight and improve their health. The vast
majonty of these re-orders are attributed © the onginal advertisement that drove them (o purchase the product and expenence above-average
weight-loss, The Company will adjust the carrving value of the deferred asset if there is sigmificant deviation between the annual review/look-back
analysis of the revenues from “customer lists™ (original cost pool) as compared 1o the actual and projected sales and straight-line methodelogy or
indicators that the list is not generating further revenue. Since 2008, the Company has not capitalized direet-response advertising and related costs.

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, direct-response advertising costs totaling 3517000 and 51381000, respectively, are reported as assets in the
accompanying balance sheets. Those amounts are included in the other assets caplion on the consolidated balance sheets. Direct-response
advertising cost amortization for the yvears ended December 31, 2011, 20010, and 20049, was S864 000, S865 (00, and 51 392 000, respectively.

Operating Leases - Medifust leases retail stores, disinbution facilities, and office space under operating leases,  Many of our lease agreements
contain tenanl improvement allowances, renl holidays, rent esealation clauses, and conlingent rent provisions. The Company recognizes incenlives
and minimum rental expenses on a straight-line basis over the terms of the leases. We commenee recording rent expense on the date of initial
possession, which is generally when we enter the space and begin to make improvements to properties for our intended use. For tenant
improvement allowances and rent holidavs, we record a deferred rent liability on the consolidated balance sheets and amortize the deferred rent over
the terms of the leases az reductions to rent expense on the consolidated statements of income,

For scheduled rent escalation elauses dunng the lease terms or for renlal payments commencing al a date other than the date of initial oceupancy,
we record mimmum rental expenses on a strmight-line basis over the terms of the leases on the consohidated statements of income. Several lenses
provide for contingent rents, which are determined as a percentage of gross sales in excess of specified levels. We record a contingent rent liability
ot the consolidated balanee sheets and the corresponding rent expense when we determine achieving the specified levels is probable.

Store Opening Costs — Clinic opening costs are expensed as icurred.

]



Property, Plant, and Equipment - Praperiy, plant and cquipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization. The Company
computes depreciation and amortization using the straight-line method aver the estimated useful lives of the assets acquired as follows:

Building and building improvements 39 years
Equipment and fxtures 3-15 vears
Leaschold Improvements 5~ 10 years
Wehicles 5 years

The depreciation life for leasehold improvements is the lesser of the estimated useful life of the addition or the term of the related lease.

The carrying amount of all long-lived assets is evaluated periodically o determine whether adjustment (o the useful life or to the unamortized
balance is warranted. Such evaluation is based principally on the expected utilization of the long=lived asscts and the projected undiscounted cash
Mevws of the operations in which the long-lived assels are used.

Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carmying amount of an asset may not
be recoverable. Recoverahility of assetx to be held and used iz measured by a comparizon of the carrving amount of an asset to estimated
undiscounted future cash flows expected 1o be generated by the asset. I the carrving amount of an asset exceeds its estimated future cazh Mows, an
impairment charge is recognized by the amount by which the carrying amount of the assel exceeds the (air value of the assel,

Intangible Assets - The Company has acquired certain intangible assets which include customer lists, trademarks, patents, and copyrights. The
customer lists are being amortized over a 3 yvear period based on management’s best estimate of the expected useful life. The costs of trademarks,
patents and copyrghts are amortized over 3 (o 7 vears based on their estimated useful life.

Revenue Recognition - Revenue is recognized net of discounts, rebates, promotional adjustments, price adjustments, and estimated retums and
upon transfer of title and risk to the customer which occurs at shipping (F.O.B, terms). Upon shipment, the Company has no further performance
obligations and collection is reasonably assured as the majority of sales are paid prior to shipping. Medifast Weight Control Centers program fees
are recogmized over the estimated service period.

Shipping and Handling Cosix — Qur shipping and handling costs for shipmenis of our product 1o our customers are included in cost of sales. All
shipping and handling charges that are billed to customers are included in net revenue. All other shipping and handling costs are included in selling,

gcm.-ra‘l and admimistration CXPCNEes.

Earnings per Share - Basic eamnings per share (“EPS") computations are caleulated utilizing the weighted average number of common shares
outsianding duning the periods presented. Diluted EPS s caleulated utilizing the weighted average number of common shares oulstanding sdjusted for the
eflect of dilutive common stock equivalents.

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted EPS for the fiscal vears ended December 31:

2011 2010 2009
Numerator:
Met income S18.541,000 219,611,000 511,357,000
Denominator:
Weighted average shares of common stock outstanding 13965018 14.082.213 13,515,318
Effect of dilutive common stock equivalents 233477 490,708 1,221,321
Weighted average diluted common shares oulstanding 14,198,495 14,572,921 14,736,639
EPS
Basic 51,33 51.39 s0.84
Diluted 51.31 5135 5$0.77

Share-Based Compensation — Share-based compensation, primanily restricted stock awards to employees and directors, is measured al the grant
date, based on the caleulated fair value of the award, and is recognized as an expense over the requisile service period.

Com prehensive Income (Loss) - Other comprehensive income (loss) refers to revenues, expenses, gains and losses that are not included in net
imcome bul rather are recorded directly in stockholders™ equuty. Comprehensive income (loss) consists of net income and unrealized goins and losses
on available-for-sale seeurities.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 201 1, the Finaneial Accounting Standards Board (FASE) 1ssued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2011-05 Comprehensive Income
(Topie 2207 Preseniation of Comprehensive Income. The Update is intended to increase the prominence of other comprehensive income in
financial statemenis. The ASU will supersede some of the guidance in Topic 220 of the accounting Codification. The main provisions of this
Update provide that an entity that reporis items of other comprehensive income has the aption (o present comprehensive income in either one or twa
consccutive financial statements.  The option m cumment GAAP that permits the presentation of other comprehensive income in the statement of
changes in equity has been eliminated, The amendments required will be apphied retrospectively, The amendments are effective for fiscal years,
and inferim periods within those vears, beginning afier December 15, 2011, The Company is currenily reviewing its reporiing options to determine
its methed of presentation upon adoption.

In May 2011, the FASB issuwed ASU 2011-4, Amendments to Achieve Common Fair Value Measurements and Disclosure Reguirements in 1.5,
GAAP and IFRS, which amended Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 820, Far Value Measurements and Disclosures, to converge the far
value measurement guidance in generally accepled accounting principles in the United States (GAAP) and [nternational Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs). Some of the amendments clarify the application of existing lair value measurement requirements, while other amendments
change a parlicular prineiple in ASC 820, In addition, ASU 2011-04 requires additional fair value disclosures. The amendments are to be applied
prospectively and are offective for annual periods beginming afier December 15, 2011, Management is currenily cvaluating the effect that the
provisions of ASLI 2001 1-04 will have on the Company s finaneial siatements

3. CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND MARKETABLE SECURITES

The fellowing summarizes cash, cash equivalents, and marketable securities:

Unrealized Unrealized Estimated Fair
Cost Gains Lasses Acerued interest Value

Cash and cash equivalents

Demand deposits $ 13450000 § - $ - $ - § 13,459,000
Money market accounts 203,000 - 803,000
December 31, 2011 §$ 14262000 $ 3 $ e $ - S 14262000
Investment Securities

Investment Securitiss $§ 13,775000 § 646,000 $ - $ 117,000 § 19,538,000
December 31, 2011 § 18775000 § 645,000 3 P $ 117000 § 19,538,000
Cazh and cash equivalents

Demand deposits $ 12687000 S . § - $ - $ 12,687,000
Money market accounts 4,478,000 . 4,478,000
December 31, 2010 $ 17165000 $ i 3 = $ - § 17,165,000
Dvestment Securities

Irvestment Securities $ 16814000 § 414000 $ (54000) $ 97000 § 17,271,000
December 31, 2010 § 16214000 § 414000 § (54,000 $ 97000 § 17,271,000

The Company had realized losses of 8207 000, 52035 000 and 321,000 for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively.

4. INVENTORY
Imventory consisted of the following at December 31, 2011 and 2010:

2011 2010
Raw Matarials § 4501000 § 5292000
Packaging 2,204,000 2,791,000
Finished Guods 13,174,000 11,451,000

$ 19960000 § 19,534000
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A PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Property, plant and equpment as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, consist of the followmg:

w1l wle

Land 5 650,000 $ 650,000
N 14,999,000 10,525,000
Equipment and fixtures 41,657,000 36,947,000
Vihicls 170,000 67,000

TT$63,416000 | $48,189,000
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 24 624,000 17,600,000
Property, plant and equipment - net $§ 33852000 § 30,589,000

Substantially all of the Company's property, plant and equipment are pledged as collateral for vanous loans (seeMote 11).

Depreciation and amortizetion expense for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009 was $7,024,000, $4,700,000,
and $3,634,000, respectively.
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6. TRADEMARKS AND INTANGIELES

The Company’s intangible assets and related scecumulated amortization included the following:

As of December JL, 2011 As of December 31, 2010
Weighted-Avg.
Gross Caxryimg ~ Accumulated Grexs Carzying Accumulated Amertization
Ameunt Amartization Amount Amortization Period
128,000 $ 50, 3 years
3 years

_ $ 235000 § $ 735,000 000
Tow P s T lmon I Imm; S Lhemn

Arsortizetion expense for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 was:

2011 2010 2009
Customar liste 3 78.000 $ 50000
Trmdemarks, patents, and copyrights 378,000 241,000 5 241,000

Total trademarks and intanghbles *$ 456000 "$ 201000 'S 241,000

Amortization expense is included in selling, general and sdministrative expenses.

The estimated future amortization expense of trademarks and intangible assels is as follows:

For the years nndlrg December 31, Amount
2012 $ 454000
2013 342,000
2014 131,000
2015 66,000

70



7. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED EXPENSES

Accounts payeble and accrued expenses as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 consist of the following:

2011 2010
Trade payables $ 12,678,000 $ 9,208,000
Sales commissions payable 4 578,000 3,947,000
Accrued payroll and related taxes 1,574,000 1,775,000
Total $ 18,830,000 $ 15,020,000

8 LEASES, COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Operating and Capital Leases:

As of December 31, 2011, the Company leases office space for Corporate offices as well as seventy corporate-operated Medifast Weight
Control Centers under lease terms ranging from five to ten years. Monthly payments under the Medifast Weight Control Centers leases mnge
in price from $1,500 10 85,000, The Company is additionally required 1o pay property laxes, utilities, insurance and other ¢costs relating 1o the
leased facilitics,

The Company leases large commercial printers for our printing operation that supports our sales channels and network equipment for
information technology that are aceounted for as capital leases. The leases extend through December 2016,

The l'nlltm-ins table summarzes our [ulure mimimum reotal and lesse payments rcquimrl under non-cancelable lease lerms in excess of one

year as of December 31, 2011:

Operating Capital

Years Endng Leases Leases
2012 5 3,742,000 1 345,000
13 3,768,000 315,000
2014 3,623,000 225,000
2015 3,415,000 225,000
2016 2,692,000 225,000

Thereafter 1,719,000 -
Total mininwamn lsass paymesnts $ 12,950,000 1,335,000

Lass amount representing interest 114,000

Present value of minomum lease payments 1,221,000
Current portion 307,000
Long-term portion [ 914,000

Rent expense for the vears ended December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009 was $3,733,000, 51,700,000, and $1,236,000 respectively. Equipment lease
expense for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000, and 2008 was S1.929 000, 51,813,000, and 51,634 000 mﬁpm.:ﬁw:l}'.
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Contingencies:

The Company has assessed certain non-income tax contingencies in aceordance with ASC 450, Accounting for Contingencies, that management
believes could be challenged by tax avthonties, During the ordinary course of business, there are many transactions for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain, These potential exposures result from the varying application of statutes, rules, regulations and interpretations. Our
assessment reflects assumptions and judgments about potential sctions by taxing junsdictions. We believe these assumptions and judgments are
reasonable; however, our assessment of tax exposures in the futare due 1o new develapments mav alter our current position on lass contingencies.
A successtul assertion by one or more states regarding taxes could result in substantial tax habihties and have a material impact on operating results
or vash flows in the perieds for which that determination 1s made.

The Company from time to ime is involved in legal proceedings and elaims arising in the ordinary course of business. Although it is not possible
to determine the ouleome of these matiers, il 15 management’s opinion thal setilement of such claims will not have 8 malenal adverse elfect on the
Company’s financial condition or resulls in operations.

On March 17, 2011, a class action complaint tithed Oren Proter et al. v. Medifast, Inc. et al. (Civil Action 2011-CV-7T20[BEL]), alleging violations
of Scetions 10(b) and 20(a) of the Sccuritics Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the Exchange Act), and Rule 10b-3 promulgated under the
Exchange Act, was filed for an unspecified amount of damages in the US Distnet Court, Distriet of Maryland. The complaint alleges that the
defendants made false and/or misleading statements and failed 1o disclose material adverse facts regarding the Company 's business, operations and
prospects. On March 24, 2011, a class action complaint fitled Fred Greenberg v Medifast, Inc., et al (Civil Action 2011-CV776 [BEL], alleging
violations of Sections 1(b) and 20{a) of the Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5 promulgated under the Exchange Act, was filed for an unspecified
amount of damages in the US District Court, District of Marviand. The complaint alleges that the defendants made false andior misleading
statements and failed to disclose matenal adverse facts regarding the Company’s business, operations and prospects. On July 19, 2011, the US
[rstriet Judge ordered the consolidation of the cases and appointment of co-lead counsel among other matters. The Greenberg case was dismissed
without prejudice. The Plaimifls subsequently filed an Amended Complaint. The Company has reviewed its allegations, subscquently filed its
Metion to Dismiss which is currently pending: and intends to vigorously defend against that Complaint.

As reported in the Company’s Form 10-0) for the first quarter of 2001, on Apnl 1, 2011, a sharcholder denivative complunt titled Shane
Rothenberger, derivatively on behalf of Medifast, Ine., v Bradley T. MacDonald et al. (Civil Action 201 1-CV 863 [BEL]Y and on April 11,2011, a
shareholder derivative complaint titled James A, Thompson, derivatively on behall of Medifast, Inc., v Bradley T, MacDonald et al. (Civil Action
2011-CV934 |BEL]) were filed in the US District Court, Distnet of Marviand. The identically worded complaints allege breach of Gduciary dulies,
unjust ennchment, abuse of control, gross mismanagement, and waste of corporate assels. Each complaint requests an unspecified amount of
damages, a Court Order directing reformation of corporate governance, restitution to the Company and payment of costs and disbursements. The
Company is named as a nominal defendant. On July 19, 2011, the US District Judge ordered consolidation of the two cases, appoiniment of co-lead
counsel, and the Dling of a consolidated complaint, among other matlers, Mo response is due from the Company at this time. Aller the consolidated
complaint is filed, the Company intends to take whatever action it deems necessary o protect its inferests,

In early 2010, the Chapter 7 Bankruptey Trustee for Go Fig, Inc. et al., Debtors, filed an adversary eivil proceeding in the US Bankruptey Court
(ED, Missour ) agmnst Jason Pharmaceuticals, Ine., o subsidiary of Medifast, Inc. (MED-NYSE), and other unrelated enfifies seeking (o recover, as
1o each, alleged preferential pavments. Jason Pharmaceuticals sold product received by the Debtors and has previously fled a pending claim in the
same bankruptey, Medifast disputes the Trustes's allegations and intends to vigorously defend itsell, This action was by Court order placed on hold
while the Trustee litigates similar issues against another Party.

Since 2010, Jason Pharmaceuticals has received five Notices of Charge of Dizerimination filed with the US EEOC alleging diserimination suffered
b 2 current emplovees and 3 former emplovees. The EEOC dismissed three of those charges in 201 1. As reporfed in 20011 Q3. the two Claimants
whose charge claims were dismissed dunng the second quarter filed swt to pursue those claims i US Distriet Court.  The Company intends fo
vigorously defend against the remaining claims.



9. INCOME TAXES

Tha components of the income tex expense (benefit) e ax follows:

M1l Hla 009
Current
Foderal $ 2,347,000 5 9,688,000 $ 5.750,000
Stats 777,000 2,463,000 1,525,000
Total Cument 3,124,000 12,151
Defemed
Fademl $ 5,444,000 3 (62,000) $ (191,000
State 569,000 (B,000) &1
Total Dafarred &,015,000 (70,000) (218,000)
Taotal Incorms Tex Expense 3 2,139,000 3 12,081,000 % 7,087,000
Deferred tax atests (labilities) consist af the following at Decamber 31,
il mla 09
Diefermd compensation ] 301,000 $ 314,000 1 55,000
Reserves on imventory end sales 242,000 140,000 44,000
Cmelit and loss curryforwards £45,000 178,000 §7,000
Stock compensation = &01,000 381,000
Imventory capitelizetion 535,000 - -
Othar 516,000 77,000 '
Total defarrad tax aassts 2,150,000 1,310,000 767,000
Unirealized guinflnss an imsestrants {250,000 {145,000)
Prepaid expentes (426,000) (429,000 .
Depreciation (8,075,000 {1,317,000) (1,273,000}
Stock compansation {109,000} - -
Total deflerred bax Linkilities {8,260,000) 1,891,000) (1,273,000
Mot defomred bux babilities % {8, 701,000) i {581,000) ] {.506,000)
Tha diffarences between the United States federal statutory tex mie and the Company's effactive
tax rate are af follows:
il N 2009
Statutary fedaml tax "§  GfmEO00 350% § 11093000 350% § 44000 350%
State incoma taxes, not of Tederal baralit 1015000 3T7% 1,699,000 54 S58,000 34%%
Domsstic manufachurer deduction {242,000y -09% (861,0000 -2.7% (3B6,000) -21%
Orther permanent dif Terences 7,000 D3 75,000 02 53000 03
Ressarch and development and jobs credits {336,000y -1.2% = -
Crther state income tax benedits (1,051,000) -39% - -
Other - D%

7 0.2%
3 U139,000 330% 3§ 12081000 38.1% § 7,061,000 383%

Tha declins in the effective tax mte was & result of extenshre tax planning parformed by the
Company. As part of its tex planning process, the Company amended sevenl meiwms filed in prior
years. Aue a mannfecturing entity based in Maryland, the Company adopted the singls sales factor
apportionment method in addition to climing new state jobs credits, reducing the Compeny's

effectove tex miv compered to the prior year,

The Company hes fecaral capital loss carry forwnds of ap

$455,000 that can'be carrisd

forsard for (e yeurs and will sxpim in 2014 through 2017, Sepamte company state net opemting
loss carry forwands totaling $8.6 miltion will expire in 2032, Maryland state job credii ey

forwads totaling $173,000 will expire in 2016,
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10. Share-based Com pensation

The Company has issued restricted stock to emplovees generally with terms ranging up 1o six vears, The fair value 15 equal 1o the market price of
the Company’s common stock on the date of grant. Expense for restricted stock is amortized ratably over the vesting period. The following table
summanzes the restricted stock activity:

Weighted- Average
Grant Date Fair
Shares Value
Outstanding at January 1, 2011 786,421 $584
Granted 79,084 17.88
Vested (370,249) 6.82
Forfeited (40,000) 6.55
Outstanding at December 31, 2011 455,256 $1.08

The total restncted stock awards vested and charged against income dunng the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009 were 52,524,000,
S2.678,000 and 52,151,000, respectively. The total income tax benefit recognized in the consolidated statement of income for these resincted stock
awards was approximately S986,000, 51 (44 (00 and S839 000, for the vears ending December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively. The tax
benelit recognized in additonal paid-in capital upon vesting of restricted stock awards was approximately $614,000 and 81,770,000 for the vears
ending December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively, There was approximately $3223.000 of total unrecognized compensation cost related o
restricted stock awards as of December 31, 2011, The cost 15 expected to be recognized over a weighted-average penod of approxamately 2 years,
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1. LONG-TEREM DEET AND LINE OF CREDT
Long term debt as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, consist of the following:

2011 2010
$3,000,000 ten-year term loan, with Mermill Lynch at LIBOR plus 1 3%,
approximately 1.56% at December 31, 2011, Due 2017. $ 2375000 § 2525000
$1,500,000 ten-year term loan, with Menill Lynch at LIBOR plus 1.3%,
approximately 1.56% at December 31, 2011. Due 2017. 1,188,000 1,263,000
$2,600,000 3-year term lnan, with Bank of America at Libor plus 2%,
approximately 2 26% on December 31, 2011. Due 2012, 893,000 1,388,000
$475,000 seven-year loan with PNC at & varishle rate of LIBOR plus 2.50%,
approximately 2.76% at December 31, 2011, and was repaid in Juns 2011, ; $269,000
4456000 5445000
Less current portion 1,119,000 797,000

$§ 3337000 § 4648000

Future principal payments on long-term debt are as follows:

2012 $1,119,000
2013 225,000
2014 225,000
2015 235,000
2016 225,000
Thereafter 2,437,000
$ 4456000

The Bank of Amenca line of credit and term loan 15 secured by substantially all the asseis of the Company and contain customary covenanis ineluding
covenants that, in certain eircumstances, restrict the Company®s ability to incur additional indebtedness, pay dividends and redeem eapital stook, make
other payments, including investments, sell its assets and enter into consolidations, mergers and transfers of all or substantially all of its assets. The
line of credit and term loan agreements also require the Company to maintain specified financial ratios and satisfy cerfain financial condition tests. At
December 31, 2001, the Company was in compliance with all of the required financial ratios and alsa met all of the financial condition fests, The
Memill Lynch ten-vear term loans are secured by two buildings, together with an assignment of rents and a security interest upon all fixtures now or
hereafter located in the twa buildings. All leans contain custamary events of default. Upon the scourrence of an event of detault under the term loans
or line of credit, the lenders may cease making loans and declare amounts outstanding to be immediately due and payable.
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1Z. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Certain financial assets and liobilities are accounted for at fair value, which is defined as the price that would be received to scll an asset or paid o
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction betwesn market participants at the measurement date, The following fair value hierarchy prioritizes the
inputs used to measure fair value:

Level 1 — Quoted prices are available in active markets [or identical assets or liabilities as of the reporting date, Active markets are
those in which transactions for the asset or liability oceur in sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an
ongeing basis.

Level 2 — Pricing inpuis are other than quoted prices in active markets included in level 1. which are cither directly or indirectly
observable as of the reporting date. Level 2 includes those financial instruments that are valued using models or other valuation
methodologies.

Level 3 - Pricing inputs include significant inputs that are generally less observable from objective sources. These inpuls may be wsed
with internally developed methodologies that mesult in management™s best estimate of fair value rom the perspective of o market
participant.

The following table represents the fair value hierarchy for those financial assets measured at fair value on a recurning basis as of December 31, 2011
and 2010

2011 Assets Lavell Levell Level IIT Total
Imvestment securities ; 19,538.000 - - ; 19,538,000
Cash equivalents 203,000 - - 203,000
Tatal 5 El.tm ] - 5 - ] IU.Sdllmu

2010 Assets Levell Level 11 Level I Total
Imvestment escurities £ 17271000 = = $ 17,271,000
Cash equivalents 4,478,000 & . 4,478,000
Total $ 21740000 § - $ - $ 21,740,000

13. BUSINESS SEGMENTS

The Company has two reporiable operating segmenis:  Medifast, and MWCC and Wholesale. The Medifast reporting segment consists of the
Medifast Direct and Take Shape for Life distribution channels. The MWCC and Wholesale segment consists of Medifast Corporately-owned and
Franchised Weight Control Centers, as well as the Medifast Wholesale Physicians channel.

Total assets and operating expenses not identified with a specific segment are listed as “Other” and include items such as auditors” fees, attormey's
fees. stock compensation expense and corporate govemnance related 1o NYSE. Sarbanes-Oxley, and SEC regulations.  Evaluation of the
performance of operating segments is based on their respective income (rom operations before mxes, The sceounting policies of the scgments are
the same as those of the Company. The presentation and allocation of assets, liabilities and results of operations may not reflect the actual economie
costs of the segments as stand-alone businesses. 11 a different basis of allocation were utilized, the relative contributions of the segments might
differ, bul management believes that the relative trends in segments would likely not be impacted.

We previously included Medifast Weight Control Centers in “Other” segment, however, in 2010 due to the Weight Control Centers growth we
separated this segment along with the Medifast Wholesale Physicians, In addition, we reclassified segment amounts for the prior periods,
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The following tables present segment information for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2000;

Cost of Sales

Selling, Ceneral and Adminstmtnes Expenses
Depreciation and Amortization

Interest (nat) and other
Inconss before income taxes

Revenues

Cost of Sales

D sation and A St hd
Interest (nat) and other
Income before income taxes

Revenues

Coat of Sales
Depreciation and Amortization
Intemest (net) and other
Income before ncoms taxes

Segoent Assets

Year Ended December 31, 2011
MWCC &
Medifast Wholesale Other Conselidated
250,191,000 $ 38,008,000 $ - $ 208,180,000
63,888,000 9,805,000 - 73,693,000
152,647,000 30,335,000 5,788,000 188,770,000
6,416,000 1,596,000 332,000 8,344,000
30,000 - (328,000)
36,210,000 $§ (27380000 §  (5,792,000) § 27,680,000
64,388,000 $ 12658000 § 28619000  § 105,665,000
Year Ended December 31, 2010
MWCC &
Medifasi Wholesale Other Consolidaied
279,879,000 $§ 21673000 § - $ 257,552,000
58,795,000 6,283,000 - 65,083,000
135,441,000 13,837,000 5,693,000 154,971,000
4,765,000 786,000 307,000 5,858,000
105,000 - {157,000) (52,0000
$___30773,000 $ 6762000  § (5,843,000 $__ 31,692,000
55,858,000 $ 9,301,000 § 22,900,000 $ 04,055,000
Year Ended December 31, 2009
MWCC &
Medifast Whelesale Other Consolidated
152,077,000 $ 17866000 § $ 165,743,000
41,466,000 3,889,000 - 45,355,000
88,042,000 5,137,000 3,445,000 100,624,000
4,264,000 591,000 312,000 5,257,000
17,000 0 56,000 73,000
18,288,000 $ 3,949,000 $ (3,213,000 $ 12424000
43,580,000 $ 3,138,000 $§  14242,000 $ 62,960,000

T



14 QUARTERLY RESULTS (Unaudited)

2011

Revenus

CGross Profit

Income before income teaxes

Net Incoms

Eamings per common share - diluted

2010

Revenns

Gross Profit

Income before mcoms tees

Het Income

Eamings per common share - diluted

First Quarter Second Quarter  _ Third Quarter Fowth Quarter
$74,295,000 $78,255,000 $76,067,000 $69,572,000
56,681,000 59,041,000 56,442,000 52,332,000
10,281,000 9,142,000 6,802,000 1,455,000
6,358,000 5,944,000 5,069,000 1,170,000
0.44 0.41 035 008
$60,585,000 $66,660,000 $67,282,000 $63,025,000
45,768,000 49,466,000 50,459,000 46,776,000
8,214,000 9,204,000 9,081,000 5,193,000
4,901,000 5,538,000 5,751,000 3,421,000
033 038 039 023

Earmungs per common share is computed independently for each of the quarters presented; accordingly,
the sum of the guarterly eamings per common share may not equal the total computed for the year.
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INDEX TO EXTIDITS

3.1 Cenificate of Tncorporation of theCompany and amendments thereto
32  By-Laws of the Company- Amended
10,1 1993 Steck Option Plan of the Company as amended*
103 Lease relating to the Company's Owings Mills, Maryland facility**
211 Subsidiaries of Medifas:, Ine,
311 Cenification of Chief Exceutive Officer pursuant (o liem 601(b)}31) of Regulation 5-K, as adopted pursuant o Section 302 of the Sarbancs-Oxley Act of 2002
312 Cenification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant io Ttem 601(b)3 1) of Regulation 5-K, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,
321 Centification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes- Crdey Act of 2002

" * Filed as an exhibit io and incorporated by reference io the Regisiraton

Statement on Form SB-2 of the Company, File No. 33-TI1284-NY.

** Filed as an exhibit to and incorporated by referencs to the Registration
Statement on Form 54 of the Company, File No. 33-81524.
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Exhibit 211

Subsidiaries of Medifast, [nc.

Jason Pharmaceuticals, Ine.
Take Shape for Life, Inc.

Jason Properties, LLC

Jason Enterprises, Ine,

Medifast Franchise Systems
Seven Crondall Associates, LLC

State of Incorporation
Maryland
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Maryland
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Exhibir 31.1

RULE 13a-14{a) CERTIFICATION

I, Michael C. MacDonald, certify that:

.

[ have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of Medilast, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary 1o make
the statements made, in light of the ¢ircumstances under which such statements were made, not nusleading with respect to the penod covered
by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report. fairly present in all material respects
the linancial condition, resulls of operations and cash Dows of the registrant as of, and for, the penods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifyving officer and T are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (a8 defined
n Exchunﬁ: Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) amd internal contral over financial n:purlinE {nz defined in F.xr:l‘nngu Act Rules 13a-15(0
and |5d-15(1)) lor the registrant and have:

(a)

(b)

(€

(d)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such diselosure controls and procedures (o be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that matenial information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiancs, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly during the penod in which this report is being prepared;

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, 1o provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted acoounfing principles;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure contrels and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s infernal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the caze of an annual report) that has matenally affected, or is reasonably
likely 1o materially afTect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s ather certifving officer and [ have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of dircctors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a)

(b)

All significamt deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ahility to record . process, summanze and report financial information; and

Any [raud, whether or nol material, that involves management or other emplovees who have & significant role in the registrant’s intermal
control over financial reporting.

Diate: March 15, 2012

/s Michael C. MacDonald

Michael C. MacDonald
Chairman of the Board and Chiell Executive Oflicer



Exhibit 31.2

RULE 13a-14{a) CERTIFICATION

|, Brendan N. Connors certify that:

2

I have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of Medifast, Ine.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of & material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make
the statements made, in light of the circumstanees under which such statements were made, not misleading with respeet to the peried covered

by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other linancial information included in this report, (@irly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifving officer and 1 are responsible for establishing and maintaining diselosure controls and procedures (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(2) and 13d-15(¢)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-13(D)
and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or coused such disclosure controls and procedures 1o be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating 1o the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known 1o us by
others within those entities, particularly during the peried in which this report is being prepared,

(b}  Designed such internal control over finaneial reporting, or caused such intermal control over financial reporting o be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of linancial statements
for external purpeses in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

{¢)  Evaluated the effectivencss of the registrant”s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over finaneial reporting that oceurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially atTected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifving officer and I have disclosed. based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting,
1o the registrant’s auditors and the audit committes of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

{a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reponting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarnize and report financial information; and

(b} Any fraud, whether or not matenal, that involves management or other emplovees who have a significant role in the registrant’s interial
control over financial reponting.

Date: March 15, 2012

/5

Brendan M, Connars

Brendan M, Connors
Chief Financial Officer
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18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Reporl of Medifast, Ine. (the “Company™) on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011as filed with the
Sccurities and Exchange Commission on the date hereol (the “Report”™), 1 Michael C. MacDonald, Chiel’ Executive OfMicer and 1 Brendan N.
Connors, Chiel Financial Officer of the Company, certily, pursuant to 18 11.5.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 206 of the Sarbancs-
Oxley Act of 2002, to the best of my knowledge, that:

(1 The Report fully complics with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Sccuritics Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and
(2) The information contained in the report fairly presents, in all material respeets, the financial condition and results of the operations of the
Clﬂﬂlﬂn"’.

By: /s Mi :
Michael C. MacDonald

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
March 15, 2012

By: /2! Brendan M. Connors
Brendan M. Connors

Chicf Financial Officer
March 15, 2002



¢ ¢ Medifast is the
best thing that ever
happened to me!
It gave me the life
| always wanted,
and the confidence
| needed. | am so
grateful. 23

—Christine Kirkpatrick
Lost 55 Ibs* with Medifast

*Results will vary. Typical weight loss on the Medifast 5 & 1
Plan® is up to 2-5 pounds per week.
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11445 Cronbhill Drive
Owings Mills, Maryland 21117





